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Severn Trent group is delivenng in

key areas

group profit before interest tax

and exceptional items 469 9m

delivered planned operating cost

savings

strong liquidity position funded

for up to the next two years

dividends to increase by 3%

above RPI inflation to March 2010
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In 2008/09 we delivered what we set

out to do We continued to focus on

water and to improve our performance

ross the group

Del vering contmuous improvement across our group
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Welcomc to our sharehokier summary 2009 This

si mu iary is distributed with your Notice of Meeting each

year It provides high eve info matiori from our financial

reults together with details of our performance against our

cv rn tic ni is high ualit bua iess whoss rnvcstmunt programme
drrvc sho ig rowi pr i5O ts fire mancer rn nt tr am has clear and

ncr itc ar is ig ii
thr single nd pum it of ii ghc

sia its is the nr ins to ahie bmh igher levels ol ustoinei

iti rfac hen is ci aained iror hnanc Ia rotor is harehoidc

KPIs and brief details of this years final dividend and

nut ACM fhe full report and accounts together with

additional company information is availsble on our

website wwwseverntrent com

This year we have been delivering continuous impiovrment througt out

our businesses and making it part of the way we work every day

hr results rnonstrate continued mu rovems it mmcc Sc vern cnt

Water We nnw hay ot our Key ieriorrnance indicaters at uppcr

quartile We continuc to drrvc si nificantly hi Thcr stornc sErvicE

standards have outperformed against leakage ta et for tt cccond

year running and is aintained high standards icross our kr

nvironmentai obligations

Continuous improve sent is atihc cart of Severn front Serviccs ur

intern itional ter and waste watc solutions business tL cn linc

driving the Severiu en Services growth plan iocnsec on four coy

shatcgrc rritativcs

Our approani ways eha lerrging uureivcs to do totter is or red

to ensure flu wc tare our busi uesscs forward spons bli and

sutiNbL
if

and are th deli for all or tkc laldro

Severn Trent group is delivering in key areas

group profit before interest tax

and exceptional items 4699m
delivered planned operating cost savings

strong liquidity position funded for up to

dividends to increase by 3% above RPI

the next two years

inflation to 2010
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Savrng water schoos

Our Water oRe kncy pbins iclude working

with our cuotornms to reduce wW usage

og water nore eff olive and

fts enables th ito

md reduce iii pact on tIe

mv ronment In 008 09 we have bcen

working wth schc off to audit their water

to iffy oppuitL lit Svr itor
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For fi rfhei infoin ation oe

mso our inc vis

wwwseverntrent coii/corporateresponsthhty

As we progress into the final year of

AMP4 the results and performance

we have delivered over the past 12

months positions us well for the future

We have performed well in our KPk

and we continue to improve in line with

our commitment to highest standards

lowest possible charges and great people

ocu Coroorate responsdnhty

iporate isp in miii CR ix ust be it the heirt of the way

Wi dcve op man gr md operate for hn mi sustainable benefit
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envr onniont anc for our busmnrss have sm ecedcd as mE suit

ot bcttc network minte rammc betlc mm oponsc tinier to liii lirig mm

tixmng Ic mks and belier mdc mtmndint ol whcn water is

teem yc an we nyc of mcmarntaiiiinrg rep mr

rug
mmd nuder 5Uif ii

oxtenivo waffn mrctwork sc me ci whrcf is ovcn 10 years old In

AMP4 we set target of 1100 km of mom is to ho rem cwel over Ii

yc mrs We nose already mcFmreved mis length an are fmlannii to

dc liver 230 knm at cost of more lion Fm mix ocr mt asrmm rout

in thc Ofwm detennnrn mIni



Improving lood protection at our srte

ofowrng ic floods in 0O1 we hay provided adthtronal flood

protection at four watc trcatn ent sites At he Mythc Water

Treatment Works the temporary flood barriers emain in place

while we ek planning pernuss on for permanent flood defences

We iie alec socking plannin permission for an Iditional pipcline

to bong cx ra supply into thc Glouccstei area We continue to liaise

clor ely wit thc Glouccetershire scrutiny comrnu1tc

Promoting the rspon3ble of water

Watcr efficiency plays key part in our watcr resources planning

ri adjitwri so ing riatr rn oui own srness we have worked

on hc pin our customers reduc the water they use for example

we havr run workshops with our major use customers to help them

dentify ways to aave water and ducc their bills Wc also have

range of piogiarnmes to piovide rchools arid households with waler

saving devx es and water saving advice such our Be Smart

edu ation programrne Through this scheme employers work as

mentors with 50 schools each year using an cducation pack

focused on watr effic ic icy

Waste witer ctandards havr been improving over the last ycar

rid the is arid nvestmonts shown be ow arc key rxamples of

our rogress

Looking tr the environment

We placc great emphasis on our environmental iesponrihilities

How we abstract wter manage waste water dischargcs operate

over 00 sewage tieatment sites 54 000 km of sewers over

3600 ewage pumping stations and how wc managc resources

all hay hugc potentiar impact on tfre local environ nent Wr have

ieons Irty to make the et use of ou resourccs

100% compliance at our sew cg treatment woiks

hr 2028 ill uur scwage treatment Aerk again omphed with the

disc haige cements issued to them by thc Environment Agency This

consisteri ly high level of compliance is amongst the hcct in the

industry nd demonstrates mr continuonsly improving performancc

1mm wi compliance standards that get higher year ter year

ewer pollution incidc ot

Ec 2lution incidents achk ved 008 per 000 properties in

2008 Pollution incide its in this calendar year wcre significantly

down 25 to 33 from 411 ri 2001 Of the total recorded eight

were icr tti more serious categories and cotegorised by the

Envirorin ent Agency compared with 13 in 2001 In line wrth the

point plan Wr grccJ wth the crivironrnPnt Ao ocv mci Ofwat

to improvc our environmental performance in relation to pollution

we rye tic ightened awareness and improved our procr sses in

order to tic able to prevenh identify and tackl pollution incdents

mom cliii
and effectively

Reduced sewer flooding

We performed better than last year againsT our KPI msasure fir

sewer flood ng other caner per 001 properties There is trIl

more to do arid we have specific inprovcmcntplanfortl is rica

rnclcrdng encouraging our ustoncrers riot to put fats oils arid
1cc

ase

down the drain as well as carrying out targctcd cleansing of oar

network Sewer flooding can also hr caused by overloaded scwcrs

Properties flooded in this way are put orrmo flooding re refers rid

solutions are investigated In agrec rent rth Ofwat we have now

bought our methodology in line wi Ii ttre st ttrc water industry

arid as result the number of propc rtrc the register rn ocr region

has come down srgrr ficaritly in 2008/09

to tackle the marry corn lexities cc rroundrng flooding in the most

fcc tive way wc work closely writ at uric cm nod icluding local

authorities the community arid the Envnonrr errt Agency

Irivostirug in waste water inrprove xi mts

We invest heavily in every aspect if our waste water proccss arid

network In 008 09 wc invested 300 rnrillior in this part if

our business and currently have ourid 600 schemes ran lerway

Mrnworth Sewage Treatment Works is our biggest ongoing schcmc

and one of the iargeat in the inductry The work has progress dwell

arid is nearing completion arid is intended tom rrabla cm to am ireve

highrr standords more efficiently ahead of the crew effluent andards

whrc come into force in March 2010 Other xampIes include

improvements at Leicesti Strike on rent arid Derby Sewag

Treatment Works am well as the completion ol our 18 null

rnrvestmcnt to bLmilo 21st me itury sewe network for Kerrilworth

We are working closely with govemr menl and agencrm on th

requrrenrent for us to take ownership of private scwers in our re ion

This wIl grow our sewer network ty rrcmr rid 02

sponrbIe use of energy

Our net energy use KPI measures how mnuc energy net

renewable energy generated by us wc orrsurre pr oga tm o4

water supplied waste water trc atm Our riot nergy use emarried

broadly in line with last year at 622 kWh/MI during this or

Although we have suec em dc ci in contmnui ig to rease ou nergy

use ocmn generation of renewable cnengt wis field back nctably at

Mimnworth Sewage treatment Wc nks where our investment in

improving effluent qciality
at the site has reruced the amor it

brogas we have bec ablc to predrcc therm dine yr or

sr



Bu nose revmw evc rn rent iter

In 2008 09 we undertook major pies ut work to alcu alt our

arbor emis ron for thE AMP nod and on ito AMPO Despitc

the so it eurd up ird pressure
of providuig water to more people

id meotink hher wate quality standards whk requirr more

enerpy when we ike ntu act unt both our investment in

renewabk technolopros md energy eftrc ren we have been

sucee.ful in avordn cpnfrcant prowth in rrergy cousumpti in

OV thc ast ye ycars

Look ng ahead to the next AMP wherc we face conhnued upward

pe scu cc our ret pr nhouse pse emissions are forccast to nmarn

virtually unc hangrd hetw en 009 10 2014 15 as result

of cr 2r

slur icr servi eta idards have also stun very portive

improvine its in he la nontfs

Res3ving jobs tint ti ne

Our mim is to rcsclw jobs on thor ustomc hist ra Ito us In

2008OY ar ved 96 first ti re job reolution ears pa ed

wito 85 in 200/ 08

his ps torr rar cc impioveror nt was dt livered through our 24/7

Oust mci Ooeritrorrs Service Cart eat Covc ritry
arid was base

upon impr vc ustorner sei vrr mod ups itorial pros esses

Build ng0n last yar prop ess we continued to iioprovc our

pert si ii cc in ustoroer service arid refine our proec as to find

mud op rational pr ib ems as quic kly arid effc ctvely as possiblr

arid we arc aehievrng uppc quart Ic perforri arise

Reducrnp customer or laints

We icc ceded in reducing written complaints by 4t from

151 Orn 2007 08 to 27066 in 2008 09 lhir bared on

written cu to nor complaints pc 1000 properties ano ir iprove

on last ysar% ed reaori of

Better all handling

In QQ 09 wu avr achieved 88 for our fist call resolution

tsr billing impr my op on ast years rest at We art Joys loping

the capability of II our teams through tomprehor srve upskillinp

prngiamnr coupled with our ontinuos improvtment programme

Improving ill cm tourer civic standard

Alongside our KI perfor marco rr tasu es we hays also improved

our ptiormmncc across Ofwat DO measures achrcvrng bctter

results in 006 spanst to wrrttc billinp quc Fee DO esp iris

to wrutter cc rriplainfs 008 met reidirips and 009 usto ncr

atistac tb with telef none ilis

lire year wc fit cd 443 31 utters fhru upl rr .ee neter or tion

cc Ironic which we eoritrnsre to promotc to our cc starne

In iddi run we have invested in our website to nprnve it ts thor to

become genuine 400 icr vee cent lit facility
to miar act

your at ou ft nhne is row lrvc iblir
rg

srstonrers to qu kI arrc

icily ew mud pay bills update details rbmrt mcter read ge ant

ins mart at tu ie that cmnvenis nt tar ft em It is is part of our

ambrtrou to iable our customers to ii teract wt us whc no ci tI ey

ed to arid in whiet evc way best suP them marl website

phonc letter or text messat

Locikrng abc ad our focus will be to keep improving Wr war to

orrunue gc rung rooms us or no sysh ant our peop

to itrrruc Ktng better mod hc tter at wI at flit cia

Addrossir the needs of vulnerable cist mm iers

While we retrvery pursus thoe who arc iSle hr uuwrl irre to pay

thc ii bills we 2ft flex bility to ttioss wtr enurnc ly strup le to pay

As mu suIt of the downturn ttrc eeonorr wc arc fir dint moore

pet pIe Os cd tielti We hive ated cit cat te to vely

sc ek out usto ers might cc tic Ip work rip togethie

cx garlic itionr such is tie Crtrieur Advrc Bure cm and Ooncr

tie Ssvero Tru of iust Fund is independent trust se cro tcm tic Ip

customers in serious ian rul hardstrrp hr arc usint of ioney

in trio Trust Lund inc remed ttrrs yc by LI or Irron to

iS Iliori Wc also continue to promore our Wits rSure taft to

cap Li rpe for vulnerable ustomnc re wt ha cv iter in Pr

Alt ng with the rest of the water rods stry we have learned cmli
with

the Moms Oftrc arid local paIrs
earictat ularies ii suppc it

rg
then

dOtrac lion hurpl my irtratmve Wc know ftc bogus caller 4cr

mnpanumes as reasoo to aro eotry to
pr

oples liar ns mmd vs

continue tc pmoiootr ur assword pratt ctm sc herr to all cit our

esusta rs to no sirs thenri thc air cheek tIre enisri it idenmtit

cf doorstep call is it aoytimiie

Nw caentctrors

Our otw car neutioos team rnarrales trcrrn ipplrcaucro to delivury

the conneutiaos of cc stamens to witer aol wa ft ito sc rvrc es

ho 2008 09 tIre ec000morc limnate has ulted in
line ui ths

hew of activity undertaker hi has he most sic rrrcant am the

provision
cit servree to dcvelo moms In resporicc to tht sr ox in al

pm
ssurc we Lu ive ratronahrsed aumr dep rtment to suigle cmpc ratmr

ba .e at ocrr aft sec ii It icester Witer 0cm trt IL en hamipes

ecrrtout to bcmilcl upomu improvenients in ur rformnmoec with

conmnec trim is conrrpleted withui 21 wonku day mnicmcasmnrg morn

86 in 2007 08 to 9O in 2008 09

ir



Developin sustainable service for customers

Se ving customers also means Inc king cOer hr long te mc interests

as wel her icrrrediotc concer is We conhnue to carntairr ftc

serviceability ot our asse lu me arcs carrying out the work

ice es cry in ike sure our water and sewe rate ystems deliver

reliable scrvre ii toe future for su tomei md th enviro cment

It takes ito corisiderati mn shove ground and below ground wate

md mwer ge assets Our most ieee ret asscs merit ol ows that we

have made pros ress and we aim te eorrhnue te do so

Focus on owest charges

We ire or cricitte Ito keep bills as low posrble for our

custo ice Maccaging our ope ratrorcal and ipital costs

key contributo to th

inancial perforncaicce

the past year has seen an unpmeedented perrod fdisruptiorr to

finarce ial marke Ic mdi ig to the so calls crc lit runclr and wider

ceo come cession The first half of the year saw inc meascd Pt

inflatio pm akmng at in September witti rapid tall is the second

tralf Annu P01 irrflatierr at March 2009 was rregativr

his volatility has presented number of challenge The economics

of ti Ofwt ulatury frarri wurs are xpmrcrely rrrkc tci PPI with

Ofwat tina deter cirnatiorc for both tota opcx arid capex set

2002/03 prices nd mdjusted by the rele varmt intl if on index cacti

year RPr feer opex COOl construetiorr price index for cmpex

We ice not costs in the fu ha of the year whir we works

hard to cota mc while suekm
ig

to obtain value from faIIirr ates in

ttre latter hilt In business such as Se ye rn front Waten where

there are ng Ic id times on procured items particularly nrc the

capital mv stri cot
pre gramme this challe ripe been difficult

Over the st nit term therefore our cost nse dies not quickly follow

th headline RH or COOl index

Investing sr our network

Year after year we invest improving the qual ry res Irene

arcd rnai tercance of our ictwork During OO8iO we invested

30 milliumc rcet of grants armeh contnhutiorms received nc

mairctah isp our ofrastruc turn etwork Capital expercditune

excluding spendimcg on infrastructure maintenarcec arcd net of

grants and contributions ived was 04/6 ncnl ion Gross capital

expenditure in iudirrg irrfrastn uc tore mairctcnanc expenditure

iris rease to 0630 mrrilliun

We are cc timg our obligations ore investments mcd making them

morn eff cii otly

Our apex gm cs vs final deter rn mtioii KPI meaaunes our

performance on managing the fin en cial aspects of ttne delivery ef

our cvestnuent pmograrscrrce tins mea.ures ttre percentage mrraicce

betwe eic our capital expeicdmture to iieet our hligatm ns for \MP/

id Ofwat final deter cinat oic

this is continuation of our wo ci 200/08 te sore otlc the ro called

inve stinient reillercoaster whe me mv stnaceict rises steeply in ye cro two

three arid berm of ttre AMP cycle hefo fal op off stc imply irc am five

Smoothing this out so that there is steac arrcount of nvestm ient

thmouphoert the five years is benrefic mal for scur contractors bee muse it

aIIow theme to plan their resources none easily arid cost effee tivemy

and for mis because we can gain from efti iemce us

WIir St we continue to be on track meet our regulatory obl gatmon

arid capital expe mcditume erge ts mm ionetaiy term is the mccci rapid

reductmomc rn COOl is likely tee lead er lower than anticipatec

ncgcnlatory capital value cap as we moeeed nito the fi cal yea of

AMP4 We remain foc.ued on the succcssfcnl delivery of thee

ahsolcmte levels of expencditume prerm mushy announced mlthu this

may resrmlt iii crc overall efficiency of less than he pnevrccusly

cmcourccech

As we move into Ccc mmd year of AMP we confmnuc to pmo mess

nun hem of metumic enhanc mg mmcves mnercts that will provide ye cue over

the ommgen terre hese moclcude turttce rene wable ene mgy gem enatiorc

the early development of capita plan for AMPS amid tlce new

Severn Iment Centre mc Coventry In all cases our focus ms or

delivering sustain chIn effmciens mes lowering ttme cost of oem

operations amid therefore pmovidi ig dccc or oem custom eems

Managnmcg our operating costs

Despite flee economrc pressures we mcmmm on track with ocr opex

vs fmnal detemmmmmmfron KPI wb mete neasurec tic vanranec between

our atest formal forecast of open if ing osts amid Ofw ts fina

de temmmnatmon for AMP4 1tre eec mt rapmd mcd ctionc urn 501 tcas

Ic to lower than anrtmerpated baseline fimcah dete nmniuat on tim

2008/09 bet we ave delrvcned arc outcome this year tt at urn

line th the absolute Iciels of expend tire prey ously targete

As we proceed into the fnnmal year oh AMP4 the recent rap

reduction in P01
likely to have sgnficanc nec pat ye mnccpae ocr

the antmcmpated haselmnce final deter ninatmorc We ha mve howev

accelerated some of our improve nrc ot plans and expect to mum

around 20 mmlliirc of restructuring costs in 009 10 which will

deliver around mullion of addmtro ial opematung cost avmmcg in

2009/10 beyond our previous pla cc id further cost efficiem ies ire

AMPS We memamo focused on the nueeessfc delivemy of one planes

and we ontnnuc oem efforts to ide itify umue additrona

ppomtunmt cs in this lower nfl mtmonc envine cement

Sc 5n0 cci



vol nt Water

Cipital ncess Qu ty

Our capital pro es quality KPI is nc in place and is working well

We achievcd rc defects on ha idover per 3100000 spend

educf on or last ye irs

he capital process quality measurt assesses our dc livery of high

ml services

to se ye property

Oui KRI cost to erve per property meas irrs the total cost

including operating cost depreciation irrfrnit ucture renewals arid

third party costs associati with sc lying single propt rty During

O0809 So continued to mat tair c0t bc that upports

p05/i in of ivn3 sonic of the lowc st biils ii ttre industry

Ma
grr

tra ie debt

We orrtnuc to anage our Li ide debt as efficiently as sihle

Dr spite Ire downturn in tire cc onc rrry our deb or days perfcrmance

improved from 3/4 days irr 2001/08 to 331 days this

irriprovenrent is result of ha icemeirts made tc uur debt

narrage isert procc including orr cu0torrers signing up to our

wife directschemc rrrike rynrerts lirecty froni their benefits

arrd an increao the range arid volume of outbound riressage

campiigrrs errcouragiirg ustomrs in dcbtto contact us arrd agrer

payment plans

Dc pite our irs proved dot for iys per fnrrnancc overall th

chalhngirrg concmk ninditions have seen an incrcasc in customer

inso vencies an reaf diffic oIly in collrcting debt over uric year old

As rcsult we in reased our bad debt ctrargc and it now rcpreser its

around 230 ci turnover up from around 1.9 last ar

er forroarice aga st our regulet ry obli itions

In 2000/09 we iriiproved our performance agaurst our regulatory

obligations KIt reducing the number of arc as with significant

issues to 100o iii was sig
iificar rspmovemerit on the i0o

achieved in 7/08

Prorr citing effec Ive regulatro

We have played an active part in developments in the regulatory

franrewonk and bcerr active in supporting and exploring the

devclopnrc rtot inrpettion the industry We have enrgiged with

tho Gave Review on Coiripetition and Innovation arid the Walker

Review of Chargr Ii particular wc believe competiti sri model

based on watc fra rig could work and we are currently looking at

how this might be devc loped in ordr to help address the balar cc

of water supply and demind on rational basis this may help to

re ducc thc icc or additional infrastructure ri sonic parts of the

urt whoie water scpplec ire lo arid therefore keo costs

low as possible for customcrs

fIr is one of the necornrrrc rid itrons or thr Cave Review Cavc also

recommends the sepanstiorr of ail activty arrd net uI con petitioo

fo on househ 3ds We bclieve that retail ompe tition is cci likely

to bring substant al be rehts fit is coup with co iipe tition for

resourcc arid should riot therefore be pu sued as an end in itselt

We have also spoken at events arid responded to insultation

cume nts on do range of regul rtory and or ipetrt on issues

with the aim of enc ounaginf the developrne cit the tramc work

ct the new challenges facing the ir dc stry

We continue to igage with tt ronn erit fericy to explore

th trade offs betweer the envuorinrerrtal boric its of mprov ng

river water quality and the
in

ieasccl or it roy usc tl is
irnipnovrnnic

nt

involves Ou aim is to afegcramd the needs of to enviroonier am
address climate change while kec ping our hills is low as pmsibk

foi ocmr customers

The interests of our ustorners aria cur iiivestors are inrextricab

linked we riced access to irrarrce to maintain rid improve our

services to custorriers arid lower finan
ig

osts rrean iwer bills

In the urrcr cc onomic environment bcith customers arid insestons

are plac ng increasing vilue or stability

As wc look forward the continuing urge capita investrric 01

pmogmamnmrr will drive further borrow ng uinem icr Is with our

nral Business RI in anticipating bormowinig req simeine it of aroure

200 million yea on ave rage over AMI Fm future visibility

of returns amid cish flow ame important in susta mrin investor

onfidence in Severn merit Water amid th wde wafer ec tom ke

el rment in this is the setting of an appropriate ost of capital which

nsumes that water renrains sufficiently attractiv von the long tern

to both debt and equity investoms to secure firrar
inrg

fcir ocir

planned investment pnugmamrne Our Fir Busirrc Plan assumes

ost of capital of 5.0 neal post tax onsistr cit with rnaintanimi

in appropriate edit citing to illow thc omparry Ii raise the fri rd

it requine te finan fcitume investment at reason uble mate and

dc liver an appropriate metum ito equity rio rstoms Ire oinpo ic rim

pants of the assumed cost of cap tal are real post tax cost of

equity of 110 AMP /.1O real post tix cost of leht 33
AMP4 0% and 60o gearing AMP4

Ire sue cc ssful execcmtio of our plans in the come cit AMP period

and the basis of our P809 Final Busirierc Plan submission to Ofwat

underpin our ability to

delivem sus ainable and pmcignesrvc dividend to our eqcmity

investors and

maintain an appropriate financial stru tune including sustai imni

strong investmemitgradm credf rating whicir ciii absorb the

nirpoct Scsicss rycle cFanrcs and niabk th0 uriJing mm

long tenni investment plan
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Focus on great peope

We are co omitted to improving oriteiuously The engagement
skit id working ivironment of our people Be low are oxlmples

of how work program xii and KPls eor tribute to improvements

thia area

lncreanng mployee motivation

In 2008 09 we achevc oui stretchi KPI employee mohvatrori

target of iin roving on last years 1/ We riesuie this KPI

thro igh to annual ernployec suivey and nec miii surveys to en

car on oir measure of staff morale and motivation

his exccl nt pertorw nec has hi en achicved in ye tr of

conti wed crnpha 01 the key cirablers hat drive our comnu inc nt

ghc et tandard lowest possibk chargc and eat people

It cue na1 lers or upskilling simplc roes sues that work an

improved workplace improved technology that works and being

ptid foi doi ig tle right things to our customcrs

Developi ig
the skills of ou peopli

We have wed on cut Thlishirig one way of woikin for all

our mc Ic md giving everyonc the encouragement toole and

tech uques to wo that way thi end we have her ii inc easing

the cccx uur iriariag is ano or me workforee

We have to nral success on arid tale manager icnt reviews through

tt yc an It is xc us reaches tcrc ss the organisa don so that we cart

identify id deve op lent to help people cc ueve their potential

Improving out manager tent skill

In 2008 wE muirchid the tins Manager is urncy to clarify roles

arid equip man mgers with the right skills tools and techniques to be

ablc to get he bust out ottheirtcams From the Cluef Lxi cutive to

the most jn mior roan mger all our managers now have oni ci mrriun

pncess of xianaging pertoimanee

Wr have launuhcd uddr sIng iii dO and rolled OLit behovirurdl

in xii for all employees It is part of our commitment to develop

modern workplace where wplr treat each other ir supportive

adu to adult way arid share arid levelop imprnvemc nt plans to

achieve both isiness md personal foals

Creating Irverse workforce

We arc eornrrutted to improving the diversity of our workforcc

Building on the work we hay alremdy donc ri 2008 wc set up

Diversey Working Group arid deve oped an action an rrr linc with

ur stated that diverse and riclusive culture is key factor

to smccessful business During the year we com nissiorred some

ciii rook work to her tr understand Our drvr sity per fcrmance

arid identify areas br improvement Our key diversity statistics are

available on our website id ci our Corporate Responsibility

Summary ripo

on iple rocesses that work

We have iritrodu ed lean rmiaiiagem nt pro tees ro our water

waste water and other business areas Ac res nIt our peopl in

water treatme it works sewage depots call cc ritre havc he or

abhc li connect wh it they do on clay by day basis to our overall

strategic direction and KPIs Arid cr tically they trove been given

thc encouragement tramrurrg mud ft ohs to start caking ttrerr own

improverirenits wittr the support of their ariagers This ii tim has

resulted in cost redcnctmor is improve cc ts mstc icr cciv arid

higher engageme it levels among ocn wnrktcircc

Wi are identifying arid fixing esues faster moore Crc icr thy arid

more fumidannmital gi tting more hrrmpc ight tint irne enim noting

waste from our processes Ac result or perform tee is

in proving cmi in termuptiomis to supply on mkages on meduc rig

icrgy use arid more To dmte amocnmd 1hOO of ourS 624 pmophe

move beer introduced to lie tools mid te hnrques arid are ri

using theixi in therm day to day work Building cn our succ es this

year wc will cc ntinue to invest ii our sat better faster wac of

working throughout the business are developing Ie cli mmige

champnonis id an acade my of experts tci help ensure irs way at

working continues to be cum way ol worki ig Alongside oci training

inn procc ss improvenic we ontinuc to vest devele ping he

echnrcab and professional qualifications of our people troupm

aoonc rmtnceshiios amid continucius hem
nirig

An improved wonkp aec

We arc nyc sting in our workplace to reflect the qcrahnty of thc way
we work creating great envmronrnc nts for meat pcopbe

Our pmnp nty portfolio includes /000 cites actors the 001 km

Severn lnenmt Water region As mmpcn ed last ycam we hmve be

wonheng to strategy etc reatnn gontfo of workspace for he

iciness at thc right cost the might quality of the might cmi it in

tIne ngtrt location arid held ton the ht period of time

hs mnchude the developriment of tfre new Sc venrn Inent Cc nt

in oventmy which is progressing cv 11 with nuniber of key

mrub wtones bcmng achiievcd in 200100L Sevimni Inc nt en ne part

of the programme of workplace nmpmoven emits to set icw sta mcfmrds

for our wcmmknng enrvinonments mid wit Ii plants to irnpbennnent lb cnn

across II ol our rennamnning sites

bmpnovc tech iobogy Lh it wo ks

In 2008 09 we aligned curb inv 2mnen to our eight KShs md
focued it on helping ens pnovndc ocnr day to my business semsic cc

none 4ticienthy arid etfectrvchy We also nomgan siP tie lit arc

around cc rvice delivery development rid strategy on the ci pply

side aid around our come bnmsnnesr gnoups on the demmmnd si cc

key ObJr ct ye to ens th it IT su ponD our bu mines

effectively is possihlc To this end are investing inn techmn logy

to nmprove key processes that enahhc us to wc rk better toge then and

improve cur performance in water waste water ustorinem mel mtionrs

arid our fnmnance HR and procurement functions key elernc nt of

.0



Do mess revs Sew re Ir nt te

invesiinern Jr SoP prugramrr and he process

ir ipre merit it will delver We have completed lhe detahed di sign

for this prngraie moe ar have begun tie unpk nierit Thor phase

We ire also ok
if

at how to implement new technology to upport

far more flexibl and re obile woikforce and set of wo king

piact rca so tha our poop can we as effectively as possihlc

horn wherever they need to be

Creating afu
p1 ice to work at the he art of our urn ii unent to

creaf ng great place to work We continually focus on improving

safety uaIity and standards loss the organCation

Ride cinf lot time inc ide nts

In 008O9 we mm roved our performance on or health and

sa ely KPI of lost time incidents per 10OO00 hours by 10
dewn to 0.43 eompired with 0.6t ii 200/708 In achievi ig

th significant improvement we be it our meaure of 0.51

Oc RIDDOR Reporting Injuries Diseases and Dangerous

Oc curre ncr Regulations rate is 0.33 30 improvement

on oui 001/08 ate nf 54

Dr nor stral in safety ii iprovement plans

La yeai we set out 10 point strategy plan on safety quality

and st iirnarus in it are importanT to us nis year we have been

case adng the plan through the orgairisation working cIo ly with

line manage aid fearr.s to prod ee the row safety improvement

acti in plans re fleeting the 10 po nts

Our Safe and Uwafe Acts behaviour management system is very

mec an active pat of tte way we build hehavi ural safety ito our

everyday busiries Work ttus ama is ac ye and eontinu ng well

with nore safety discuwinns taking place

In 2008 09 we had foeir British Safety Council aufils at variety

of facilities One ote ieee ved five stars the highest rade and

three received four stars We also cmrte red 19 of our busine aieas

On Roga Su ely for the rrLvci tiC of Ac cidei ts aYy na
1/ business aicas received range of awaids with an iverall

en aipany Cold Award for safety impre vernerits

Comprehensive ite afety review

We completed coinprchenave healtti and safe process review

of the crigineerin and operational assets at all our watei and waste

water sites in 00//O8 In total we surveyed 5645 sites rrirrg

008 09 we ea red out wide range of imp ovemenO prioritising

work based on the level of nsk

Oui enginee.nrg standards orgaiiisation coniinues to look at asset

safety We ha aeen working on more unified standaris for the

err inecring safety and de sign of our fufuie assets substa itial

prof ortion of the new design templates for AMPS rnntracts are

now place

Safty for suppliers

inn he year we he five supply forei -n for lie alth id

safety and ouality rrianageme nt ii rhie or ontia tor healtl

an safety one at It qua ity working day for supplier arid one

excavation contractors on the rises of ii voltage cable Arikes

Over 100 supplier coinpar have atten led one or ore ef the

forun across the year

Werking one team th our se pplieis

We are investing in ever strone elatiomehp vith ocr cent ictor

ann suppliers We aim nan age thm wI ole poly ctiain

respeensibly fiorn suppliers thro mph to astoi ic

We make sure are workng with rrnpon Sc suppimeis based

tI emr health amid safety erivirormient et iics an huni an rights tnae

nec omd We ar also looking at identfvirm are wI cmi our supplm

will he able to help us achme so noel aa ate tegic oblec lives

sueh as reducing ciur wbon footpm nt

Our award wmnming two
yc ar supply chain manager ient programnr

with Netting iam rent Un versity dr aws arti
it ants from throughoe

our business rid aun ecintractors and supaliers he
program-ni-ne

alloy

oemr employec contractors and suppliers ter work tc ethem on areas

joint mnmteresf mu positive envmromimcnt to deliver bems ness bench

Key outpeets from thms programme have almeady been mnrplcmented rm

the canaan this pern or are part of ccii riee3 arouma AME

Looking ahead

We intend to corrtinue to deliver on our cinrises arid 10 build on

the wmde anging penfcrmam ice mrnpmove nnents we iavc ad ev Th

2008 09 amnst oum KI Is arid in line with oum eight KOIs

We believe we rave subnnrtted high quality irral Susmness P1 an

for PRO9 that balances the intenc sts oh all stale holders custon en

employees suppl ems economic an eevmmo irnental repel ate is arid

mnveslors In the coming months wa lock fomw aid to coirtmnemimag

our preparations for AMPS md ading wont
rig

towards hrmal

deter am natiom of our arc

We imitend to ant neme womkng closely with eve nyoni ccincc nice ii

negu ate my dorms notably onrpeltion and th ad aptmon of private

sewe We wlc ome the se hariges and will make none we are in

tI beat posit ion to address these reform is fern en emslonie rs and

our shameholdem

Ir these ch allengi ceo ionamc lmnne wt eie qem rlmt prude amid

long tenni thinking aie at oremmune we rim te apply our robust

furading strategy ira order to ontmnue see or rip tic ii ance we rice

to fund investment ovet the next year amid bcyomrd

Above all we mmrtend to make seine we me orms anfly lookm it the

lone tenna stewarde limp of the busnme tea mason we atiriuously

improve standamds keep on lowering coals arie fu firm develop

our great pe ple mu the years ahead

Tony Wray

Chief xc utmve

avemu Iment Wale

rim Ar iI ii Ai
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ifrastru fiure nwwc rk nelude in tOe tota was net nt rctructurc

rerrewac exp nditure of 30 nrtion

Adjustuig for minor trniinj differences and inodifx atioris to the

AMP rpital progran roe notified to Ofwat through thc hange

or it ol process we ontinne to he in tn to aetrieve this

proci irncn with apital expenditure net if pianO cont ibutions

oth cone UK OAA2 cf 2.0 bi to

Severn Trent Servmes

Tu row Sevc rn Trerrt Serve es vuas 329 in lion in 2000 09

up 001/08 Prc fit bf cc intere tax arid cxc Wfional

iO ms eared ry 4/ to P30 lw

Corporate and other

rrponit rid Other Busin ss tnrncver was down to

44 lion arid is row inc stly nt rnal ha froc our eaptivi

ins ran ore nan tnrnrnver is eliminated on consolr lation as

tlr aptive exists to insi ne Seve rn Tmnt oup risks only irrd does

riot wrifi any exte ral busines it finalisation of the iris rr inc

pasitior in relation to the 200/ floods was the primary ison ton

uride rwrrtn loss of arou id 2.0 mnillior bern recordc in tire
yc

ir

whe forms part of tire iilliorr loss re ate tc of er bnsines es

/oi po ate oven reads inc nnted to 12./ million 410.9 rrrrllio

In tot ii or ate arid othe ne red loss before nterest tax irid

cxc pfioriam items ot 16.4 nilliori loss of 11.2 million

Excepton tems

Th.re wi net exceptional ge in the year to 31 Marei 2009

if 18 lliorr 068 en ho comorisirig

fleslmue iring costs of 14 .6 Ilion coi iprising charge of

13 riullion in Severn ent Water ar rsrrrg
from the programme

re strum tuft and rca ig the husrrress charge of million

in Sevc rn rent Ocr ice an inc from the write down of the

Srrr rrtmcter bnsincss to its expe ctcd recove rabie arno rrt and

ciedit of 1.2 million Cc rpoiat arisin fron thc rele rse of

provisior and ljnstme ts to ak proceeds foi be sin sses sold

previo is nerds

net credit of million arising frome the flood inc dcm if

th it at eted Severn re nt Wate water mwc ra ire wo

during th surrim if 200/ the inelu Ic irrsui inc ceo eric

of 14.4 million less costs of 3.1 rriiiioa

ci rarge of million ar sing fr inn ye iii Ti erit Watc rs

settleinc nt and Insure of tfr ulato issues that rose

pie ous years tins rnciu les oni inposed tine ef 2.4 ni llio

arid costs cit nnllion fronr two offe nees relating to in kage

ata supplied to Otwat 001 arid 200 erd provisor of

million for additional conti rbutro is to the Sever ii ror

Char rtabi rut as ogre ed with Otwat and

in Sc vm rent Services credit of 01 rcnl ian mmmi mg from tic

ie case of the cxc ptruir ii pioviru made iii tlrr nrc year reiatmn

fe third party ai cods

the group holds rot ret rate swaps witfr riot ne tro
pm

icr al

anrount of /61 mrri on under whi ays lx ii es

re eives floating rate interest it es ip are eai med fire wok at

f0i due and are nevaineo at ach hal Inc sheet date the ante

iii fair vale are taken to losses/gan on fin inc rainn tm ire its

profit arid low ace oemmrt Dun the year ene ras been Ice ase if

80 mnftorr iii the tarn vainc crf tt cc in
ret cnn fits nec ause nkc

rtecest ia were iwer at 31 Manch 2009 than at 2008 nil nec

the difference betwee ii market rates arid rc ate ible he

tixeo reps or tire swaps as in crc as ci This loss has bee nrc fia gee mo

osses/pamn on anie iii instr un cc see rote 12

It important to note that we site to rd typic Ily do hole toes

swaps to maturity Further tfmrs ot rsl mover out and over

ttrc life if the swaps then frangr Ii etc ut becaue he sw

will have come fair value whe ri 11 cv nrmatrrre

As set cci On table clew ad sting fort etfe of the ae of

small she amid moving the impact of chanting cxctrange

rat irk ten like tumeiv was up areiumrd 050 anct pnfmt tie to

nt nest amid cx er nonal itcinc was
emp

1/

2009 2009

ii

As ri oomt ci

ST PUS

xriinmflnm Stilt iS

xct amigo rife
imni

act

Ic business

Adios ed ke for like

310

AS 1081

19
L2 10

Retemmn cxi nves ed
apmtai nemmr ned aro md 15

Net frnance costs

he nonap net fmnairc coOs worn 196.4 simon ipan

/4 mihion rim the
pm non penmeid he iii me as an ely rtue te

higher finance costs on pension oo rgatmo is lie ii cc sc as

me scmft of trig icr ci moun Ii ite whilst the expee feel me mn on ass As

was lower because value of mv st re ts eec inc liii sirs

339 3130 3O5
pintly offset by redractiomr in thc interest chance cii ii

hr kod
125 4O .9 ht te 42 ir ill on rS mihto ma ac ter he lower RI am the latter

pant of the year Air ii crease in gross ccl re0ulted in fir

26 297 26 24
cterr sOot cl oaf of fioI2 ii nc shott ccitt nyc tot

ratw ft II dcrmmng the ye an

3192 31/5 217 436
Losses/garns on finanOa instruments

tie oup caes mrotes mr omeign urmemicy cinder its IM IN

programinmne arid uses cress cur emr swats her cc cit Ihc pro cc ds

to sterling lIre effect of tirose swaps tF at rntere st aird ne pal

paymen ts on the homnerwim ga an de no ruin ateif mr sterli
ug

md me

time cianienc risk is nun mtc he foreign come n.y note ane wa3
are me ccrcted in tire balance sheet their ann aloe0 and Ih char Me
nr fair values are taken to lossesi iris iauie al

ii
struuiic mit in th

profit arid loss aceomnnl Since the an ci tIme swaps os ly notch

those of tIne cnnidi lying rOes uc haag te hnoaj cc

amid opposite lIme
omit

mr fain value cii debt aim wrr mm .hc

mecernc6iatiomr of mnovcn en Is in nrc tee tit in note 36



Business review financial review

Taxation

Cash flow

Cash generated from operations

Net capital expenditure

Net interest paid

Tax received/paid

Other cash flows

Free cash flow

Dividends

Net issue of shares

Change in net debt from cash flows

Non cash movements

Change in net debt

Net debt at April

Net debt at 31 March

Cash generated from operations was 643.5 million

E645.9 million Capital expenditure net of grants and proceeds

of sales of fixed assets was 465.0 439.6 million Net interest

paid increased to 173.9 million 150.1 million

Net debt at 31 March 2009 was 3797.0 million

3432.8 million Balance sheet gearing net debt/net debt plus

equity at the year end was 80% 74.0% Net debt excluding fair

value adjustments expressed as percentage of Regulatory Capital

Value RCV was 57.3% 57.2% based on RCV at 31 March 2009

of 6198 million f5922 million The groups net interest charge

excluding gains/losses on financial instruments was covered

3.7 times 3.7 times by profit before interest tax depreciation

and exceptional items and 2.4 times 2.5 times by profit before

interest tax and exceptional items

Treasury management and liquidity

The groups treasury affairs are managed centrally and in

accordance with its Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy

Statement The treasury operations primary role is to manage

liquidity funding investment and the groups financial risk

including risk from volatility in interest and to lesser extent

currency rates and counterparty credit risk Its activities are subject

to set of controls commensurate with the magnitude of the

borrowings and investments under its management The board

determines matters of treasury policy and its approval is required for

certain treasury transactions

It is the groups strategy to access broad range of sources of

finance to obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost

compatible with the need for continued availability

The groups policy for the management of interest rate risk requires

that no less than 45% of the groups borrowings should be at fixed

interest rates or hedged through the use of interest rate swaps or

forward rate agreements At 31 March 2009 interest rates for some

2009 2008
82% of the groups net debt of 3797 million were so fixed with

weighted average interest rate of 5.9% for weighted average

period of 12.1 years This policy has been implemented by entering

643.5 645.9 into portfolio of long dated interest rate swaps that hedge the

465.0 439.6 groups economic exposure to changes in interest rates However

173.9 150.1 these swaps are not designated to particular liabilities and hence

1.1 76.2 do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting under lAS 39
1.3 1.2 Consequently the swaps are revalued at each balance sheet date

and the change in fair value is taken to the income statement under

4.4 21.2 gains/losses on financial instruments In the year ended 31 March

158.8 147.3 2009 80.5 million f24.3 million was charged to the income

6.2 8.2 statement in respect of such fair value movements

148
The groups principal operating activity Severn Trent Water

is long term business characterised by multi year investment
216.0 144

programmes The strategic funding objectives of the group must

reflect this and the liquidity position and the availability of

committed funding are essential to meeting its objectives and
3432.8 3127.6 The group therefore seeks to attain balance of long

term funding or commitment of funds across range of funding
3797.0 3432.8

sources at the best possible economic cost

Profit from continuing operations

Group profit from continuing operations before tax exceptional items

and gains/losses on financial instruments decreased by 6.4% to

273.5 million fL292.2 million Group profit from continuing

operations before tax was 167.6 million 192.4 million

The total tax charge for the full year was 223.6 million credit

of 18.2 million of which current tax represented charge of

52.1 million E56.2 million and deferred tax was charge of

171.5 million credit of 74.4 million including an exceptional

charge of 185.6 million in relation to the phased withdrawal of

Industrial Buildings Allowances

The effective rate of current tax on continuing businesses excluding

prior year settlements and exceptional items calculated on profit

before tax exceptional items and gains/losses on financial

instruments was 24.7% 25.6% The decrease in effective rate is

as result of the reduction in the corporation tax rate to 28%
higher year on year capital expenditure leading to greater level of

capital allowances and other adjustments

Going forward we expect the effective current tax rate for 2009/10

to be in the range of 24% to 26%

Loss for the period and earnings per share

Loss for the period after tax from continuing operations was

56.0 million profit of 210.6 million

Basic loss per share from continuing and discontinued operations

was 24.6 pence earnings per share 89.7 pence Adjusted basic

earnings per share from continuing operations before exceptional

items gains/losses on financial instruments and deferred tax were

92.7 pence 97.8 pence see note 16

22 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009



in thc context of the creoit cruncn Inc group renians in

strong liqu dity position today In July 2008 the group renewed

200 million bank
facility

for five yr arc and in JariL try 2009 it

borrowd 400 million in sterling bond iscuo At 31 Maieh 2009

it had in oxmss of 640 million in cash and cash equivalents and

500 million of undrawn five year committed bank fat ities

In April 2009 the group obtained further 150 million committed

facility Iron the European lnvcstnient Bank Avurage debt maturity

is now approximatcly years years

The group is well fundcd for the investment demands of the

rer rair dec of the AMP4 pcriod and for the demands that will come

with the next Ofwat price review from April 2010

The group uses financial derivatives solely for the purposes of

managing risk associated with financing its normal business

aetivi ice he group does not hold or issue derivatve financial

instrurrents for financial trading urpoces he group uses limited

number of currency swaps and interest rate swaps to redenominate

external borrowings into the urreneies and interc st rate coupon

required for group purposes

The groups business does not involve significant cxposure to

foregn exehai ge transactions ho group has invcstments in

various as etc denominated in fort ign currencies principally tie

US dollar rid the euro the groups cuirent policy is to hedgt an

cit merit or ins current tiansianon risk associaieo with cci lain

foreign currency denominated ass As

The ong term credit rating ol Severn Trent PIe and Severn Trent

Water Limited are
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Fur ther de ails of the groups borrowings investments and hinancial

instrumen% are contained in iote 22 to the accounts

Pensmns

he group has two defined benefit pension schemes of which

thc Severn front Pensinn Scheme SIPS is by far the largest

Formal actuarial valuations were ast undertaken for the STPS as

at 31 irc 2007

On an lAS 19 basis the estimated ret position before deterred tax

of the or dnfinecl bennfit pr nsinn schcmes we deficit nf

233 million as at 31 March 2009 This compares to deficit of

1260 in lhio as at 3J March 2008 See nofe 29 for details of the

year on year movement in this rct position

total cash contributions to the schemtc in the year wore

42.0 million 255.6 nrilhion
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rice ml itioir

Salary ir crc cc

Dis ourrt ate

cns on ii creaec in paynicrlt

xpc cted re tim nit equibec

Age to which current pc riciorienc gr

ire xpcctrd to live

cc to which future pcrisioi crc uricntly

agrd 41 cc ted to livt

The following table sumrnanises the estimated impact on schir ire

liabilities resulting from changes to key to trial assumptiors whAt
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Mort tity Increase fc xp ft

by yea

On in lAS 19 basis the funding level at 31 March 2009 was 8i%

91% As at 31 March 2009 the grnups drfined bent fit pe wit

schc mes had total assets of appro imately 0/b million id total

liabilities of approximately 308 trillion

Exchange rates

the trading results of oversc as subsidiaries are translated to sterling

at tI average rate of exchange rt hing during he yeam and ftc net

assets are translated at the dc sing rater thc balance shce date

Accounting pohcies and presentation of the financial stat ments

The groups financial statements inc prc pared in iccordanec with

International Financial Rcportin Siandards that have been atifred

by the F.umopean Union

Supplementary mfo mation

for supplementary information in Riding the groups prehimi tary

results presentation see the Severn men wobsite

www sever ntrerrt coot

2009
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Governance

assesses the skills knowledge and experience currently

represented

identifies any skills knowledge and experience not adequately

represented and agrees the process necessary to ensure

candidate is selected who brings those qualities and

reviews how board performance might be enhanced both at an

individual director level and for the board as whole

When considering new appointments to the board the Nominations

Committee oversees the preparation of position specification that

is provided to an independent recruitment organisation retained to

conduct global search In addition to the specific skills knowledge

and experience deemed necessary the specification contains

criteria such as

proven track record of creating shareholder value

unquestioned integrity

commitment to the highest standards of governance

having the required time available to devote to the job

strategic mind set an awareness of market leadership

outstanding monitoring skills

preparedness to question challenge and openly assess and

an independent point of view

Newly appointed directors must submit themselves to shareholders

for election at the first AGM following their appointment

Performance and effectiveness reviews

During the last financial year the board participated in formal

evaluation of its own performance and that of individual directors

To ensure independence and objectivity the review was undertaken

by Praesta Partners LLP

The three core conclusions from the formal independent review

were that

the board is effective across key aspects of its role and

supporting processes

the directors wish to continue to move the emphasis of the

boards attention from detailed operational issues to long term

strategic issues and

the board want to structure the future corporate meetings

calendars and content of the agendas to support the move

in emphasis

Collectively the board is satisfied that the actions undertaken

during 2008/09 have aided it in achieving its objective The board

is also satisfied that it has all of the necessary skills experience and

qualities to lead the company

Remuneration

The Directors remuneration report is set out on pages 40 to 53

Interests

No director had material interest at any time during the year

in any contract of significance with the company or any of its

subsidiary undertakings

Conflicts of interests

The Companies Act 2006 the Act rules on directors conflicts

came into force on October 2008 These rules provide

statutory duties

duty not to accept benefits from third parties

duty to disclose any interest in proposed transaction or

arrangement with the company and separate and independent

duty to disclose any interest in an existing transaction or

arrangement with the company transactional conflicts and

duty to avoid conflicts of interest situational conflicts

unless authorised

The Act allows board authorisation of situational conflicts where the

directors have the relevant powers The shareholders of the company

approved change to the articles of association at the 2008 AGM to

allow the board to authorise conflicts

In September 2008 the directors were requested to complete

questionnaire to determine whether any actual or potential conflicts

needed authorisation The board fully reviewed the completed

questionnaires and noted that no conflicts arose

For any actual or potential conflicts that arise post October 2008
the following procedure has been adopted by the board to consider

and if it sees fit to authorise situations where director has an

interest that conflicts or may possibly conflict with the interests of

the company

the director will notify the Chairman and Company Secretary of

the actual or potential conflict

the Nominations Committee will consider the notification and

determine whether it needs to be proposed to board meeting

for authorisation and

the conflict will be considered by the board at scheduled

board meeting

Full details of the conflict will be sent to directors in advance of the

meeting If there is major conflict or it is decided that authorisation

should not wait until the next scheduled meeting the board would be

asked to authorise the conflict by way of written resolution

In addition to reviewing any conflicts notified and proposing them for

authorisation by the board the Nominations Committee monitors

changes to previously notified conflicts and any conditions imposed

Half yearly reports are made to the board of all directors conflicts and

directors are reminded from time to time of their obligations An

annual review of conflicts is carried out and this is incorporated into

the year end process of verifying directors interests
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Insurance and indemnities

Severn Trent purchases directors and officers liability and

indemnity insurance to cover its directors and officers against the

costs of defending themselves in civil proceedings taken against

them in that capacity and in respect of damages resulting from the

unsuccessful defence of any proceedings

Terms and conditions of appointment

The terms and conditions of appointment of the directors are

available for inspection by any person at the companys registered

office during normal business hours and will be available at the AGM

Board committees

The board has established four permanent committees to assist in

the execution of its responsibilities and has delegated some of its

responsibilities to those board committees The committees assist

the board by focusing on their specific activities fulfilling
their roles

and responsibilities repdrting to the board on decisions and actions

taken and making any necessary recommendations

The terms of reference of the Audit Remuneration and Nominations

Committees the Principal Committees comply with the provisions

of the Combined Code and are available for inspection together

with the terms of reference of the Corporate Responsibility

Committee on the companys website www.severntrent.com or

may be obtained on written request from the Company Secretary at

the address given on the back cover

Each of the committees has reviewed its effectiveness and terms

of reference during the year and any necessary actions have been

identified and reported to the board

The committees of the board their roles and membership are

as follows

Audit Committee

This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee and

the work it has undertaken during the year The purpose of the

committee is to assist the board in discharging its responsibilities for

the integrity of the companys financial statements the assessment

of the effectiveness of the systems of internal controls and

monitoring the effectiveness and objectivity of the internal and

external auditors The full terms of reference for the committee can

be found on the companys website www.severntrent.com and are

also available from the Company Secretary

Baroness Noakes Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of England and Wales is former senior partner of KPMG and

former member of the Court of the Bank of England Richard Davey

is the non-executive Chairman of London Capital Holdings Plc and

non-executive director of Yorkshire Building Society and the

former Head of Investment Banking at Rothschild Sons

The board is satisfied that these directors have recent and relevant

financial experience

The Chairman Chief Executive the Finance Director the Director

of Internal Audit the Director of Regulation the Group Financial

Controller the Company Secretary and the external auditor normally

attend by invitation all meetings of the committee Other members

of senior management are also invited to attend as appropriate to

present reports In performing its duties the committee has access

to the services of the Director of Internal Audit the Company

Secretary and external professional advisers

The committee follows an agreed annual work plan It reviews with

members of management and the internal and external auditors the

companys financial announcements including the annual report

and accounts to shareholders and associated documentation

It places particular emphasis on their fair presentation and the

reasonableness of the judgmental factors and appropriateness of

significant accounting policies used in their preparation At each

meeting the committee receives report from the Director of

Internal Audit concerning the companys systems of internal control

including any significant new issues and actions taken on previously

reported issues The committee also reviews the annual work plan

for the groups internal audit function The committee reports to the

board regarding the effectiveness of the groups overall systems of

internal control including the risk management systems in relation

to the financial reporting process

The committee additionally reviews the integrity of the processes that

ensure the quality and reliability of the information within the annual

regulatory return June Return of Severn Trent Water Limited

submitted to the Water Services Regulation Authority Ofwat
and the integrity of the processes that ensure compliance with the

requirements of the annual principal statement submitted to Ofwat

including the intentions and the rationale behind tariff proposals for

the coming charging year and compliance with licence Condition

The committee receives reports from the Reporter an independent

professional appointed by Severn Trent Water Limited and approved

by Ofwat The Reporters role is to act as professional commentator

and certifier on the regulated activities of Severn Trent Water Limited

The committee receives reports from the external auditor and

regularly holds discussions with both the internal and external

auditors in the absence of management The Chairman of the

committee reports to the subsequent meeting of the board on the

committees work and the board receives copy of the minutes of

each meeting of the committee

Internal audit

The groups internal audit function reports to management on the

effectiveness of the companys systems of internal controls the

adequacy of these systems to manage business risk and to safeguard

the groups assets and resources The internal audit function and

Director of Internal Audit are employed by Severn Trent Plc Through

the Director of Internal Audit the internal audit function provides

objective assurance on risks and controls to the committee

The plans the level of resources and the budget of the internal

audit function are reviewed at least annually by the committee
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key CR risks and opportunities and to monitor progress The full

terms of reference for the committee can be found on the

companys website www.severntrent.com and are also available

from the Company Secretary

The Corporate Responsibility Committee assists the board by focusing

on the following activities reporting to the board on decisions and

actions taken and making any necessary recommendations

review the effectiveness of the groups policies and systems for

identifying and managing the health safety environment and

community risks that are material to the group including those

reports made under the groups Whistleblowing Policy

review the policies and systems within the group for ensuring

compliance with health safety environment and community

regulatory requirements

review the performance of the group having regard to the impact

of health safety environment and community decisions and

actions on employees communities and third parties and on the

reputation of Severn Trent and

review the quality and integrity of corporate responsibility

reporting to external stakeholders

During the year the Corporate Responsibility Committees agenda

included such items as the review and recommendation for

approval to the board the companys Health and Safety Policy

Corporate Responsibility Policy Community Policy Environment

Policy and Whistleblowing Policy approval of the groups annual

Corporate Responsibility Measures and Targets and the review of

the introduction of new Employee and Contractor Safety Rules for

the group the group supply chain process and the consideration

of report on reducing the groups carbon footprint

More information on our approach to corporate responsibility can be

found at www.severntrent.com/corporateresponsibility

Corporate Responsibility Committee Members in 2008/09

Dr Bernard Bulkin Chairman Martin Houston

Sir John Egan Tony Wray

retired 23 January

Secretary

Kerry Porritt

Corporate Responsibility Committee Attendance in 2008/09

Sir John Egan 5/5

Dr Bernard Bulkin 5/5

Martin Houston 1/1

Tony Wray 5/5

Nominations Committee

This report provides details of the role of the Nominations

Committee and the work it has undertaken during the year The

main purpose of the committee is to assist the board by keeping the

composition of the board under review and conducting rigorous

and transparent process when making or renewing appointments of

directors to the board It also advises the board on issues of

External auditor

Deloitte LLP Deloitte was appointed auditor of the company in

2005 Following the annual external audit effectiveness review

the committee recommended that the auditor be proposed for

reappointment at the annual general meeting Deloitte audits all

significant subsidiaries of the group

During the year the company reviewed and approved formal

policy on the provision of non audit services aimed at safeguarding

and supporting the independence and objectivity of the external

auditor The revised policy aims to provide greater clarity on

what services may and may not be provided by the groups

external auditor

The policy sets out the approach to be taken by the group when

using the services of the external auditor including requiring that

certain services provided by the external auditor are pre-approved

by the Audit Committee or Audit Committee Chairman It

distinguishes between those services where an independent view is

required and that should be performed by the external auditor such

as statutory and non statutory audit and assurance work

prohibited services where the independence of the external auditor

could be threatened and they must not be used and other non

audit services where the external auditor may be used Non audit

services where the external auditor may be used include not

exclusively non recurring internal controls and risk management

reviews i.e excluding outsourcing of internal audit work advice on

financial reporting and regulatory matters due diligence on

acquisitions and disposals project assurance and advice tax

compliance services and employee tax services The approval of

the Audit Committee or its Chairman is always required if non

audit service provided by the auditors is expected to cost more than

100000 or if non audit fees for the year would thereby exceed

the amount of the audit fee

Annually the committee reviews information provided by the

external auditor confirming its independence and objectivity

within the context of applicable regulatory requirements and

professional standards

Details of the amounts paid to Deloitte for audit and non audit

services are provided in note to the accounts page 68

Audit Committee Members in 2008/09

Baroness Noakes Chairman Richard Davey

Dr Bernard Bulkin

Secretary

Kerry Porritt

Audit Committee Attendance in 2008/09

Baroness Noakes 4/4

Dr Bernard Bulkin 4/4

Richard Davey 4/4

Corporate Responsibility Committee

The purpose of the committee is to provide guidance and direction

to the groups corporate responsibility CR programme review the
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dir 00w conflicts of nte est and independence the ful terms

of ieterence for the committee can be foun on the coinpar

wcbsm sew rntrent em and are avamlabe hem the

Co iipariy Sc crete

he committee ke unde revs the balance of skits on the

board and he knowledgc cxpcrmenec length of rviee and

pe rfoi inc of the direr tors It als cv ews then xtcr ial interests

with view to identifying ery al pcrccmve or potential conflicts

intent ats ncludmng the timc available to commit to tht in dLities to

the corr my fit ornnimtfee monitors the independence of each

non exec utive lirt ctor and makes recommcndations concerning

such to the be ard The rcsults of these cvie ws ar irnpoitant when

thc hoard orisiders ste mon plar ning md thr elccton and

rr appointr mit of dirm tow Me nibers of the committee take part

in any disc issiorw oiicerning flit own ir urnstance

Cur
rig

the year the board accepted thc commiltees

ieee xi nendatons that Cord Fryett loin the boaid hr appointment

of Gordon
ryett as new ion executive dircctor frormi in OO9

so helps mainta the balance of the board in the or tcxt of the

rc tireine it of Martin Hou0on iring 009 In rcspcct of ryetts

apg ointment the eorrnnittet engiged an exteri al search age ncy to

lit it den ify suitat Ic indidates with the skills arid capabilities

icquire ant assis with the
pre pa ation of an inte view list

Nominations Committee Members in 2008/09

Sir John Lpan Chairmai Martin Lamb

Dr Bernard Bulkin Baroness Noakee

Ri hair Divcy tony Wny
Martvi lot stan

Secretary

ona Si nt

Nominations Committee Attendance in 2008/09

Si John Lean

Di Bernard Bulkin

Thard avey
Ma tin Houston

irti aneb

Biioness Noakes

tony Wmay

Remormeraf ion Comm ttee

he Reniuneration Cornmi tee assists the oard by focusing on the

tollowing .tivities reporting to the board on decisions and actions

taken and making any ecessary ieeonnmendatiorrs

the re mc neratmon policy id its applicatior to the CE arm

ext cutivr reports to the CEO

he adopt on of annual arid longer term ncentive plans

dete mi nation ef evels of rewani to tnt CEO arid appioval of

reward to ext cutmv me p0 fir to the CE

guidance to the Chairman on tI annual cvalu tion of the

CEO and

the cornmunme at ion to shareholi ers on remuneration po it Th

the ornrnmttee work on behalf et the ard

ci thee details on the work of thn nm tee during the year

can be found in the memo it ration report an pages 10

resolution to approve thc Direc tors reir urvu tion po
be proposed at the ACM

Feumuimeratiomr Comment tee Menrbers in 2008/09

Richard Davey Chai oman Sir Jet Lg

Dr Bernard Bul err Mart Boo tong

mona Sm th

Remuneration Committee Attend mace in 2008/09

Sn John Lgan

Dr Bemnaid Bulmn

Bit hard Davy
Martin Hoceton

All directors hive access to the

Secretary mom Smith amid t.h

Compmny Secretiry is respons

non ext cutive directors

The appointment amid egn Amen or the ens pany he crc tory

matter consideration by the boa as whok

he board bce delegated all nespo isihilit beyo id ts matters

reserved to the CEO to achieve the comp any stm niegy the tO

Fwly Wrat is cmn3evenred to take 31 dea Jrms and acne that

further the companys strategy and which in his judgment an

reasonable havuig regard to the CEO 1mm ts set out in the

eompany Group Author satio Arningeixients

he CEO is st pported by the xec utive nmanagemnent team

who together comprise the sec utmve Cornmnttec Dunnig the ye in

tIme Ext cutive Committee comnipimsed ttme cxci utrve dmrectoms .nd

senior executive naniageis mesponeble to key operational am

entral font tiomrs

FIre Executive Ctmmmittee is chain the CEO my Wnay and

ovemsees toe oevelopiiient anu ext common of the Sew Fre rib

strategy It also has accountability ton iclimeving busnmess ne ulIs

the tem ems of nefenenee of the xc utive Committee ire avail ble on

the companys wehsitc www.sevenntrent.com cii may be ottaincd

on wnttenm nequ st from the Company hens tory at thr addn ss

given on the hack cover

BC
55

3/3

33
/2

3/3

33
33



Sharehoder 2008

Nttworkrng

Pragramme

Talent review and succescor planning are annual company wide

prosesses dcsign to give Severn Trcnt clear and objective view of

the capability of or cuirent and potentia leadersh populatior to

deliver our future business pc rformance

They also enable the oiga iisabon to keus its company wide future

Ic adeis ip development activity and develop succc ssion plans for

enior roles

Ir 200/ 08 tIe processes included Lxccutive Committee to middle

ii ai ager evels cross the group and inployc es at the next level

dew in 2008 The cxec itive team identified fioin the talent

revew ndivide als With tI potential to develop as successors for

their own roles arid for role or rolm in their individual leadc rship

teams As result each Executive Cornre ittee membei iae

uc csinn plan lughlighting both roles wh cc wc are at risk as

there is no or little nteirial resource iden tied is successor and

pot nfial future re les for discussion with individuals identified in

the ccessinn p1 in in order to inform thc developrrient plans

lndividuals iderti icd as having putentia to bc future leaders are

thc invited to partk ip rte in range of development ictivities or

rograin ncs de ending on their needs to ensure we maxirnise the

ability to rcalis their potential

Code of onduct

Our Code of Conduct ovides common hamework tor all Severn

Trcnt cmployc es irrespectve of their spec ific lob direct employer

oi bc ion

Further details of the Code of Conduct cai bc found on ou websitc

www vernE cnt.com

Governance ot subsidiaries

board of the listed company Seve rn lient Plc is the same as

th it of its regulat th water subsidiary Severn trent Water limited

hV decisien sia taken in 2007 whn it as aecided to infegiaiP

the management of the listed core pany with thc management the

regulated itty gain eater focur transparency and

effectiveness around the regulated bLis ness

tie two companies operate as disti ict legal entities The boards

have regard tc the Severn irent Plc Ffoard Governance document

md the Severn Irent Water Li cited Matter Reserved to the board

and are issetcd through the management of scparate agendas

mectings and rriiriutes by the Company Secretariat and are advised

in their nieetings by thc ompany Secretary where ippropriate

Subsidiary coinpi boards are requued to be ianagcd

sen nulnurlv with iesueet to all legal fiscal and adrnin trative

matters In partic ular the relationshrps hetwee Severn Trerit Water

limited the rcgc lated entity and oui non regulated companies

such as Severn Trerit Services ire monitored and controlled to

nsurc that we comply with our Ofwat obligations on irms length

transai tions Ce rtain overseas subsidiaries may have specific

obligations to comply with local requiier ants and the Company

Secretariat will define these

Group Authorisation Arrarigerr its

The Group Authorisation Arrangements GAA ire the framework

through which the Severn trent Plc boaid muthorises the right

people at the right level to take important decision as we mana

legal financial arid adrriinistrative issuec fhrout herd the group th

GAA are designed tc facilitate good control efficient decision

making and demonstrable compliance

he flow of authority is hum the Severn ent Ic board In respec

of certain issue the delegated ajthonit\ is seibjec to an ohlgatior

to woik with specialist Corporate Centre Departments suet as

Taxation Treasury Fiuauee and Company Secretariat that piovide

additional expertise and group wide perspcctve

Reportuig obligations

As publicly listed company the company has range of reporting

obligations to meet which ire set out by aw and regulation The

company is committed to the promotion of investor confidence by

taking steps tOn its power to ensure that trade in its sec unties

takes place in an efficient arid informed market

The company recognises the importance of effective come unieatior

as key part 01 building stiareholder vale4e and that to prosper arid

achieve fTowth it roust among other thi is ea trust of

security holders erripboyecs customers upplie sand com cunities

by being open ri its commuriic ations md consi Aently delivering or

its eominitrrients

the company announces its results on half ymary bars and

complies with its iequirenientto make infc rim management

statements

Shareholders

The board recognises the iiriportanc of representuig arid piornotimig

ttie infernO of its shareholders and that it is accou itible to

shraret elders for the performance and activities of the company

Ii Omtutmormal sh mrehcilders arid analysts

Presenfatior are made to shareholders rid analyst following the

release of the interim arid year nid results tic CE and inane

Director meet shareholders during the year tie Chairman id if

appropriate the senior independent nor executive director are

available to meet shareholders if requued The board receives

written feedback following rnieetinigs
urstifutme nal share iolderr

Retail shareholder engagerement strategy

The hoard hs as active harehorder enggenient strategy the

main dc ments of which ire set out belc

Ttme annual report arid accounts is the nmncmpal means of

commemnmicacing wit tm share holders co nmmunications were

approved by shareholders as an alternative memns of receiving

company mrrforniatmon at the 200/ mmii mua genemal rnmeetirig
As at

tilt iv IC cc 01
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Netwokin
Progrmm

31 Marcn 200o 4// snarenoldcrs receive company
commurricutiors via electronic mcthods whilst 323 hamholders

continue to receive communications by post

Tb companys website wwwsevc rntrent.c om was redesigned

and rc launc hod in May 2008 The relaunched website is now

easier to avigate and use and contains an archive of annua

ports together with other information rekvant to investor his

includes iiprchensive share price intormaton hriancial results

and financia cale idars

1mm July 2009 to ii dde with the companys final dividend thc

conrpany offc ng Dividend Reinvestment Plan DRIP Details

at tIe DRIP wcra cet to shareholders in January arid dune 2009

arid are available on the compiny webste and the wc bsitc if

oi Registrars

Further 3rarc holder infoiniat ion ccn be found on pages 1b to 116

Anr ual Ocr eral Meetinp

The Severn Trent Plc ACM will take place at pm ur 21 ily 2009

it tIre International Convention Ce Crc in central Br iiingham

ACM shareholders opportunity to feedback to the company
on rforma icr nanagcment and the way we work ii very

direr fasluon through the way tfiey vote either irr favoci of the

solutmen agavst the resulrCen ci by withhold thuir ote

rhat it does iot cocint either for or against It is also shareholders

meet nformally with directors md sernur

management bfore and after the mectin arid ask formal questions

during the rneetin

the board encourages shari ho ders to aCer the ornpanys ACM
and xercise their right tn vote hc notice of meeting and related

papers are mnt to shareholders at least 20 working days before the

meeting Separate reso utions arc proposed un each ci bstant illy

separate issc

Pree itations are ciade on the groups activities id peiformnammce

pnnr to the formal business ot the meeting Share holders have the

opportunity ti ask questions uf the hoard and present the views

The Chairrne of the Aud Corporate Responsinility Remuneration

nd Nonmi nations Comrnitte es tog Cher with all ottrer directors will

atter the ACM

In 008 ft cmpany introduced electronic votin at the ACM
allow ng shareholders present at the riceting to register one votc

per sIr irm 3d lie ompany inte rids to ontirmue with this initiative

at tI 2009 ACM Results of th poll on each iesolution including

details of the votes for and aga nst egmstercd prior to and at the

meeting pnxy votes and the number of abstentions will be

displayc the meetirrg

the poll reu ts and list of questions and answers from the ACM

nll be nrade available on our website ifter the meeting

The exhibicion area plarmned tor the TUY ACM will or Icide

informative and some inte ractive stands based aroui sc ecticmn

of thc companys operational arc as the buincss aol ippi actr to

corporate responsibility

At the 2008 ACM 92 shareho ders registered or Seve rn its

Shareholder Network ng Programme The programmrie allows

small number of shareholders the ppoitc nity to find out frs hand

how the company works

the 2008 site visit was fully attended arid shareholde spoilt day

vnmitmrig one of our Customer Relations smtce and sewage trea merit

works in Derbyshire accompanied by two of ocir executive due lors

Oui shareholders att edud ill munibn a4 pesctatiomis in iiiid
them ot the business improve iienb be ig mm de in car of thc

Custonie Relations Water arid WaCe Water service ireas ins ilso

had an opporturety to observe arid oeak witt ur employees

We received very constructive leer back from thc visits and tI

boird encourages those sharehold attending the 2009 AC to

registc for this years visit

Internal ormtrolc

The board ias overall responsibility for the
grc ups syCem of internal

control and for reviewing its effcctivenes tIe board reviews tie

effectiveness of the system of intern ml control including inane al

operational eomphimnce arid risk mnimoagemncnt at least annual in

uccordarmee wit the requirc meots cC thc Combined Code arid he

guidance set out within it hc system internal control is rev ewe

for eftectiveness arid ade quacy The internal control system ca ony

provide reasonable anci not absolute assunnmce against nateni

mnisstatem nt or loss au it is designed to man ige rather than

eliminate ttme risk of fai une to achieve business oblectives

he board reviews the risk mi ma cent process and tie

offer tiveness of the system it inter nal eon trul through the Aud

Committee The board also keeps umidc nrc view way in whcl to

niharmcr the omitnol and idit unman emits in thi gnnJp hc dim

Committee receives reports every months mmmii the CEO on the

significant risks am uncertainties aced by the group an assr ssment

of the effectiveness of ontrols ovem cacti of those risks and an action

plan to improve controls wheme this has been assessed as nice ssary

Any significant control weaknesscst iat have bec mm identified as

requiring remedy are also reported to the Audit Comnmmttc Th

internal audit depamtmnent provides ohjectiv assurance mmmd adeice on

risk managenment and ontrol The cxfemrma auditors also nepor on

smgnmifmc ant control issues to this eon mmii ttee

board comitimnis that oceducs providing am onoomng preces

ton ideritmfyimig evalcmatmng amid niagmog tie ommncmpal mis cc id

umicert intmcs focd Ely thc group vc bcrm ii place tb am

to 31 Munch 2009 and
rip

to the date of appmnval of the

Annual Reprint

vcu ml -C cit cur is
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Ca adirg Company pcrtoriianoc

bjoc von risk map ong an

porting

Osk maps

Oepartmont mama ckvduaIn

asses ents

tory asct prorect

knurl prccnss

Rsk Management

Severn Jr it cornea auto fundamental revicw of rio approach to

rkk managc nmen whir or ims ncr around 18 rr onths ago

The journ to plement the proc eec star ted wrth our core

bu onE actrvihee and the onrpany now rrn lamer trng the

approar Ii throug mout our sabstanbal hang programme in order to

give ronsretent approach to the management of risks across all

key progra mmmcs

process includes both top down and bottom up dr merits arrd

eetablrshed repo Imp thresholds he risk marragc cent proces

focuses on str mtc gre ri ks managr by cxccutrvc arrd senior

marragerrrcnt wrth process tar esr alatron at dgnrtrrant risks

dc mtitred at lower cycle

The ap roach the company rtses rs objertive driven makrng thrs

usef ii tool for both busrnrss planning ar prrfr rnrarice nrmrragcnrent

and the conrpan me to increasc the use of risk mmrragement

inforn matron wrthr thc so processes

the nor of graphic ml rr portrng resenta the sk rnformat on rn

simple and understandable format the reports include an

assessment of ft effectrvencss of controls whrclr allows

manac ment to focus attentron an those areas reqrrimrng ttre

most rnrprovome

On srx rrronthly bass the Executrve mod Audr Corirmitteec rear rye

risk map hrghlr Amtr rg the key risks tar ad by the group together wrth

cha rgc in risk profile report illus rating how the rrsks have rx overt

ovc the last six months includrnp new risks identified tvk5 closed

changes in tlrr sr ssment of frnancial rrrrpact or likelihood of the

rrsks changs in the ovr rail assr cement of control offer trveness

ml rmation corn rpleted rrrrprovemr nt actions and an overview

of key trans ot rn progress In addition the hoard and other

car mrmmrttees mccc ye det tile rnfonmatron on pr ru ir rrskc rdentrfred

throughout the ym or

1urrng thc yeor thr board and the xeratrvc aid Audit Committees

have rear ived relevant rc ports to allow thrr rn to consrdc and

monitor our ky risks ard uncertaintes Ihe key rrsk tfremee whrchr

wr arc currc ntly facing and high evel sunrmary of some at our

responses to thrse rrsks are descrrbr rn the table on page 33

More drtailed rntormatiorr orr opt antic financial rrsk factors can be

found on pages 84 and 85

Key to impacts

Finanrial

II Health Sotrty

yr in re it is huildirmg aba oven mc tr imrwork basr

clear orgmrmieotranal stmucturo and decrsron making sour pohir ice

and standan arid assu mce of he anctr orimr The boord mnd

othcr key stakeholdr rs mer trarmsparr nt nit madolagy whir

de nyc ra armd validates the outer tie of act vrt es

mc company exper roles to be perforirmed iii Ii mc wrtfm spec tic

annual oh bjeetives Ernplciye co perfarr ming their roles properly

preparing and reporting outcomes arm mc and to the nr quired

standard is key omponenmt in our Ascuiarrce rarrmework

The company is working to enrbctd the 0mph nec yr riticatiar or

pemfairnance artivitie in Sevr rn Treat imese are within ousnrmcss

areas and some mcs within dnocrcte fu mc tiorms Ffmrse contirm tha

apr ratiormal act ivrtrr lmave berrm pertarroc pro oerly in thr lute

Lastly the ornpany nrraiiitains arm irrdepr mmdc it perspertve on thu

overall In anmewank by obtaimmi ng cnnfimnmitianm th mt tIm govemnar icc

nurture is workinrt properly In Sc venmm Trr nt tire is obtaimred

primarily fmanmm the mntemmmal audit fummc tioim anmd tht extenimal aditor

In ondcn to provide on appropriate undo starmdinrg of how these

iespommsibihitmr acme togettren fan Sevc mu rent the camparmy has

developed description of thr key elemrnts over wtnch assnmancr

is required by the board hfmis nomainto ed Ly the Dimcrtcn of

Intennvl Audit or baha at thr xaemtrvc

nmap details the areas over wlmrch vemmm Tient has dec ded tn

gomrm spr rind assurance Ifmesr cray vary tram ii yr am to year Thic

mitenia by wlmnch each area tr assuranrr is cc cctrd are

potentially danmiaginrg to reputation

maternal firmarmr al compact ond

Iiirkrri to the corporate KPIs

Internal audit will canfimnm the detail of tic assunc rice provision

to cover

who is responsible

what is the actvity and

how is this recorded

mtemnal audit deliver an audit planm to crnnfinmn ttmat key busincss

risks are hr ing nmmmtngated It also delnvene sprcilir tested apnmnomms

an timase incas fan whir it os functnr responsible

Ri manmagenner process

Board

iimmrtns

dxc mtmvc

omimm ttc

Ut ok

nvnmonmnmemntal

Regulatory

Bra md rrputatnamr

Operational

ye
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Coy rr ant

lhe direr tore present their report together with the audited tinancial

statements of the group for the year ended 31 Marc 2009

Pnnupal actvty

The principal act vity of the group is the supply water and the

treatment and disposal of sewage

Details of the principal joint venture associated and subsidiary

undei takings of the group at 31 Marc 2009 appear in notes 20
and 411o the financial statements on pages /7 and 103

Busir ess review

Inc Oh tirrnan statement me rJhier xec unives review the repoit

arid performance reviews for the groups main businesses and

the hnancial review on pages to 23 provide detail infonrnatior

relttin to thug oup and its strategy the operation of its businesses

and the results and financial position for the year ended 31 March

2009

Ic tails of the prior pal risks and unc ertamnties facing the group are

set out in the Goveinance rport on pages 32 and 33

All of the above ore incorporated by it fererice in and shall be

decreed to form sarI if this repoit

Rech rd dedopment

Expenditure on research and development including amounts

capittlised as tarigthle fixed assets related to research and

development amounted to million 2008 49 million

Treasury management

The disclosures required under the tin Value Directive in

relation to the use of financial instruments by the company are set

out in note 22 to the mr ounts ott pages /8 to 87

Post baance sheet events

Details of post balance sheet events arc set out in note 39 to ie

group financiil atements on page 102

Divdends

Art nIt rim divdend of 26 29p per ordinary share was paid

on 16 January TOO he directors recomme nd final dividend

of 41 DSp per ordinary share to be paid on 31 July 2009 to

shoreholdeis on the re ister on 19 lune 2009 his would bring

the total dividend for 2008/09 to 6734p per ordinary share

2008 6563p he payment of the final dividend is subject

to hareholdei approval at the ACM

Capta structure

DetaiN of the amhorised and issued share capital together with

details of the move ments in the companys issued share capital

dunng the year re shown in note 31 to the financial statements

on page 95 The company hs one class of ordinary sI ares which

carrie rio rightt fixed income Lich share carrie the right to one

vote it general nmeetings of the company he issued nominal value

of the ordinary shares is 100% of the total issued niornin ii value

of all sham capital

There are no specific restrictions on the size oF holding nor

on the tnansfei of shares which are both governed by the general

provisions of thc articles of associ ition arid prr vailing Ic giciation

The directors are not awaie of
iniy agree tents between ho ders of

the companys shares that iy re suit in restrir lions on the transfe

of securities or on voting rights

Details of employee share schemes ire set out in note 35 to the

financial statements nit page 97 or sha us held by he Severn Trer

rriployee Share Ownership frost the tre stee abstains fiom zotin

No person has arty special rights of on rol ove the companys

share capital and all issued shares are to ly paid

With regard to the appoint noent arid replacement of direr tots the

company is governed by its articles of acsociaUon the Cctmbined

Code the Companies Acts md related pislatiori hr attic es mat

be amended by special resolution of the hareholelers the power

of directors are described in the Board Ccvernane docu zmermt the

rmticles and the Governance repeirt on page 24

tinder its articles of asociation the directors ave authority

ssue up to 110316091 ordinary shares subletto the aggregatc

nominal amount limit set at the 2008 ACM

here are number of agreements that tke el oct after on

terminate upon change of omit rol of connpamiy sue Er is

commercial coot rae ts bank loan greeomeots propenty lease

arrangements and employee shanc plans None of thee art

considered to be significant in terms of their likely innipact on the

business of the group as whole Furth intone dim etors are

riot aware of army agree meots between tie company and its

directors or enmployees that provide for en mpensatmoo ton loss

of office or eniployniment th it occurs because cit take over bid

Directors and ther interests

Details of changes to the hoard dum rig CJt and of th dirt to

offering thenmmselves for reappointment at the AGM ire set out on

pages 24 arid 25

Details of directors service agreements set emut the Dinector

remuneration report on page 48

the mote rests of the directors in the hare of the company are

shown on pages 51 to 53

Biographies of the direr tors currently serving on ttmc boa et

out on pages 34 and $5

Drectors mdemnities

The eornmpany articles of association ovmde fiat directors of the

company shall be indemnified by the con mpanmy against any costs

mm
conned by in carrying out therm ic in luding defemmefing

arty proceedings brought against them ansi ig nut of the positions

as directors in which they are acquitted on judgnrient is given in mm

favour on relief from any liability is grant to ttieri by cocmrt



Supplier payment policy

Individual operating companies within the group are responsible for

establishing appropriate policies with regard to the payment of their

suppliers The companies agree terms and conditions under which

business transactions with suppliers are conducted It is group

policy that provided supplier is complying with the relevant terms

and conditions including the prompt and complete submission of

all specified documentation payment will be made in accordance

with agreed terms It is also group policy to ensure that suppliers

know the terms on which payment will take place when business is

agreed Details of supplier payment policies can be obtained from

the individual companies at the addresses shown in note 41 to the

financial statements on page 103 Trade creditors for the group at

the year end are estimated as representing 39.3 days purchases

2008 38.1 days purchases

Contributions for political and charitable purposes

Donations to charitable organisations during the year amounted to

352201 2008 412471 Donations are given to charities

whose projects align closely with our aim to promote the

responsible use of water resources and waste water services which

provide the opportunity for longer term partnerships In addition

we provide donations to employee nominated charities through

matched funding scheme and health and safety reward schemes

We are also committed to supporting WaterAid the UKs only major

charity dedicated to providing safe domestic water and sanitation to

the worlds poorest people

In response to the floods of July 2007 Severn Trent Water

established 3.5 million recovery fund for Gloucestershire

During the 2007/08 financial year 1.6 million was paid to the

fund During the year under review further 1.9 million was

paid to the Flood Relief Fund Of the 1.9 million paid during the

financial year approximately 40000 2008 1.1 million was

paid directly to charitable organisations in the Gloucestershire area

The remainder of the donation to the Flood Relief Fund was paid

through Gloucestershire local authorities and loucestershire First

partnership between public sector bodies and local businesses

to support other recovery projects

During the year provision of million has been made for

additional contributions to the Severn Trent Charitable Trust

as agreed with Ofwat

Severn Trents policy is not to make any donations for political

purposes in the UK or to donate to EU political parties or incur EU

Political Expenditure Accordingly neither Severn Trent Plc nor its

subsidiaries made any political
donations or incurred political

expenditure in the financial year under review

Under the provisions of the Political Parties Elections and

Referendums Act 2000 the relevant provisions of which are now

contained in Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006 shareholder

authority is required for political donations to be made or political

expenditure to be incurred by the company or any of its subsidiaries

in the EU and disclose any such payments in the annual report

The legislation gives wide definition of what constitutes political

donations and
political expenditure including sponsorship

subscriptions payment of expenses paid leave for employees

fulfilling public duties and support for bodies representing the

business community in policy review or reform The company has

therefore obtained limited authority from shareholders as

precautionary measure to allow the company to continue supporting

the community and such organisations without inadvertently

breaching the legislation

At the 2006 AGM shareholders gave the company authorities to

make political donations or to incur political expenditure in the EU

which would not ordinarily be regarded as political donations up

to an aggregate annual limit of 50000 each for the company

and its subsidiary Severn Trent Water Limited Pursuant to those

authorities during the year ended 31 March 2009 the group

incurred costs of nil 2008 nil Those authorities will expire at the

2009 AGM and accordingly the board has decided to put forward

resolution to this years AGM to renew the authorities to make

donations to political organisations and to incur political expenditure

up to maximum of 50000 per annum As permitted under the

Companies Act 2006 this resolution also covers any political

donations made or political expenditure incurred by any

subsidiaries of the company

Substantial shareholdings

As at 26 May 2009 the company had been notified in accordance

with chapter of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the

following major shareholdings

Name of holder

Percentage No of

of voting rights ordinary

and issued shares of Nature of

share capital 977/19p each holding

Pictet Asset Management SA 7.601% 17718717 Indirect

Legal General Group Plc 5.991% 14162139 Direct

Invesco Limited 5.078% 11980630 Indirect

Newton Investment

Management Limited 5.049% 11934674 Indirect

Barclays Plc 3.608% 8412304 Indirect

Authority to purchase shares

The company was given authority at its AGM in 2008 to make

market purchases of ordinary shares up to maximum number

of 23548575 shares Similar authority will again be sought from

shareholders at this years AGM No market purchases were made

by the company during the year ended 31 March 2009

Employees

The average number of employees within the group is shown

in note to the financial statements on page 69

Severn Trent believes that diverse and inclusive culture is key

factor in being successful business Apart from ensuring an

individual has the ability to do the job we do not discriminate in any

way and make every effort to ensure that those with disabilities are

able to be employed by us We ensure that training career
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dcv lopment end prornod opportuniti are avatabk for at cur

mpIoces irrespctive of thi ir gc nder race age or disabAty

he group ac ivc ly ones ura es employee nvolVcment and

consult Awn end laces mph isis on kr eprng its mployc en

informed cf it activity oH financ ii performance by way of

fin and publication to taft of all relc vant informahon and

rporate annonnc ements To hr
Ip devc lop employees interet in

the company perform incc Severn front offcrs two employee

sharc pUns the Severn Troth Sharesave Scheric an HM Rev nue

and Customs pproved SAW plan is offered to UK employees on

an innual bas hc Severn Ti ent Share Inc entive Plan approved

by 14M Pev nue irici Ci sicms rn The en anni vil award nf heres to

Severn Frent Hr arid Sevrn Irent Wrtoi Limited employces hised

on perforrnaeee ag inst tie KPls

urll or det of arrangements relating to employc involvement are

provide or ur web3H wwwseverntnnt com

Auditors

In tIre ise of car of the persons who arc dirc ctor of the company

it tic date whc this report we approved

fir as each of the directors is aw ire fbi me is no mIs vent au fit

informat on of which if ompari auditors are uriaw ire and

hi lirir thr taken ill the sif ps that he/she ought in

ave taken as director to make hiirwelf/hersclt aware of any

rc levint aud iform itio md establish that the ompany

anditor ire awa of that intormaton

Relev it mudit ormation means information nec ded ty the

anys an nt irs in connec ion with oreparing their report

onfir rnatior is given and should be inter ted in ice rdani

with prcrvisic ns cit siction 34/A of the Companies Act 1985

Leloitte LI ridicatc its willingness to continue iudit irs

reolution to rcappornl thcm will be proposcd at this years ACM

The reappointment of Deloitte LL ha been approved by the Audit

Cornn rttc whi will ilso bc responsible for dc tc in ining iH audit

ee on behalf thc directors

Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited

Regi latory iccounts for Severn Trent Water Limited arc prepared

and sc it to thc Watc Services Regulatory Ar thonity copy of

These ac counts will hi available trim the websitc of Severn Trc it

item Limited wwwsfwater.r uk or on written requc st to thc

Cor ipariy Sec retiry at the address givc on thi back ovc

thu ncr charge for this pLiblication

Come concern

groups busi ies activities ogether with the factors likely to

ePic fits itume development perform ianee and position are set out

in the Chief xcci fives review on page arid he business reviews

of Severn trent Water arid Sesc mn front Services on pages to 16

and 1/to 19 Tfr financial position of the group its cash flows

liquidity positr an arid borrowing facilrtir ire de cubed mi the

Ii ian uI Review on pages 20 to 23 oups objectives

policies arid proc esses for managing is apital arid it finmnc rat

risk nianagernent objectives am desenbc cf in the Financial Pc view

mid in the Cover nanrce report on pages fto 33 ietails of the

groups financial rostrums nt tic dging ivitie arid cxposore to

credit mi arid liquidity risk ire Ic scribed in no 22 to ftc group

financial stmtements

The grcups principal opmitrng subsidiary Severn lrentWatei is

mcgnlated long term business charactcrrcd by multi year rnvestmne it

programmes he groups strategic fcrndim ohjc etives mc fleet thi

The group tli refore eks to attain hi nec of long term funding

or ccummifment of funds am inn mango funding at the heat

possible economic cost Average debt mu itunity is years md thc

effective avc mgi interrst cost during thc year was 56% The grou

mm strong lrcjrrrdity position with 64f rnrllrc in cm arid qu

reserves and 500 million of undrawn committed bank fac lities

which are expected to be scrffrerent to fund its investment amid cash

flow needs at Ic ast until March 2010 in the micumal course of

bun ness During the year the group raised 400 llron via

sHrling bond issue

Severn Trerrt Water operates in an industry that is umrently ublec

tc economic regulation rather than market com ietition Ofwat the

economic regulator fras statcrtomy oulratron to set prrc limits that

heleve will cable the wHen conpanr4s to iOaOc tHu

aetivitim As consequence the directors bclrc cc that thi gmc up is

well pliced to manage its business risks succcssfully despite the

cummemrt uncertain economic outlook

After making enquiries the imeetow havi ie somiable expeetatic

that the company and the group have adequatc resouners to

oritinue in eratronal existence for the foreseeable future

Acm ordrngly th continue to adopt thc orng incern basis in

preparing the annual report and acccuurr

Annua Genera Meeting

The ACM of the company will hr held thr Intemnationar

Comrvenrtron Centre bmcad Stmret Birmmrrrgharn BL 2LA at 1pm on

tuesday 21 July 1039 the notice convening the meeting togethc

with details of the busirriss to be consrdc red arid explanatory nofe

tom each resolution is distributed separately to shari holders It is

also available on the company websrtr www sevemntremrt om

By order of him hoard

Fiona Smith

Gerier al Counsel and Company Secretary

23 May 009
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Base sala for incbvidua oirrctois are reviewed an luafy

by the Ren neration Committee and the effe om Jo

he company polk is to set the 2ary for ach cxc

director having rega to the mark rot than for ci pilar rok ir

publicly quoled companies ef comparable size and so far at

prac tic ah undertaking imilar activiSts Salaries arc set with

rc teiencc to indivdual perforrnaricc experience and contribution

togcthei with developments in the rc levant eniployrnent rnaikct

and iitc mn rd ahvitics

ihe committee has given dot consideration tc the curicnt economic

Ii ziate cu rent arL practioc gardng executi salary rezthws

and the broader employee salary review policy at he mpany

With this ir mind it has chosen to adopt gcneral zero increase

policy fri the base saiarics the exec utive directors at this tn

At the hme of the Chief Executives appointment the coinmitk
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Below board remuneration

In 2008/09 there were eight executives immediately below board

level who were paid salaries of between 100000 and 250000

per annum

Salary 000 Number of executives

100-150

151-200

201-250

The below board level executives also participate in the same

incentive arrangements as the executive directors The annual

bonus plan operates on the same terms as the executive directors

with the exception that 33% of any bonus earned is deferred into

shares and there is other than for the President of Severn Trent

Services no Severn Trent Services performance metric The LTIP

operates and the proposed Share Matching Plan will operate

on the same terms as for the executive directors

All employee share plans

Through variety of share schemes employees are encouraged

to hold shares in the company

This includes an all employee Share Incentive Plan Awards are

currently made which include performance condition based on

achievement of the 20 KPIs Employees of Severn Trent Plc and

Severn Trent Water Limited participate in the plan

For the year 2008/09 awards of shares to the value of 463 will

be made to all eligible employees

The company also offers an all employee HMRC approved SAYE

plan on an annual basis and periodically reviews the use of other all

employee incentive vehicles

Hedging of awards

Details of the companys shares that are held in trust on behalf of

participants of certain of the employee share schemes are given on

pages 52 and 53 In respect of the LTIPs and the proposed Share

Matching Plan the companys policy is to purchase and hold in

trust 50% of the total number of shares that could potentially vest

from all outstanding LTIP awards The requirement to purchase

shares is calculated and the purchase carried out shortly after

each annual award

In respect of awards made under the companys Share Incentive

Plan all the shares taken up by employees at each invitation are

normally purchased and placed in trust immediately

The company grants SAYE options over unissued shares always

operating within the dilution limits contained in the scheme rules

The committee is satisfied that the overall dilution limits provide

sufficient headroom for all the companys share schemes

Pensions

Of the current executive directors Andy Smith and Tony Wray

participate in the Severn Trent Pension Scheme The scheme is

funded HMRC registered final salary occupational pension scheme

which provides

normal retirement age of 60 years

An overall pension at normal retirement age of two thirds of final

pensionable salary which for executive directors is defined as

base salary only subject to the completion of 20 years

pensionable service

Life cover of pensionable earnings

pension payable in the event of retirement on grounds of

ill health

dependants pension on death of two thirds of the

members pension

Andy Smith and Tony Wray participate up to the level of the scheme

specific earnings cap which in 2008/09 was 117600 They are

provided with cash supplement in lieu of pension entitlement

above this scheme cap at 40% of their respective salaries

Members contributions are payable at the rate of 6% of

pensionable earnings Early retirement is available after the age of

50 with the consent of the company Any pension would be subject

to reduction that the Trustees consider appropriate acting on

actuarial advice to reflect the expected longer payment of the

pension In the event of incapacity.early retirement is available

on an unreduced basis allowing for pensionable service to age 60

Under the Trust Deed and Rules pensions in payment in excess

of any Guaranteed Minimum Pension are guaranteed to increase

in line with price inflation subject to maximum of 5% each year

In the calculation of individual cash equivalent transfer values

allowance is made for such increases

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009 47



Governance Directors remuneration report

As disclosed in last years remuneration report the company

reviewed its pension policy for directors and employees as result

of the Pensions Act 2004 Finance Act 2004 and the results of the

triennial valuation of two of its main schemes during 2004 As

result of this review new executives are offered an allowance

expressed as percentage of base salary to fund their own pension

provision The individual is able to choose whether the allowance is

paid to the companys registered defined contribution scheme

taken as cash or paid to personal pension arrangement This

reflects the wish of the committee to remove future exposure to

defined benefit schemes for senior executives The new

arrangements apply to Michael McKeon at 40% of base salary

Martin Kane is member of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme

WPS Section but opted out of the scheme in June 2007 He

receives cash supplement of 30% of his basic salary in lieu of

accrual for future service from that date While he no longer accrues

additional years of service for pension purposes consistent with the

legislation Mr Kanes accrued benefits generally continue to be

linked to his final salary or 161000 plus RPI from 30 June 2007

to the date of his retirement if higher and scheme benefits are

preserved in relation to ill health retirement and death in service

His normal retirement age is 65 although early retirement is

possible prior to age 65 with the consent of the company but any

benefits relating to service accruing after December 2006 would

be subject to an actuarial reduction

Tony Ballance is member of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme

Pension Choices section which is the companys defined

contribution scheme Dr Ballance currently contributes 3% of salary

and the company contributes at 30% plus further 2.5% in

respect of death in service and ill health benefits The normal

retirement age for the scheme is 65 although retirement prior to 65

is possible with the consent of the company

Directors service agreements and letters of appointment

model service contract was approved by the committee in 2004

and updated during 2007/08 The main terms of the contracts are

summarised in the table below

Policy

12 months from either party

Maximum payment in the case of redundancy or

termination in breach of the agreement by the

company of up to and capped at 175% of base

salary which is calculated as conservative

estimate of the value of salary fixed benefits and

on target bonus

Any payment will not include amounts in respect

of awards which have been made under the

companys Long Term Incentive Plan over which

the committee retains discretion

Mitigation Any termination payment will not be made

automatically but will be subject to both phasing

and mitigation unless in the circumstances the

committee considers it appropriate to achieve

clean break through payment of lump sum
in which case it will require some discount for

early payment

Change of There are no specific contractual payments or

control benefits which would be triggered in the event

of change in control of the company

Contract

dates Executive directors Date of agreement Effective date

Tony Wray 20 May 2008 March 2005

Michael December 13 December

McKeon 2005 2005

Tony Ballance June 2008 23 July 2005

Martin Kane June 2008 30 September

1975

Andy Smith June 2008 January

2005

The committee believes that the contracts provide as much

scope as is feasible to protect the interests of shareholders when

negotiating termination at which time it would address the

duty of mitigation

Tony Wray and Tony Ballance are subject to reappointment as

executive directors at the forthcoming AGM

Provision

Notice period

Termination

payment
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Chairman and other non-executive directors

The remuneration policy for non-executive directors other than the Chairman is determined by the board within the limits set out in the

articles of association

Remuneration for non-executive directors other than the Chairman comprises an annual fee for acting as non-executive director of the

company and additional fees for the senior independent director and chairmanship or membership of the committees The annual fee was

increased to 42500 in 2008/09 from 40000 The additional fees have remained the same and can be summarised as follows

Corporate Responsibility

Remuneration Committee Committee
Nominations

Chairman Member Chairman Member Chairman Member Committee

Additional fee per annum 10000 15000 3000 15000 3000 10000 3000 No fee paid

Non-executive directors do not participate in share or bonus schemes nor is any pension provision made

Non-executive directors normally serve three terms of three years They do not have service contracts but their terms of engagement are

regulated by letters of appointment details of which are shown below

Chairman and

non-executive directors Initial appointment Current appointment Current expiry
date

Sir John Egan October 2004 January 2008 31 December 2010

Bernard Bulkin January 2006 January 2009 31 December 2011

Richard Davey January 2006 January 2009 31 December 2011

Gordon Fryett July 2009 July 2009 30 June 2012

Martin Lamb 29 February 2008 29 February 2008 28 February 2011

Baroness Noakes 29 February 2008 29 February 2008 28 February 2011

subject to the requirements of the companys articles of association for the reappointment of directors at AGMs

Sir John Egan is subject to reappointment as non-executive director at the 2009 AGM In addition Gordon Fryett will stand for election

as non-executive director having been appointed to the board since last years AGM

Senior

independent

director

Audit Committee

During 2008 Sir John Egan was paid fees of 250000 for his role as Chairman increasing from 230000 paid for the prior year He

does not receive any additional fees for committee memberships Sir John is provided With company car but does not participate in any

of the companys pension arrangements share or bonus schemes

As explained in last years report from April 2008 the board decided to cease requiring directors to take proportion of their fees in

shares and instead now leaves decisions regarding the holding of shares to individual non-executive directors
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Governance Directors remuneration report

The text and tables that follow comprise the auditable part of the Directors remuneration report being the information required by the

UKLA Listing Rules 9.8.6 and 9.8.8

Directors emoluments

Basic salary and fees

Annual Total Total

cash BIKs1 bonus2 Other3 2008/09 2007/08

000 000 000 000 000 000

Chairman and other

non-executive directors

Sir John Egan Chairman 250.0 26.4 276.4 256.3

Dr Bernard Bulkin 58.5 -- 58.5 56.0

Richard Davey 70.5 -- 0.4 70.9 68.8

Martin Houston left 23.1.09 37.9 37.9 43.0

Martin Lamb app 29.2.08 42.5 -- 42.5 3.4

Baroness Noakes app 29.2.08 57.5 -- 0.3 57.8 4.8

John Smith left 29.2.08 50.4

Executive directors

Tony Ballance app 2.10.07 166.0 8.2 124.6 13.5 312.3 130.9

Martin Kane app 2.10.07 182.5 3.0 137.2 69.9 392.6 160.1

Michael McKeon 418.8 3.6 315.2 15.1 752.7 586.2

Andy Smith app 2.10.07 247.5 3.6 185.4 67.1 503.6 204.8

Tony Wray 440.0 3.6 333.7 144.0 921.3 620.5

Rachel Brydon-Jannetta4 left 29.12.06 102.0

Cohn Matthews left 2.10.07 1669.7

1971.7 48.4 1096.1 310.3 3426.5 3956.9

Benefits in kind received by Sir John Egan comprise the use of company car Benefits in kind for executive directors include car allowance private medical insurance life

assurance and an incapacity benefits scheme

The directors receive 50% of their bonus in cash and 50% is deferred into shares to be held for three years

Other emouments include expenses chargeable to income tax car allowances travel allowances relocation expenses telephone allowances payments made under the

groups flexible benefit arrangements amounts paid in lieu of pension contributions Included in other emoluments are

Richard Davey expenses chargeable to income tax 399

Tony Ballance flexible benefits payments 4226 car allowance 9286 and taxable expenses 11
Martin Kane amounts received in lieu of pension contributions 54750 car allowance 15000 flexible benefits payments 134 and taxable expenses

Michael McKeon car allowance 15000 and taxable expenses 122
Andy Smith amounts received in lieu of pension contributions 51960 car allowance 15000 and taxable expenses 125

Tony Wray amounts received in lieu of pension contributions 128960 car allowance 15000 and taxable expenses 11
Baroness Noakes expenses chargeable to income tax 281

Represents amounts paid under an agreement settled in 2006/07
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Directors pension provisions

lncrease/

Increase decrease in

in accrued Transfer value Transfer value transfer value

Service completed Accrued Increase in pension of accrued of accrued over the year

in years including pension at accrued pension during the year pension at pension at net of directors

in transferred 31.03.09 during the year net of inflation 31.03.09 31.03.08 contributions

in service credits pa pa pa 000 000 000

Martin Kane 35 108592 12463 7656 995.5 829.6 165.9

Andy Smith 16647 4430 3819 154.8 109.5 38.2

Tony Wray 15949 4411 3834 141.3 97.7 36.5

Transfer

lncrease/decrease value of increase

Increase in in accrued pension in accrued benefits

Accrued pension accrued pension during the year net of directors

at 31.03.09 during the year net of inflation contributions

pa pa pa 000

Martin Kane 108592 12463 7656 114.3

Andy Smith 16647 4430 3819 34.1

Tony Wray 15949 4411 3834 32.0

The following contributions were paid to defined contribution pension arrangements in respect of directors

2009 2008

Tony Ballance 59978 26000
Michael McKeon 167500 157000

Directors share interests

The directors of the company at 31 March 2009 and their beneficial interests in the shares of the company were as follows

Beneficial holdings

At April 2008 At 31 March 2009

or date of Or date of At 26 May 2009

appointment if later retirement if earlier Number of ordinary

Number of ordinary Number of ordinary shares of

shares of 977/igp each shares of 9717/19p each 977/p each

Chairman and other non-executive directors

Sir John Egan Chairman 7610 7610 7610

Dr Bernard Bulkin 554 554 554

Richard Davey 588 588 588

Martin Lamb 12 3012 3012
Baroness Noakes 18 4018 4018

Executive directors

Tony Ballance 1985 1985

Martin Kane 5292 7915 8142

Michael McKeon 20 20

Andy Smith 4034 4034

Tony Wray2 5874 7010

Martin Kane acquired 227 shares on May 2009 following the exercise of his 2006 three year sharesave scheme option

Tony Wray acquired 1136 shares on May 2009 following the exercise of his 2006 three year sharesave scheme option
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Group financial statements

Independent auditors report to the members of Se\Jern Trent Plc

We have audited the group financial statements of Severn Trent Plc

for the year ended 31 March 2009 which comprise the

Consolidated income statement the Consolidated balance sheet

the Consolidated cash flow statement the Consolidated statement

of recognised income and expense and the related notes to 41
These group financial statements have been prepared under the

accounting policies set out therein We have also audited the

information in the Directors Remuneration Report that is described

as having been audited

We have reported separately on the parent company financial

statements of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2009

This report is made solely to the companys members as body

in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the

companys members those matters we are required to state to them

in an auditors report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent

permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to

anyone other than the company and the companys members as

body for our audit work for this report or for the opinions we have

formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report the

Directors Remuneration Report and the group financial statements

in accordance with applicable law and International Financial

Reporting Standards IFRSs as adopted by the European Union are

set out in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to audit the group financial statements in

accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and

International Standards on Auditing UK and Ireland

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial

statements give true and fair view whether the group financial

statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 1985 and Article of the lAS Regulation and

whether the part of the directors remuneration report described as

having been audited has been properly prepared in accordance

with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in

our opinion the information given in the Directors Report is

consistent with the group financial statements The information

given in the Directors Report includes that specific information

presented in the Chairmans Statement the Chief Executives

Review and the Performance Reviews that are cross referred from

the Business Review section of the Directors Report

In addition we report to you if in our opinion we have not received

all the information and explanations we require for our audit or if

information specified by law regarding directors remuneration and

other transactions is not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects

the companys compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006

Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the

Financial Services Authority and we report if it does not We are

not required to consider whether the boards statements on internal

control cover all risks and controls or form an opinion on the

effectiveness of the groups corporate governance procedures or its

risk and control procedures

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report

as described in the contents section and consider whether it is

consistent with the audited group financial statements We consider

the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent

misstatements or material inconsistencies with the group financial

statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any further

information outside the Annual Report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards

on Auditing UK and Ireland issued by the Auditing Practices

Board An audit includes examination on test basis of evidence

relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the group financial

statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be

audited It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates

and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the

group financial statements and of whether the accounting policies

are appropriate to the groups circumstances consistently applied

and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the

information and explanations which we considered necessary in

order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable

assurance that the group financial statements and the part of the

Directors Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material

misstatement whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error

In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of

the presentation of information in the group financial statements

and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited

Opinion

In our opinion

the group financial statements give true and fair view

in accordance with IFRS5 as adopted by the European Union of

the state of the groups affairs as at 31 March 2009 and of its

loss for the year then ended

the group financial statements have been properly prepared in

accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article of the

lAS Regulation

the part of the Directors Remuneration Report described

as having been audited has been properly prepared in

accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and

the information given in the Directors Report is consistent with

the group financial statements

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

London UK
28 May 2009
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Consolidated income statement

For rHo year ended 31 Marcrr 2009

2009 2008

Note

Turnover

Operating costs before exceptional items

Exceptional restructuring costs and termination of operations

Exceptional flood costs net of insurance recoveries

Exceptional fines and penalties

Exceptional provision for third party legal costs

Total operating costs

Profit before interest tax and exceptional items

Exceptional items

Profit before interest and tax

Finance income

Finance costs

Net finance costs

Losses/gains on financial instruments

Share of results of associates and joint ventures

Profit before tax Iosses/gains on financial instruments and exceptional items

Exceptional items

Losses/gains on financial instruments

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

current tax

deferred tax

exceptional deferred tax

Total taxation

Loss/profit for the period from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Profit for the period from discontinued operations

56 1642.2 1552.4

1172.3 1082.9
14.6 14.9

1.5 13.6
7.2 35.8

1.4 4.5

1191.2 1151.7

469.9 469.5

78 18.9 68.8

451.0 400.7

10 1262 117.1

11 322.6 294.5

196.4 177.4

12 87.0 31.0
0.1

273.5 292.2

18.9 68.8
12 87.0 31.0

167.6 192.4

13 52.1 56.2
13 14.1 19.7

13 185.6 54.7

13 223.6 18.2

56.0 210.6

14

Loss/profit for the period 56.0 211.4

Attributable to

Equity holders of the company 57.8 209.5

Equity minority interests 1.8 1.9

56.0 211.4

Loss/earnings per share pence
From continuing operations

Basic
16 24.6 89.3

Diluted 16 24.6 88.7

From continuing and discontinued operations

Basic
16 24.6 89.7

Diluted 16 24.6 89.0
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Notes to the group financial statements

General information

The Severn Trent group has number of operations These are

described in the segmental analysis in note

Severn Trent Plc is company incorporated and domiciled in the

United Kingdom The address of its registered office is shown on

the back of the cover of the annual report and accounts

Severn Trent Plc is listed on the London Stock Exchange

Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS International

Accounting Standards lAS and IFRIC interpretations issued and

effective and ratified by the European Union as at 31 March 2009

and those parts of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies

reporting under IFRS as adopted by the European Union

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern

basis see Directors report on page 38 and under the historical

cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain financial

assets and liabilities including derivative instruments at fair value

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS

requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for

the reporting period Although these estimates are based on

managements best knowledge of the amount event or actions

actual results mayultimately differ from those estimates

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements include the results of Severn Trent Plc and

its subsidiaries joint ventures and associated undertakings The

results of subsidiaries joint ventures and associated undertakings

are included from the date of acquisition or incorporation and

excluded from the date of disposal

The results of subsidiaries are consolidated where the group has the

power to control subsidiary

The results of joint venture undertakings are accounted for on an

equity basis where the company exercised joint control under

contractual arrangement

The results of associates are accounted for on an equity basis

where the company holding is 20% or more or the company has

the power to exercise significant influence

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are

identified separately from the groups equity therein Minority

interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the

original business combination and the minoritys share of changes

in equity since that date Losses attributable to the minority in

excess of the minoritys interest in thesubsidiarys equity are

allocated against the interests of the group except to the extent that

the minority has binding obligation and is able to make an

additional investment to cover the losses

All intra group transactions balances income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration receivable

excluding value added tax trade discounts and inter company sales

in the ordinary course of business for goods and services provided

Revenue is not recognised until the service has been provided to

the customer or the goods to which the sale relates have either

been despatched to the customer or where they are held on the

customers behalf title has passed to the customer

Turnover includes an estimate of the amount of mains water and

waste water charges unbilled at the year end The accrual is

estimated using defined methodology based upon measure of

unbilled water consumed by tariff which is calculated from

historical billing information

In respect of long term contracts revenue is recognised based on

the value of work carried out during the year with reference to the

total sales value and the stage of completion of these contracts

Interest income is accrued on time basis by reference to the

principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the groups

rights to receive payment have been established Interest and

dividend income are included in finance income

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are income or expenditure which individually or

if of similar type in aggregate should in the opinion of the

directors be disclosed by virtue of their size or nature if the financial

statements are to give true and fair view In this context

materiality is assessed at the segment level

Taxation

Current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable

profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement

because it excludes items of income and expenses that are taxable

or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are

never taxable or deductible The groups liability for current tax is

calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation is provided in full using the
liability method on

taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements

deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent it is probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future to utilise it

Deferred taxation is measured on non-discounted basis using the

tax rates and laws that have then been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when

the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred tax

liability is settled

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is Iegally

enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority and the group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on net basis
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Group financial statements

Accounting policies continued

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase

consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired Goodwill

arising on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets

whilst goodwill arising on acquisition of associates is included in

investments in associates If an acquisition gives rise to negative

goodwill this is credited directly to the income statement Fair value

adjustments based on provisional estimates are amended within

one year of the acquisition if required with corresponding

adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill arising on all acquisitions prior to April 1998 was

written off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains eliminated

against reserves Purchased goodwill arising on acquisitions after

31 March 1998 is treated as an intangible fixed asset

Goodwill is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy set

out above and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unit that derives benefit

from the goodwill for impairment testing purposes

Where goodwill forms part of cash generating unit and all or part

of that unit is disposed of the associated goodwill is included in the

carrying amount of that operation when determining the gain or loss

on disposal of the operation

Intangible non current assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and

when acquired in business combination are capitalised at fair

value at the date of acquisition Following initial recognition the

historical cost model is applied to intangible assets Amortisation

charged on assets with finite lives is taken to the income statement

through operating expenses

Finite life intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis

over their estimated useful economic lives as follows

Years

Software 3-10

Other assets 2-20

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment where indicators of

impairment exist

Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed when it is incurred Development

expenditure is capitalised and written off over its expected useful

economic life where the following criteria are met

an asset is created that can be identified

it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic

benefits and

the development cost can be measured reliably

Expenditure on property plant and equipment relating to research

and development projects is capitalised and written off over the

expected useful life of those assets

Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred except where it is

probable that the contract will be awarded in which case they are

recognised as prepayment which is written off to the income

statement over the life of the contract

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment comprises

Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets are included at cost or deemed cost on

transition to IFRS less accumulated depreciation The costs of like

for like replacement of infrastructure components are recognised in

the income statement as they arise Where it is probable that the

money spent will cause future economic benefits to flow to the

group then costs are capitalised Infrastructure assets are

depreciated over their useful economic lives which are as follows

Years

Impounding reservoirs 250

Raw water aqueducts 250

Mains 80-150

Sewers 150-200

ii Other assets

Other assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated Other assets are depreciated over

their estimated economic lives to their residual value which are

principally as follows

Years

Buildings 30-80

Fixed plant and equipment 20-40

Vehicles and mobile plant 2-15

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated

until commissioned

Interest costs of debt raised to finance new property plant and

equipment are not included within the cost of those fixed assets

but are expensed to the income statement as they arise

Leased assets

Where the group obtains assets under leasing arrangements which

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an

asset to the group as lessee finance leases the lower of the fair

value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease

payments is capitalised as an asset with corresponding liability

representing the obligation to the lessor Lease payments are

treated as consisting of capital element and finance charge the

capital element reducing the obligation to the lessor and the finance

charge being written off to the income statement at constant rate

over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital amount

outstanding Depreciation is charged over the shorter of the

estimated useful life and the lease period

Where the group obtains assets under leasing arrangements where

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership remain with the

lessor these are classified as operating leases Rental costs arising

under operating leases are expensed on straight line basis over

the term of the lease Leases of land are normally treated as

operating leases unless ownership is transferred to the group at the

end of the lease

Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions received in respect of non current assets

including charges made for new connections to the water and

sewerage networks are treated as deferred income and released to

the income statement over the useful economic life of those non

current assets

Grants and contributions which are given in compensation for

expenses incurred with no future related costs are recognised in

operating costs in the income statement in the period that they

become receivable
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Accounting policies continued

Impairment of non current assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwill an item of property plant and

equipment or any other non current asset is estimated to be less

than its carrying amount the carrying amount of the asset is

reduced to its recoverable amount Where the asset does not

generate cash flows that are independent from other assets the

group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit

to which the asset belongs Recoverable amount is the higher of fair

value less costs to sell or estimated value in use at the date the

impairment review is undertaken Fair value less costs to sell

represents the amount obtainable from the sale of the assets in an

arms length transaction between knowledgeable and willing third

parties less costs of disposal Value in use represents the present

value of future cash flows expected to be derived from cash

generating unit discounted using pre-tax discount rate that

reflects current market assessments of the cost of capital of the

cash generating unit or asset

The discount rate used is based on the groups cost of capital

adjusted for the risk profiles of individual businesses

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually Impairment reviews

are also carried out if there is an indication that an impairment

may have occurred or where otherwise required to ensure that

non current assets are not carried above their estimated

recoverable amounts

Impairments are recognised in the income statement

Investments

After initial recognition at cost being the fair value of the

consideration paid investments which are classified as available

for sale are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised

in equity When an available for sale investment is disposed of or

impaired the gain or loss previously recognised in equity is taken to

the income statement Where there is no active market in the

investments and the fair value cannot be measured reliably the

investments are held at cost

Other investments are classified as held to maturity when the group

has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity

Investments held for an undefined period are excluded from this

classification Such investments and those held to maturity are

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

with any gains or losses being recognised in the income statement

Financial instruments

Debt instruments

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost being the

net fair value of the consideration received After initial recognition

interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Where

loan or borrowing is in fair value hedging relationship it is

remeasured for changes in fair value of the hedged risk at the

balance sheet date with gains or losses being recognised in

gains/losses on financial instruments in the income statement

see below

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when

the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process

ii Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The group uses derivative financial instruments such as cross

currency swaps forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps

to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency and interest rate

fluctuations Such derivative instruments are initially recorded at

cost and subsequently remeasured at fair value at the balance sheet

date The fair value of cross currency swaps interest rate swaps

and forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to market

exchange rates and interest rates at the period end Net interest

receivable or payable in respect of derivative financial instruments is

included in finance income or finance costs

In relation to fair value hedges which meet the conditions for hedge

accounting the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is taken to

gains/losses on financial instruments in the income statement

where the effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss

on the hedged item see above

In relation to cash flow hedges which meet the conditions for hedge

accounting the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging

instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised

directly in equity and the ineffective portion in gains/losses on

financial instruments in the income statement The gains or losses

deferred in equity in this way are recycled through gains/losses on

financial instruments in the income statement in the same period in

which the hedged underlying transaction or firm commitment is

recognised in the income statement

Where forward currency contracts and foreign currency borrowings

are used to hedge net investments in foreign currency denominated

operations to the extent that they are designated and effective as

net investment hedges they are matched in equity against changes

in value of the related assets Any ineffectiveness is taken to gains/

losses on financial instruments in the income statement

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument

expires is sold terminated or exercised or no longer qualifies for

hedge accounting At that date any cumulative gain or loss on the

hedging instrument recognised in equity is kept in equity until the

forecast transaction occurs or transferred to gains/losses on

financial instruments in the income statement if the forecast

transaction is no longer expected to occur

For derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting gains or

losses are taken directly to gains/losses on financial instruments in

the income statement in the period

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host

contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and

characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract

and the host contract is not carried at fair value with gains and

losses reported in gains/losses on financial instruments in the

income statement

Inventory

Inventory and work in progress is stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value Cost includes labour materials transport and

attributable overheads

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are measured at fair value on initial recognition

and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest rate method unless there is objective evidence that

the asset is impaired where it is written down to its recoverable

amount and the irrecoverable amount is recognised as an expense

Trade receivables that are assessed not to be impaired individually

are assessed collectively for impairment by reference to the groups

historical collection experience for receivables of similar age

Trade payables

Trade payables are initially
measured at fair value and are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest rate method
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Group financial statements

Accounting policies continued

Retirement benefits

The group operates both defined benefit and defined contribution

pension schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension scheme

assets and defined benefit pension scheme liabilities is recorded on

the balance sheet as retirement benefit asset or obligation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using bid

price Defined benefit pension scheme liabilities are measured at

the balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the

projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return

on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent term and currency to

the liability Service cost which is the increase in the present value

of the liabilities of the groups defined benefit pension schemes

expected to arise from employee service in the period is included in

operating costs The expected return on the schemes assets and

the increase during the period in the present value of the schemes

liabilities arising from the passage of time are included in other

finance income or cost

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments

changes in actuarial assumptions and amendments to pension

plans are charged or crdited to equity and recorded in the

statement of recognised income and expense

Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged

to the income statement in the period in which they fall due

Provisions

Provisions are recognised where

there is present obligation as result of past event

it is probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits

to settle this obligation and

reliable estimate of this amount can be made

Insurance provisions are recognised for claims notified and for

claims incurred but which have not yet been notified based on

advice from the groups independent insurance advisers

Provisions are discounted to present value using pre-tax discount

rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability where the effect is

material

Purchase of own shares

The group balance sheet includes the shares held by the Severn

Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust the Trust and which have

not vested unconditionally by the balance sheet date These are

shown as deduction from shareholders funds until such time as

they vest

Share based payments

The group operates number of equity settled share based

compensation plans for employees The fair value of the employee

services received in exchange for the grant is recognised as an

expense over the vesting period of the grant

The fair value of employee services is determined by reference to

the fair value of the awards granted calculated using an appropriate

pricing model excluding the impact of any non market vesting

conditions The number of awards that are expected to vest takes

into account non market vesting conditions including where

appropriate continuing employment by the group The charge is

adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as result of failing to

meet non market condition

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement cash and cash

equivalents include highly liquid investments that are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of change in value Such investments are normally

those with less than three months maturity from the date of

acquisition and include cash and bank balances and investments

in liquid funds Cash and cash equivalents also include overdrafts

repayable on demand

Foreign currency

The results of overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings are

translated into sterling the presentational currency of the group

using average rates of exchange ruling during the year

The net investments in overseas subsidiary and associated

undertakings are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange

ruling at the year end Exchange differences thus arising are treated

as movements in equity On disposal of foreign currency

denominated subsidiary the deferred cumulative amount recognised

in equity since April 2004 relating to that entity is recognised in the

income statement under the transitional rule of IFRS

Exchange differences arising in respect of foreign exchange

instruments taken out as hedges of overseas investments are also

treated as movements in equity to the extent that the hedge is

effective see note

All other foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities of the

company and its subsidiary undertakings are translated into the

relevant functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling at the year

end Any exchange differences so arising are dealt with through the

income statement Foreign currency transactions arising during the

year are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the

date of the transaction All profits and losses on exchange arising

during the year are dealt with through the income statement

Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Where an asset or group of assets disposal group is available for

immediate sale and the sale is highly probable and expected to

occur within one year then the disposal group is deemed as held for

sale The disposal group is measured at the lower of the carrying

amount and fair value less costs to sell

Where group of assets which comprises operationsthat can be

clearly distinguished operationally and for financial reporting

purposes from the rest of the group component has been

disposed of or classified as held for sale and it

represents separate major line of business or geographical area

of operations or

is part of single co-ordinated plan to dispose of separate

major line of business or geographical area of operations or

is subsidiary acquired exclusively with view to resale

then the component is classified as discontinued operation

Non current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the

lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

Depreciation is not charged on such assets

New accounting policies and futun requirements

The group has adopted IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

in the current year The interpretation draws distinction between

two types of service concession arrangements those where the

operator receives financial asset specifically an unconditional

contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from

government body in return for constructing or upgrading public

sector asset and those where the operator receives an intangible

asset the right to charge for the use of the public sector asset that it

constructs or upgrades The interpretation is applicable to the groups

contracts with the UK Ministry of Defence but did not result in any

material change to the groups accounting for such contracts
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New accounting policies and future requirements

continued

Two further interpretations issued by the International Financial

Reporting Committee are effective for the current period These are

IFRIC 13 Customer loyalty programmes and IFRIC 14 lAS 19

the limit on defined benefit asset minimum funding requirements

and their interaction The adoption of these interpretations has not

led to any changes in the groups accounting policies

The following statements have been issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board and are likely to affect future

financial statements

International Financial Reporting Standard Operating Segments

IFRS was issued in November 2006 and is required to be

implemented by Severn Trent from April 2009 The standard

requires identification of operating segments based on internal

reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision

maker in order to allocate resources to the segment and assess its

performance The impact of the standard on Severn Trents financial

statements is not expected to be significant since the groups

segmental reporting already closely reflects reports regularly

reviewed by the Chief Executive and the board.

lAS 23 revised was issued in March 2007 and is required to be

implemented by Severn Trent from April 2009 The revision to

the standard removes the option of immediately recognising as an

expense borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition construction or production of an asset that takes

substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale Such costs

are therefore required to be capitalised as part of the cost of the

asset The revised standard will require Severn Trent to change its

existing policy and is likely to result in proportion of borrowing

costs that are currently expensed being capitalised in property plant

and equipment or intangible assets The costs will then be

amortised over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets

lAS revised was issued in September 2007 and is required to

be implemented by Severn Trent from April 2009 The revision

is aimed at improving users ability to analyse and compare the

information given in financial statements The changes made are to

require information in financial statements to be aggregated on the

basis of shared characteristics and to introduce statement of

comprehensive income Since Severn Trent already presents

statement of recognised income and expense the changes will have

no significant impact on the group financial statements

lAS 27 revised was issued in January 2008 and is required to

be implemented by Severn Trent from April 2010 The revised

standard requires the effects Of all transactions with non controlling

interests to be recorded in equity if there is no change in control

The standard also specifies the accounting when control is lost

Severn Trent has had no transactions in the current or prior year

that would have been impacted by the revised standard

IFRS revised was issued in January 2008 and is required to

be implemented by Severn Trent from April 2010 The standard

continues to apply the acquisition method to business

combinations with some significant changes Severn Trent has had

no transactions in the current or prior year that would have been

impacted by the revised standard

The directors assess that the other standards and interpretations

issued but not yet effective are not applicable to the group

Significant accounting judgments and key sources

of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the groups accounting policies the group

is required to make certain judgments estimates and assumptions

that it believes are reasonable based on the information available

The more significant judgments were

Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires judgments

to be made regarding the result of negotiations with and enquiries

from tax authorities in number of jurisdictions The assessments

made are based on advice from independent tax advisers and the

status of ongoing discussions with the relevant tax authorities

ii Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Assessing the financial outcome of uncertain commercial and legal

positions requires judgments to be made regarding the relative

merits of each partys case and the extent to which any claim

against the group is
likely

to be successful The assessments made

are based on advice from the groups internal counsel and where

appropriate independent legal advice

The key accounting estimates were

Goodwill impairment

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation

of the value in use of the cash generating units CGU to which

goodwill has been allocated The value in use calculation requires

the group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from

the CGU and suitable discount rate to calculate present value

Details of the assumptions used are set out in note 17 to the

financial statements

ii Depreciation and carrying amounts property plant and

equipment

Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value for

property plant and equipment requires estimates to be made of the

useful lives of the assets The estimates are based on engineering

data and the groups experience of similar assets Details are set out

in note

iii Retirement benefit obligations

Determining the amount of the groups retirement benefit obligations

and the net costs of providing such benefits requires assumptions to

be made concerning long term interest rates inflation salary and

pension increases investment returns and longevity of current and

future pensioners Changes in these assumptions could significantly

impact the amount of the obligations or the cost of providing such

benefits The group makes assumptions concerning these matters

with the assistance of advice from independent qualified actuaries

Details of the assumptions made are set out in note 29 to the

financial statements

iv Unbilled revenue

Severn Trent Water raises bills and recognises revenue in accordance

with its right to receive revenue in line with the limits established by

theperiodic regulatory price review processes For water and waste

water customers with water meters the amount recognised is

dependent upon the volume supplied including an estimate of the

sales value of units supplied between the date of the last meter read

and the year end Meters are read on cyclical basis and the group

recognises revenue for unbilled amounts based on estimated usage

from the last billing to the end of the financial year The estimated

usage is based on historical data judgment and assumptions

Provision for impairment of trade reeivabIes

Provisions are made against Severn Trent Waters trade receivables

based on historical experience of levels of recovery from accounts in

particular ageing category The actual amounts collected could

differ from the estimated level of recovery which could impact

operating results
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Group financial statements

Operating costs

2009 2008

Before Before

exceptional Exceptional exceptional Exceptional

costs costs Total costs costs Total

Wages and salaries 257.4 1.4 258.8 234.6 8.1 242.7

Social security costs 19.8 0.1 19.9 18.3 0.1 18.4

Pension costs 28.9 28.9 33.0 33.0

Share based payments 5.3 5.3 4.0 4.0

Total employee costs 311.4 1.5 312.9 289.9 8.2 298.1

Power 56.3 56.3 42.0 0.2 42.2

Raw materials and consumables 128.7 0.9 129.6 112.6 6.4 119.0

Rates 59.2 59.2 60.1 60.1

Charge for bad and doubtful debts 26.8 5.1 31.9 22.7 22.7

Service charges 30.0 30.0 28.6 28.6

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 223.7 223.7 204.5 204.5

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 24.2 24.2 27.3 27.3

Hired and contracted services 142.8 2.6 145.4 151.8 14.2 166.0

Operating lease rentals

land and buildings 4.0 4.0 4.5 4.5

other 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6

Hire of plant and machinery 7.1 7.1 6.1 1.2 7.3

Research and development expenditure 5.6 5.6 4.9 4.9

Profit on disposal of fixed assets 3.9 3.9 1.7 1.7

Foreign exchange gains 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.1

Water and sewerage infrastructure maintenance expenditure 130.1 130.1 111.2 111.2

Other operating costs 105.7 8.8 114.5 96.2 38.6 134.8

1253.0 18.9 1271.9 1162.4 68.8 1231.2

Release from deferred income 5.3 5.3 5.1 5.1

Own work capitalised 75.4 75.4 74.4 74.4

Total operating costs 1172.3 18.9 1191.2 1082.9 68.8 1151.7

Further details of exceptional costs are given in note The pension costs shown above include current and past service costs Other

pension costs interest costs expected returns on assets and actuarial gains and losses are included in finance costs and the statement of

recognised income and expense

During the year the following fees were charged by the auditors in respect of continuing and discontinued activities

2009 2008

Fees payable to the companys auditors for

The audit of the companys annual accounts 0.1 0.2

The audit of the companys subsidiaries pursuant to legislation
0.4 0.3

Audit fees payable to associates of the companys auditors 0.1 0.1

Total auditfees 0.6 0.6

Fees payable to the companys auditors and their associates for other services to the group

Other services pursuant to legislation
0.3 0.2

Corporate finance 0.1 0.1

Total non audit fees 0.4 0.3

Details of directors remuneration are set out in the Directors remuneration report on pages 40 to 53
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Group financial statements

2009
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13 Taxation continued

Factors affecting the tax charge/credlt in the year

The tax expense for the current year is higher 2008 lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 28% 2008 30%
The differences are explained below

2009 2008

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Continuing operations 167.6 192.4

Discontinued operations 0.8

167.6 193.2

Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 28% 2008 30% 46.9 58.0

Tax effect of share of results of associates and joint ventures 0.1

Tax effect of income not taxable/expenditure not deductible in determining taxable profit 5.9 8.7

Effect of different rates of tax in overseas jurisdictions 0.7 0.5

Adjustments in respect of prior years 3.7 29.8

Exceptional deferred tax 185.6 54.7

Total tax charge/credit 223.6 18.2

In 2008 the adjustments in respect of prior years arose as result of agreeing open computations with the relevant tax authorities and the

reduction of tax rate for deferred tax from 30% to 28%

Current tax

Tax on share based payments 1.3 2.7

Tax on pension contributions in excess of profit and loss charge 3.8
Tax on exchange differences on foreign currency hedging 2.5 4.1

Total current tax credited directly to equity 7.6 6.8

Deferred tax

Tax on actuarial gains/losses

Tax on cash flow hedging

Tax on share based payments

Effect of change of tax rate

Total deferred tax credited directly to equity 27.6

14 Discontinued operations and disposal groups

There were no transactions during the year that resulted in operations being classified as discontinued In the previous year the profit from

discontinued operations in the year arose from the settlement of outstanding matters relating to the disposal of the US business Severn

Trent Laboratories Inc

Profit from discontinued operations

Profit after tax

Exceptional net gain on disposal of discontinued operations 0.8

Attributable tax expense

Net profit attributable to discontinued operations 0.8

Tax credited directly to equity

In addition to the amount charged/credited to the income statement the following amounts of tax have been credited directly to equity

2009 2008

30.0
0.9
3.3

7.8
0.6

4.1

5.4

2009 2008
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Group financial statements

14 Discontinued operations and disposal groups continued

Net cash flows from operating activities

Net cash flows from investing activities 3.1

Net cash flows from financing activities

3.1

Earnings per share from discontinued operations

2009 2008

Weighted Weighted

average Per average Per

number share number share

Earnings of shares amount Earnings of shares amount

peuce pence

Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations 234.9 0.8 233.6 0.3

Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations 235.6 0.8 235.3 0.3

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2009

67.58 158.8 63.02 147.3

41.05 96.5

Cash flows from discontinued operations

2009 2008

Disposal groups

On 27 February 2009 the group entered into an agreement to sell its meters business The agreement was subject to Office of Fair Trading

approval which was received on May 2009 and the transaction was completed Accordingly the assets and liabilities of the meters

business which are summarised below were classified as held for sale at 31 March 2009

Intangible assets 0.2

Property plant and equipment 0.8

Inventory 1.8

Trade and other receivables 1.8

Assets held for sale 4.6

Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale

Trade and other payables 0.4

15 Dividends

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period

2009

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008 2007 41.29 97.0 38.68 90.4

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2009 2008 26.29 61.8 24.34 56.9

Pence per

share

2008

Pence per

share

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM and has not been included as liability in these

financial statements
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16 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding those held in the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust which are treated

as cancelled

For diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all potentially

dilutive ordinary shares These represent share options granted to employees where the exercise price is less than the average market price

of the companys shares during the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations are calculated on the basis of
profit

from continuing operations attributable

to the equity holders of the company

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing

and discontinued operations being

Loss/profit for the period attributable to the equity holders of the company 57.8 209.5

Adjustment to exclude

Profit for the period from discontinued operations 0.8

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 57.8 208.7

Number of shares

2009 2008

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share 234.9 233.6

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

Share options and LTIPs 0.7 1.7

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 235.6 235.3

Adjusted earnings per share

2009 2008

Pence Pence

Adjusted basic earnings per share 92.7 97.8

Adjusted diluted earnings per share 92.4 97.1

The adjustments to earnings are as follows

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 57.8 208.7

Adjustments for

Exceptional items 18.9 68.8

Current tax related to exceptional items at 28% 30% 1.8 5.6

Losses on financial instruments 87.0 31.0

Deferred tax 171.5 74.4

Earnings for the purpose of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share 217.8 228.5

Earnings

2009 2008

Adjustments to earnings

Adjusted earnings per share figures are presented for continuing operations These exclude the effects of deferred tax gains/losses on

financial instruments and exceptional items in both 2009 and 2008 The directors consider that the adjusted figures provide useful

additional indicator of performance The denominators used in the calculations of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share are the

same as those used in the unadjusted figures set out above

2009 2008
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Group financial statements

Cost and net book value

At April 50.2 49.1

Additions 0.4

Exchange adjustments 13.1 0.7

At 31 March 63.3 50.2

Goodwill impairment tests

Goodwill is allocated to the groups cash generating units CGUs identified according to country of operation and business segment

summary of the goodwill allocation by CGU is presented below

2009 2008

Severn Trent Services

Water Purification US 29.4 21.2

Contract Operations US 13.1 9.5

UK Services 0.2 0.2

UK Laboratories 12.0 12.0

Services
Italy

86 7.3

63.3 50.2

The recoverable amount of CGU is determined using value in use calculations These calculations use cash flow projections based on

financial budgets approved by management covering five year period The key assumption underlying these budgets is the revenue

growth Assumptions are determined by management of each CGU based on past experience current market trends and expectations of

future developments

Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using an estimated nominal growth rate stated below The growth rate does not

exceed the long term average growth rate for the economy in which the CGLJ operates The assumptions used in relation to growth rates

beyond the five year period and discount rates were

Nominal growth rate Discount rate

2009 2008 2009 2008

Water Purification US 3.0 3.0 8.7 11.5

Contract Operations US 3.0 3.0 9.2 11.5

UK Services 3.0 3.0 9.5 11.5

UK Laboratories 3.0 3.0 9.5 11.5

Services Italy 3.0 3.0 11.7 11.5

The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports The discount rates used are pre-tax

and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU

Changes in the growth rate outside the five year period or in the discount rate applied to the cash flows could cause the CGUs carrying

amounts to exceed their recoverable amounts The amount by which the recoverable amount of each CGU exceeded its carrying value and

the amount by which the growth rate or discount rate would have to change in order to reduce the recoverable amount of the CGU to its

carrying value is set out below

Water Purification US 167.4 28.4 12.5

Contract Operations US 30.6 6.6 4.4

UK Services 18.6 79.7 19.0

UK Laboratories 11.5 4.2 2.8

Services Italy 2.7 1.1 0.8

17 Goodwill

2009 2008

Change required for

recoverable amount to

equal carrying amountSurplus of

recoverable

amount over

carrying amount

Growth rate

Percentage

points

Discount rate

Percentage

points
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18 Intangible assets

Computer software Other

Internally Internally

generated Purchased generated Total

Cost

At lApril 2007 92.0 129.0 16.8 237.8

Additions 8.0 22.5 2.6 33.1

Disposals 6.5 0.2 6.7

Exchange adjustments 0.4 0.3 0.6 0.5

At April 2008 99.6 145.3 19.8 264.7

Additions 12.6 20.8 0.7 34.1

Disposals 8.0 14.9 22.9

Transfers 2.9 2.9
Transfers to assets held for sale 0.5 0.5

Exchange adjustments 0.1 0.8 1.6 2.5

At 31 March 2009 104.3 154.9 18.7 277.9

Amortisation

At April 2007 51.5 75.0 10.1 136.6

Amortisation for year 10.4 15.7 1.2 27.3

Disposals 6.5 0.2 6.7

Exchange adjustments 0.2 0.1 0.3

At April 2008 61.9 84.4 11.2 157.5

Amortisation for year 8.4 14.6 1.2 24.2

Disposals 8.0 16.3 1.0 25.3

Transfers 1.3 1.3

Transfers to assets held for sale 0.3 0.3

Exchange adjustments 0.3 0.1 0.7 0.5

At 31 March 2009 62.0 84.1 10.5 156.6

Net book value

At 31 March 2009 42.3 70.8 8.2 121.3

At 31 March 2008 37.7 60.9 8.6 107.2

Other assets primarily comprise capitalised development costs and patents
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19 Property plant and equipment

2188.0 3880.7 2685.5 57.0 8811.2

146.1 61.5 257.0 9.3 473.9

5.4 45.3 9.5 60.2
0.3 3.3 3.6
1.6 8.2 3.6 13.4

2330.0 3942.2 2902.1 60.4 9234.7

At 31 March 2009 725.8 1040.2 1457.5 31.1 3254.6

At 31 March 2008 1505.9 2860.4 1336.5 28.4 5731.2

The carrying amount of property plant and equipment includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under finance leases

Fixed plant

Land and Infrastructure and Movable

Buildings assets equipment plant Total

Net book value

At 31 March 2009 122.1 140.9 263.0

At 31 March 2008 123.1 162.7 285.8

Plant and equipment includes 571.8 million 2008 388.3 million in respect of assets in the course of construction for which no

depreciation is charged

Fixed plant

Land and Infrastructure and Movable

buildings assets equipment plant Total

Cost

At April 2007 2062.6 3786.5 2507.4 58.2 8414.7

Additions 129.3 94.2 188.1 4.6 416.2

Disposals 4.0 11.3 4.9 20.2

Transfers 0.2 0.3 0.1

Exchange adjustments 0.1 1.6 1.0 0.5

At April 2008

Additions

Disposals

Transfers to assets held for sale

Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2009

Depreciation

At April 2007 643.2 998.2 1228.0 24.2 2893.6
Charge for year 42.9 22.1 132.0 7.5 204.5

Disposals 4.0 10.9 3.6 18.5

Exchange adjustments 0.1 0.5 0.4

At April 2008 682.1 1020.3 1349.0 28.6 3080.0
Charge for year 48.6 19.9 147.7 7.5 223.7

Disposals 5.5 42.0 7.4 54.9

Transfers to assets held for sale 0.3 2.5 2.8

Exchange adjustments 0.9 5.3 2.4 8.6

Net book value

At 31 March 2009 1604.2 2902.0 1444.6 29.3 5980.1
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20 Interests in joint ventures

Groups share of

Long term assets 0.1

Current assets 2.0 0.4

Current liabilities 1.7 0.5
Amounts due from joint ventures 0.1

0.3 0.1

Groups share of

Turnover 1.6 0.6

Operating costs 1.6 0.6

Profit before tax

Tax

Prof it after tax

Particulars of the groups principal joint venture undertakings at 31 March 2009 are

Name
Country of Proportion of Proportion of

Incorporation ownership voting power

Cognica Limited Great Britain 50% 50%

Jackson Water Partnership USA 70% See below

The partnership agreement for the Jackson Water Partnership requires that certain key decisions require the unanimous consent of the

partners and consequently the partnership has been accounted for as joint venture

21 Interests in associates

At April 4.1 3.4

Share of profits 0.1

Other movements 0.7 0.6

At31 March 4.8 4.1

Groups share of

Total assets

Total liabilities

4.8 4.1

Turnover 7.0 5.5

Profit before tax 0.3

S.I.l Societa Consortile per Azioni 15312000 of 25% Water and sewerage

The country of incorporation and main operation is Italy

2009 2008

The joint ventures have no significant contingent liabilities to which the group is exposed and the group does not have any significant

contingent liabilities in relation to its interests in the joint ventures The group has no capital commitments in relation to its interests in the

joint ventures

2009 2008

26.4 19.4

21.6 15

The associate company has no significant contingent liabilities to which the group is exposed and the group does not have any significant

contingent liabilities in relation to its interest in the associate The group has no capital commitments in relation to its interests in the associate

The principal associate at 31 March 2009 was

Percentage

Equity of share Nature of

interest capital held business
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22 Financial instruments

Capital management

It is the groups strategy to access broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum required and the lowest cost compatible

with the need for continued availability The group is funded using mixture of equity and debt including fixed rate index linked and

floating rate

At 31 March 2009 the groups equity and debt capital comprised the following

2009 2008

Cash and short term deposits 648.1 654.4

Bank overdrafts 1.0

Bank loans 789.8 742.7

Other loans 3310.9 29.58.1

Obligations under finance leases 344.4 385.4

Net debt 3797.0 3432.8

Equity attributable to the companys equity shareholders 946.1 1201.0

Total capital 4743.1 4633.8

Categories of financial assets

2009 2008

Fair value through profit and loss

Derivatives that do nOt qualify for hedge accounting

Cross currency swaps

Interest rate swaps 18.1 3.7

18.1 3.7

Derivatives that are designated and effective as hedging Instruments carried at fair value

Cross currency swaps 237.1 52.8

Interest rate swaps 0.1

237.1 52.9

Available for sale investments carried at fair value

Unquoted shares 0.1 0.1

Loans and receivables including cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables 201.1 199.4

Short term deposits 586.5 608.4

Cash at bank in hand 61.6 46.0

849.2 8538

Total financial assets 1104.5 910.5

Disclosed in the balance sheet as

Non current assets

Derivative financial instruments 225.4 51.3

Available for sale financial assets 0.1 0.1

225.5 51.4

Current assets

Derivative financial instruments 29.8 5.3

Cash and cash equivalents 648.1 654.4

Trade and other receivables note 24 201.1 199.4

879.0 859.1

1104.5 910.5

78 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accoun 2009



22 Financial instruments continued

Categories of financial liabilities

2009 2008

Fair value through profit and loss

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Interest rate swaps 162.0 67.8

Foreign exchange forward contracts 0.4

162.4 67.8

Derivatives that are designated and effective as hedging instruments carried at fair value

Cross currency swaps 13.2
Interest rate swaps 9.6 1.7

9.6 14.9

Other financial liabilities

Bank loans 789.8 742.7
Other loans 3310.9 2958.1

Obligations under finance leases 344.4 385.4
Overdraft 1.0
Trade payables 46.3 40.3

4491.4 4127.5

Total financial liabilities 4663.4 4210.2

Disclosed in the balance sheet as

Non current liabilities

Derivative financial instruments 171.6 73.8

Borrowings 4188.9 3627.7

4360.5 3701.5

Current liabilities

Derivative financial instruments 0.4 8.9

Borrowings 256.2 459.5

Trade payables note 27 46.3 40.3

302.9 508.7

4663.4 4210.2

DerWative contracts

2009 2008

Asset Liability Asset Liability

Cross currency swaps fair value hedges 237.1 52.8 13.2
Interest rate swaps cash flow hedges 9.6 0.1 1.7

Interest rate swaps derivatives not in formal hedge relationship 18.1 162.0 3.7 67.8

Foreign exchange forward contracts 0.4

Total 255.2 172.0 56.6 82.7

Less non current portion

Cross currency swaps fair value hedges 207.3 47.6 4.4
Interest rate swaps cash flow hedges 9.6 1.6

Interest rate swaps derivatives not in formal hedge relationship 18.1 162.0 3.7 67.8

Total non current 225.4 171.6 51.3 73.8

Current Portion 29.8 0.4 5.3 8.9

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009 79



Group financial statements

22 Financial instruments continued

Fair values of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market for example over the counter derivatives is determined by

using valuation techniques The group uses variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at

each balance sheetdate

Discounted future cash flows are used to determine fair values for debt Discount rates are derived from yield curves based on quoted

interest rates

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows estimated and discounted based

on the applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates

Cross currency swaps and forward exchange contracts are valued by reference to quoted forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date

and yield curves derived from quoted interest rates matching the maturities of the contracts

The fair values of available for sale financial assets which comprise unquoted equity instruments cannot be measured reliably since there

is no active market in the instruments Hence the investments are held at cost It is not possible to determine range of estimates within

which the fair values are highly likely to lie

The nominal values less impairment provisions of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values The fair

value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market

interest rate that is available to the group for similar financial instruments

2009 2008

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

Primary financial Instruments held or issued to

finance the groups operations

Trade receivables 201.1 201.1 199.4 199.4

Short term deposits 586.5 586.5 608.4 608.4

Cash at bank and in hand 61.6 61.6 46.0 46.0

Borrowings falling due within one year 256.2 296.9 459.5 433.4

Borrowings falling due after more than one year 4188.9 4953.8 3627.7 3429.4
Trade payabies 46.3 46.3 40.3 40.3
Derivative financial instruments held to manage
the currency and Interest rate profile

Interest rate swaps and similar instruments 153.5 153.5 65.7 65.7

Currency instruments cross currency swaps 237.1 237.1 39.6 39.6

Foreign exchange forward contracts 0.4 0.4

Other financial assets

Available for sale financial assets 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

Financial risk factors

The groups activities expose it to variety of financial risks market risk including currency and interest rate risk credit risk liquidity risk

and inflation risk The groups overall risk management programme addresses the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to reduce

potential adverse effects on the groups financial performance or position

Financial risks.are managed by central treasury department Group Treasury under policies approved by the board of directors Group

Treasury identifies evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the groups operating units The board provides vritten

principles for overall risk management as well as written policies covering specific areas such as exchange rate risk interest rate risk credit

risk the use of derivative and non derivative financial instruments and the investment of surplus funds Derivative financial instruments are

used to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates The groups policy is that derivative financial instruments are not

held for trading
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22 Financial instruments continued

Financial risk factors continued

Market risk

The principal market risk that the group is exposed to is fluctuations in interest rates Since substantially all of the groups profits and net

assets arise from Severn Trent Water which has very limited and indirect exposure to changes in exchange rates the sensitivity of the

groups results to changes in exchange rates is not material

Interest rate risk

The groups income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates

The groups interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the group to cash flow interest

rate risk Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest rate risk Group policy is to maintain 45-90% of its net debt

in fixed rate instruments At 31 March 2009 some 82% of the groups net debt was fixed 2008 70%
The group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating to fixed interest rate swaps Such interest rate swaps have the economic

effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates Under the terms of the interest rate swaps the group agrees with other

parties to exchange semi annually the difference between fixed contract and floating rate interest rates calculated by reference to the

agreed notional principal amounts The group has entered ilito series of long dated interest rate swaps to hedge future debt Economically

these act to fix debt within the group which is denominated as floating rate but do not achieve hedge accounting under the strict criteria of

lAS 39 This has led to 80.5 million charge 2008 charge of 24.3 million in the income statement

Some of the groups debt is index linked that is its cost is linked to changes in the Retail Price Index RPI This debt provides an economic

hedge for Severn Trent Waters revenues and regulatory asset values that are also RPI linked under its regulatory regime

The principal outstanding under index linked debt is adjusted by the change in RPI at regular intervals Interest is charged at fixed rates on

the adjusted amount

Financial liabilities analysed by interest rate after taking account of various interest rate swaps entered into by the group

As at 31 March 2009

Bank loans and overdrafts

Other loans

Finance leases

Other financial liabilities

743.7

2958.1

385.4

40.3

40.3 581.7 2484.7 1020.8 4127.5

Weighted average interest rate 5.9%

Weighted average period for which interest is fixed years 15.6

Non interest Floating Fixed

bearing interest Interest Index

liabilities rate rate linked Total

Bank loans and overdrafts 501.5 140.5 147.8 789.8

Other loans 328.6 2089.4 892.9 3310.9

Finance leases 175.6 168.8 344.4

Other financial liabilities 46.3 46.3

46.3 1005.7 2398.7 1040.7 4491.4

Impact of interest rate swaps not matched against specific debt instruments 720.7 720.7

46.3 285.0 3119.4 1040.7 4491.4

Weighted average interest rate 5.9%

Weighted average period for which interest is fixed years 12.1

Non interest Floating Fixed

bearing interest interest Index

liabilities rate rate linked Total

As at 31 March 2008

500.8 101.0 141.9

745.2 1334.0 878.9

209.1 176.3

40.3

40.3 1455.1 1611.3 1020.8 4127.5

Impact Of interest rate swaps not matched against

specific debt instruments 873.4 873.4
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Inflation rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity after tax of the groups profits and equity to changes in inflation at 31 March is set out in the following table This analysis

excludes any impact on Severn Trent Waters revenues and Regulated Capital Value

2009 2008

1.0% -1.0% 1.0% -1.0%

Profit or loss 7.5 7.5 7.4 7.4

Equity 7.5 7.5 7.4 7.4

Exchange rate risk

The group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from net investments in foreign operations primarily with

respect to the US dollar and the euro However since substantially all of the groups profits and net assets arise from Severn Trent Water

which has very limited and indirect exposure to changes in exchange rates the sensitivity of the groups results to changes in exchange

rates is not material

The group has significant value of foreign currency debt primarily in yen and euros Foreign exchange risk arises when transactions are

denominated in currency that is not the entitys functional currency To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency

debt the group enters into cross currency swaps with external parties

The groups risk management policy is to hedge 100% of all foreign currency denominated debt At 31 March 2009 all foreign currency

denominated debt was hedged 2008 100%

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Since substantially all of the groups profits and net assets arise from Severn Trent Water which has no exposure to changes in exchange

rates the sensitivity of the groups results to changes in exchange rates is not material

Financial risk factors continued

Investments in interest earning assets

31 March 2009

Non Interest Floating Fixed

bearing Interest Interest Index

assets rate rate linked Total

Available for sale financial assets 0.1 0.1

Loans and receivables 201.1 201.1

Cash and cash equivalents 648.1 648.1

201.2 648.1 849.3

Non interest Floating Fixed

bearing interest interest Index

assets rate rate linked Total

31 March 2008

Available for sale financial assets 0.1 0.1

Loans and receivables 199.4 199.4

Cash and cash equivalents 654.4 654.4

199.5 654.4 853.9

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity after tax of the groups profits cash flow and equity including the impact on derivative financial instruments to changes in

interest rates at 31 March was asfollows

2009 2008

1.0% -1.0% 0.5% -0.5%

Profit or loss 65.8 78.8 32.7 35.7

Cash 15.1 14.0 9.9 9.9

Equity 67.2 80.3 33.5 36.5
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22 Financial instruments continued

As at 31 March 2009

Functional currency of operation

Sterling

US Dollar

Euro

Total 0.3 4.8 4.5

ii Credit risk

Operationally the group has no significant concentrations of credit risk It has policies in place to ensure that sales of products are made to

customers with an appropriate credit history other than in Severn Trent Water Limited whose operating licence obliges it to continue to

supply domestic customers even in cases where bills are not paid Amounts provided against accQunts receivable and movements on the

provision during the year are disclosed in note 24

For financing purposes derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high credit quality financial institutions The group has

policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution

2008 2009

Financial risk factors continued

Monetary assets and liabilities by currency excluding functional currency

Certain of the groups subsidiaries operate in markets where the local currency is different from the functional currency of the operation

Exchange risks relating to such operations are managed centrally by Group Treasury through forward contracts to buy or sell currency

External foreign exchange contracts are designated at group level as hedges of foreign exchange risk on specific assets liabilities or future

transactions on gross basis The net amount of foreign currency assets and liabilities and the forward contracts that have been taken out

to hedge the exchange risks on these assets and liabilities and on future committed transactions are summarised below

Net foreign currency monetary assets

US Dollar Euro Other Total

Functional currency of operation

Sterling 0.6 0.6
USDollar

Euro 28.4 28.4

Total 28.4 0.6 27.8

US Dollar Euro Other Total

As at 31 March 2008

0.3 1.0 0.7

3.8 3.8

Credit risk analysis

At 31 March the credit limits and amounts deposited were as follows

Rating

2009

Amount outstanding

credit limit at 31 March

AAA 400 750 219.8 20.4

Double range 525 1250 112.9 537.7

Single range 375 50 253.8 1.2

1300 2050 586.5 559.3

The amounts of derivative assets analysed by credit ratings of counterparties were as follows

Cross currency Interest rate swaps Interest rate swaps

swaps not hedged cash flow hedges

2008

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Rating

AAA 35.6

Double range 55.0 15.2 18.1 3.7 0.1

Single range 182.1 2.0

237.1 52.8 18.1 3.7 0.1
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Financial risk factors continued

iiiLiquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash balances and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of

committed credit facilities and the
ability to close out market positions Group Treasury manages liquidity and flexibility in funding by monitoring

forecast and actual cash flows and the maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities and by keeping committed credit lines available

At the balance sheet date the group had the following committed undrawn borrowing facilities available

2008

Expiring within one year

Expiring in more than one but not more than two years 41.7

Expiring in more than two but not more than five years 500.0 458.3

500.0 500.0

Financial liabilities analysed by maturity date

The following tables detail the groups remaining contractual maturity for its non derivative financial liabilities The information presented

is based on the earliest date on which the group can be required to pay and represents the undiscounted cash flows including principal

and interest

Financial liabilities failing due

2009

between

within one and

one year two years

two and

five years

after more

than

five years Total

31 March 2009

Bank loans 122.9 17.2 432.1 397.7 969.9

Other loans 220.9 144.3 488.2 8237.7 9091.1

Finance leases 56.0 58.6 77.3 286.3 478.2

Other financial liabilities 64.7 64.7

Total 464.5 220.1 997.6 8921.7 10603.9

Other loans includes index linked debt with maturities of up to 58 years

Financial liabilities falling due

between between after more

within one and two and than

one year two years five years five years
Total

31 March 2008

Bank overdrafts 1.0 1.0

Bank loans 238.5 128.3 69.0 547.7 983.5

Other loans 337.1 198.7 448.2 8954.4 9938.4

Finance leases 57.3 61.4 113.5 311.2 543.4

Other financial liabilities 40.3 40.3

Total 674.2 388.4 630.7 9813.3 11506.6
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22 Financial instruments continued

Financial risk factors continued

The following tables detail the groups liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments The tables have been drawn up based on the

undiscounted net cash inflows/outflows on the derivative financial instruments that settle on net basis and the undiscounted gross

inflows and outflows on those derivatives that require gross settlement When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed the amount

disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates as illustrated by the yield curves existing at

the balance sheet date

31 March 2009

Instruments settled net

Interest rate swaps

Instruments settled gross

Cross currency swaps

Cash receipts

Cash payments

Financial assets falling due

between between after more

within one and two and than

one year two years five years five years

Instruments settled net

Interest rate swaps 6.3 5.4 6.1 1.8 19.6

Instruments settled gross

Cross currency swaps

Cash receipts 156.7 54.3 221.0 1129.6 1561.6

Cash paymehts 121.5 47.3 194.8 846.4 1210.0

Net cash flow 35.2 7.0 26.2 283.2 351.6

Total 41.5 12.4 32.3 285.0 371.2

Financial liabilities fafllng due

between between after more

within one and two and than

one year two years five years five years Total

31 March 2009

Instruments settled net

Interest rate swaps 33.7 31.7 39.0 112.9 217.3

Instruments settled gross

Cross currency swaps
Cash receipts

Cash payments

Net cash flow

Total 33.7 31.7 39.0 112.9 217.3

Financial assets falling due

between between after more

within one and two and than

31 March 2008

one year two years five years five years Total

29.7 1.1 0.9 34.9 66.6

Net cash flow 13.3 9.8 11.9 9.3 44.3

Total 43.0 10.9 12.8 44.2 110.9

47.7 46.2 60.6 44.6 199.1

34.4 36.4 48.7 35.3 154.8

Severn Trent Pie Annual Report and Accounts 2009 85



Group financial statements

22 Financial instruments continued

Hedge accounting

The group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates Hedge accounting is

adopted for such instruments where the criteria set out in lAS 39 are met

Fair value hedges

The group raises deIt denominated in currencies other than sterling principally Japanese Yen and Euro Cross currency swaps are entered

into at the time that the debt is drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterling debt bearing interest based on LIBOR in order to mitigate the

groups exposure to exchange rate fluctuations The terms of the receivable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt

hence the swaps are expected to be effective hedges At the year end the amounts of cross currency swaps designated as fair value hedges

was as follows

Notional principal amount Fair value

2009 2008 2009 2008

US Dollar 27.0 55.5 9.9 6.7

Euro 550.0 581.0 108.9 21.8

Yen 205.9 251.8 85.7 2.0

Czech Krona 65.7 100.3 25.6 24.6

Other 11.4 14.7 7.0 1.9

860.0 1003.3 237.1 39.6

ii Cash flow hedges

The group has entered into interest rate swap contracts under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and floating

interest rate amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the risk of changing

interest rates on the future cash flow exposures arising from issued variable rate debt The group has also entered into number of interest

rate swap contracts with start dates set at annual intervals throughout the AMP4 regulatory period Such contracts enable the group to

mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on debt which is highly probable to be issued over the AMP4 period to fund Severn Trent Waters

capital programme arid have been accounted for as cash flow hedges The fair value of interest rate swaps at the balance sheet date is

determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curves prevailing at the balance sheet date and the credit risk inherent in

the contract

The interest rate swaps settle net on biannual basis The floating rate on the interest rate swaps is six months LIBOR

Details of interest rate swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summarised below

Notional

principal amount

Financial risk factors continued

31 March 2008

Financial liabilities falling due

between between after more

within one and two and than

one year two years five years
five

years
Total

Instruments settled net

Interest rate swaps 3.1 6.4 12.6 82.4 104.5

Instruments settled gross

Cross currency swaps

Cash receipts 70.8 64.2 77.1 386.1 598.2

Cash payments 89.5 68.9 93.2 383.7 635.3

18.7 4.7 16.1 2.4 37.1

Total 21.8 11.1 28.7 80.0 141.6

Average cpntract

fixed interest rate

2009 2008 2009 2008

Fair value

Period to maturity

Less than year

to years
4.74 106.0 3.3

2tosyears 4.76 142.0 0.1

More than years
5.18 5.18 40.5 14.7 6.3 1.5

146.5 156.7 9.6 1.6

2009 2008
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Hedge accounting continued

Changes in the amounts deferred in equity during the period relating to cash flow hedges were as follows

2009 2008

Fair value gains deferred in equity at start of the period 6.4 4.1

Fair value losses/gains recognised in equity in the period 7.8 2.3
Fair value losses transferred to finance costs in the period 4.9 4.6

Fair value gains deferred in equity at end of the period 3.5 6.4

During the period the group has ceased to account for certain forward start swaps as cash flow hedges because the group was not able to

identify specific debt instruments that would enable the strict hedge accounting criteria of lAS 39 to be met when the swaps started Fair

value losses amounting to 0.3m relating to these swaps that had been taken directly to equity will be transferred to the income statement

on straight line basis over the remaining lives of the swaps Any future changes in the fair values of the swaps will be recorded in the

income statement

Details of interest rate swaps that have not been accounted for as cash flow hedges including those where hedge accounting has been

discontinued in the period are summarised below

Fair value

Period to maturity

Less than year

to years 5.66 249.0 18.6
to years 5.34 213.0 1.8
to 10 years 6.32 6.32 225.0 235.0 33.3 18.8

10 to 20 years

20 to 30 years 5.65 4.83 446.7 560.0 110.1 42J

920.7 1008.0 162.0 63.3

Contracts where the group receives fixed interest are summarised below

Average contract Notional

fixed interest rate principal amount Fair value

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Period to maturity

to 10 years 5.18 5.18 200.0 200.0 18.1 0.8

23 Inventory

2009 2008

Inventory and work in progress 30.6 24.8

24 Trade and other receivables

2009 2008

Trade receivables 294.1 282.8

Less provision for impairment of receivables 93.0 83.4

Trade receivables net 201.1 199.4

Receivables from related parties 0.2 0.2

Other amounts receivable 18.4 24.9

Prepayments and accrued income 227.4 209.6

447.1 434.1

Average contract

fixed interest rate

2009 2008

Notional

principal amount

2009 2008 2009 2008
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24 Trade and other receivables continued

The carrying values of trade and other receivables are reasonable approximations of their fair values

Prepayments and accrued income include 24.2 million 2008 13.3 million in respect of amounts due from customers for contract work

and 44.2 million 2008 42.4 million which is recoverable after more than one year

Credit control policies and procedures are determined at the individual business unit level By far the most significant business unit of the

group is Severn Trent Water Limited which represents 80% of group turnover and 60% of trade receivables Severn Trent Water has

statutory obligation to provide water and sewerage services to customers within its region Therefore there is no concentration of credit risk

with respect to its trade receivables and the credit quality of its customer base reflects the wealth and prosperity of all of the commercial

businesses and domestic households within its region None of the other business units are individually significant to the group

Movements on the doubtful debts provision were as follows

Balance at the beginning of the period 83.4 74.7

Amounts written off during the period 22.9 14.0

Amounts recovered during the year
0.7

Increase in allowance recognised in profit or loss 31.9 23.4

Exchange adjustments
0.6

Balance at end of year
93.0 83.4

The aged analysis of past due receivables that were not individually impaired was as follows

090 days
60.2 70.6

91 365 days
67.4 61.0

years
22.2 22.7

23 years
7.8 13.3

More than years
7.8 2.9

Total 165.4 170.5

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are provisions against specific trade receivables amounting to 12.8 million 2008 7.4m
The age of the impaired receivables was as follows

2009 2008

09odays 0.1 0.2

91 365 days 2.6 0.9

12years 1.5 0.7

23 years
0.8 3.6

More than years 8.7 3.1

Total 13.7 8.5

25 Cash and cash equivalents

2009 2008

Cash at bank and in hand 61.6 46.0

Short term bank deposits 586.5 608.4

648.1 654.4

2009 2008

Included in trade receivables are balances with carrying amount of 165.4 million 2008 170.5 million which were past due at the

reporting date but for which no specific provision has been made as the collective impairment recorded against such assets is considered to

be sufficient allowance for the risk of non collection of such balances

2009 2008

Of the 586.5 million 2008 608.4 million of short term bank deposits 31.1 million 2008 47.7 million is held as security deposits for

insurance obligations and is not available for use by the group

88 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009



25 Cash and cash equivalents continued

Cash and bank overdrafts include the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement

2009

Cash and cash equivalents 648.1 654.4

Bank overdrafts note 26 1.0

648.1 653.4

26 Borrowings

2009 2008

Bank overdrafts 1.0

Bank loans 789.8 742.7

Other loans 3310.9 2958.1

Obligations under finance leases 344.4 385.4

Borrowings 4445.1 4087.2

2009 2008

The borrowings are repayable as follows

On demand or within one year included in current liabilities 256.2 459.5

In the second year 56.4 233.5

In the third to fifth years inclusive 487.7 155.3

After five years 3644.8 3238.9

Included in non current liabilities 4188.9 3627.7

4445.1 4087.2

The groups borrowings are denominated in the following currencies after taking account of cross currency swaps

2009 2008

Sterling 4442.7 4085.4

Euro 2.4 1.8

4445.1 4087.2

The fair values of the groups borrowings were

2009 2008

Bank overdrafts 1.0

Bank loans 807.4 611.4

Other loans 4006.1 2646.7

Obligations under finance leases 437.2 603.7

5250.7 3862.8

2008
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26 Borrowings continued

Fair values are based on expected future cash flows discounted using LIBOR forward interest rates related to the expected timing of payments

Fixed interest debt has weighted average interest rate of 5.9% 2008 5.9% for weighted average period of 12.1 years 2008 15.6 years

Further details of bank facilities are given in note 22

Obligations under finance leases are as follows

2009 2008

Gross obligations under finance leases 478.3 543.5

Less future finance charges 133.9 158.1

Present value of lease obligations
344.4 385.4

maturity analysis of gross obligations under finance leases is presented in note 22

Net obligations under finance leases fall due as follows

2009 2008

43.4Within one year included in current liabilities 39.6

In the second year
46.9 43.0

In the third to fifth years inclusive 47.7 74.9

After five years
206.4 227.9

Included in non current liabilities 301.0 345.8

344.4 385.4

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from to 23 years at 31 March 2009 Interest terms are set at the inception of the

lease Leases with capital outstanding of 168.4 million 2008 176 million bear fixed interest at weighted average rate of 5.4%

2008 5.4% The lease obligations are secured against the related assets The fair value of the finance lease obligations is not significantly

different from their carrying value

There were no contingent rents escalation clauses or material renewal or purchase options The terms of the finance leases do not impose

restrictions on dividend payments additional debt or further leasing

27 Trade and other payables

2009 2008

Current liabilities

Trade payables
46.3 40.3

Social security and other taxes 6.1 6.9

Other payables 34.9 41.4

Accruals and deferred income 355.4 334.8

442.7 423.4

Non current liabilities

Other payables 0.2

Deferred income 233.5 214.6

Accruedexpenses 7.45.8

241.1 220.4

The directors consider that the carrying value of trade payables is not materially different from their fair values

Accruals and deferred income includes nil 2008 nil in respect of amounts due to customers for contract work
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28 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and movements thereon during the current and prior

reporting period

Fair

Accelerated Retirement value of

tax benefit financial

depreciation obligation Tax losses instruments Other Total

rn

At April 2007 919.6 40.6 7.7 12.9 32.7 891.1

Charge/credit to income 57.0 14.2 1.1 8.3 22.2 74.4

Charge/credit to equity 8.9 1.7 1.3 8.5

Exchangedifferences 0.1 0.1

At April 2008 862.6 35.3 8.7 19.5 9.2 808.3

Charge/credit to income 202.8 1.4 23.8 8.9 171.5

Charge/credit to equity 30.0 0.9 3.3 27.6

Exchange differences 0.6 3.2 1.2 3.8

At 31 March 2009 1066.0 65.3 10.5 44.2 2.4 948.4

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset The offset amounts are as follows

2009 2008

Em

Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months 26.2 23.9
Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months 3.6

29.8 23.9

Deferred tax
liability

to be recovered after more than 12 months 959.4 832.2

Deferred tax liability to be recovered within 12 months 18.8

978.2 832.2

948.4 808.3
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29 Retirement benefit schemes

Defined benefit schemes

Fair value of scheme assets

Equities 542.8 757.5

Guts 236.0 362.6

Corporate bonds 230.1 125.0

Property 52.1 76.6

Cash 14.0 10.6

Total fair value of assets 1075.0 1332.3

Present value of defined benefit obligations funded schemes 1301.8 1451.9

226.8 119.6

Present value of defined benefit obligations unfunded schemes 6.2 6.4

Liability recognised in the balance sheet 233.0 126.0

Movements in the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows

2009 2008

Fair value at April 1332.3 1364.6

Expected return on scheme assets 89.8 93.4

Contributions from the sponsoring companies 42.0 55.6

Contributions from scheme members 8.0 8.1

Actuarial losses recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense 329.8 125.7
Benefits paid 67.3 63.7

Fair value at 31 March 1075.0 1332.3

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligatio.ns were as follows

2009 2008

Present value at April 1458.3 1499.7

Service cost 23.8 31.5

Interest cost 91.9 80.6

Contributions from scheme members 8.0 8.1

Actuarial gains recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense 206.7 97.9

Benefits paid 67.3 63.7

Present value at 31 March 1308.0 1458.3

Of which

2009 2008

Amounts relating to funded schemes 1301.8 1451.9

Amounts relating to-the unfunded scheme 6.2 6.4

Present value at 31 March 1308.0 1458.3

Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the groups obligations under defined benefit schemes

2009 2008
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29 Retirement benefit schemes continued

Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit schemes

2009 2008

Amounts charged to operating costs

Current service cost 23.3 31.5

Past service cost 0.5

23.8 31.5

Amounts charged to finance costs

Interest cost 91.9 80.6

Amounts credited to finance income

Expected return on scheme assets 89.8 93.4

Total amount charged to theincome statement 25.9 18.7

The actual return on scheme assets was loss of 240.0 million 2008 gain of 32.3 million

Actuarial gains and losses have been reported in the statement of recognised income and expense The cumulative amount of actuarial

gains and losses recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense since the adoption of IFRS5 is net loss of 95.7 million

2008 net gain of 27.4 million

Background

The group operates number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK covering the majority of UK employees The defined benefit

schemes are funded to cover future salary and pension increases and their assets are held in separate funds administered by trustees The

trustees are required to act in the best interests of the schemes beneficiaries formal actuarial valuation of each scheme is carried out on

behalf of the trustees at triennial intervals by an independent professionally qualified actuary Under the defined benefit schemes members

are entitled to retirement benefits calculated as proportion varying between /o and 1/80 for each year of service of their salary for the

final year of employment with the group or if higher the average of the highest three consecutive years salary in the last ten years of

employment The final salary sections of all of the pension schemes listed below are closed to new entrants and the age profile of scheme

participants is expected to rise and hence service costs are aso expected to rise in the future

The UK defined benefit schemes and the date of their last formal actuarial valuation are as follows

UK defined benefit scheme Date of last formal actuarial valuation

Severn Trent Pension Scheme STPS 31 March 2007

Severn Trent Water Mirror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2006

The SIPS is by far the largest of the groups UK defined benefit schemes The Severn Trent Senior Staff Pension Scheme was merged with the SIPS on 31 March 2009

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to number of former employees whose benefits would otherwise have been restricted by the

Finance Act 1989 earnings cap Provision for such benefits amounting to 6.2 million 2008 6.4 million is included in an unfunded

scheme within the retirement benefit obligation

Actuarial assumptions

The major assumptions used in the valuation of the STPS also the approximate weighted average of assumptions used for the valuations of

all group schemes were as follows

2009 2008

Price inflation 2.90 3.40

Salary increases 3.90 4.90

Pension increases in payment 3.00 3.40

Pension increases in deferment 2.90 3.40

Discount rate 6.70 6.40

Long term rate of return on

Equities 8.00 8.00

Gilts 4.20 4.55

Corporate bonds 6.70 6.40

Property
6.10 6.30

Cash 0.50 5.25

The assumption for price inflation is derived from the difference between the yields on longer term fixed rate gilts
and on index linked gilts

The discount rate is based on the annualised yield from the iBoxx over 15 year AA rated sterling corporate bond index At 31 March 2008

the yield on this index was distorted by certain bonds that were exhibiting unusually high yields These bonds were excluded from the

calculation of the discount rate at that date

The expected rate of return on scheme assets is based on market expectations at the beginning of the period for returns over the life of the

benefit obligation For gifts and corporate bonds the expected rates of return are based on market yields For equities an equity risk

premium has been added to the
gilt rate
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29 Retirement benefit schemes continued

Actuarial assumptions continued

The mortality assumptions adopted are based on mortality tables applicable to the sex and year of birth of individual members with the

medium cohlrt allowance for future improvements in longevity For men the assumptions are based on the 00 series tables and for

women the 92 series both projected to calendar year 2005 with medium cohort improvements to 2005 and two year age rating

applied These have been based on mortality investigation carried out in conjunction with the valuation of the STPS carried out on behalf

of the trustees as at 31 March 2007

The life expectancies implied by the mortality assumptions adopted at each year end are as follows

2009 2008

Age to which current pensioners aged 65 are expected to live

men years 85.1 85.1

women years 88.2 88.2

Age to which future pensioners aged 45 at the balance sheet date are expected to live

men years 85.9 85.9

women years 88.9 88.9

The calculation of the scheme liabilities is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions and in particular to the assumptions relating to discount

rate price inflation and mortality The following table summarises the estimated impact on scheme liabilities and service cost resulting from

changes to key actuarial assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on scheme liabilities

Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0.1% Decrease/increase by 21 million

Price inflation Increase/decrease by 0.1% Increase/decrease by 21 million

Mortality Increase life expectancy by year Increase by 28 million

Contributions to the schemes

Contribution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer It is anticipated that normal

contributions to the scheme in the year ending 31 March 2010 will be in the order of 32 million and lump sum deficit reduction

contributions of 10 million are planned

History of actual and expected performance of pension scheme assets and liabilities

2009

Present value of defined benefit obligations 1308.0 1458.3 1499.7 1624.8 1394.4
Fair value of scheme assets 1075.0 1332.3 1364.6 1402.9 1076.9

Defined contribution schemes

The group also operates defined contribution arrangements for certain of its UK and overseas employees In September 2001 the

Severn Trent Group Pension Scheme an occupational defined contribution scheme was established to ensure compliance withstakeholder

legislation and to provide the group with an alternative pension arrangement This was closed to new entrants on April 2005 and replaced

by the Severn Trent Stakeholder Pension Scheme

The total cost charged to operating costs of 5.1 million 2008 1.5 million represents contributions payable to these schemes by the

group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes As at 31 March 2009 all contributions 2008 100% due in respect of the current

reporting period had been paid over to the schemes

Deficit in the schemes

2008 2007 2006 2005

Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets 329.8 125.7 10.6 179.1

233.0 126.0 135.1

Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities 7.9 64.3 37 152.8

221.9 317.5

37.5

5.7
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30 Provisions

Terminated

operations Regulatory

Onerous and fines and

Restructuring Insurance contracts disposals penalties Other Total

At April 2007 3.3 26.1 3.1 5.9 0.5 38.9

Charged to income statement 4.5 3.9 0.4 0.1 35.8 5.0 49.5

Utilisation of provision 3.7 7.6 0.1 11.4

Unwindingofdiscount 0.2 0.2

At April 2008 4.1 22.4 3.5 6.0 35.8 5.4 77.2

Charged to income statement 0.4 6.9 1.2 0.4 2.2 0.5 10.8

Utilisation of provision 3.0 6.1 0.2 38.0 1.6 48.9

Exchange differences 0.3 0.2 0.5

At 31 March 2009 1.5 23.2 4.5 5.9 4.5 39.6

2009 2008

Included in

Current liabilities 9.2 50.4

Non current liabilities 30.4 26.8

39.6 77.2

The restructuring provision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of committed restructuring programmes

Derwent Insurance Limited captive insurance company is wholly owned subsidiary of the group Provisions for claims are made as set out

in note The associated outflows are estimated to arise over period of up to five years from the balance sheet date

The onerous or loss making contract provision relates to specific contractual liabilities where estimated future costs are not expected to be

recovered in revenues The associated outflows are estimated to occur over period of nine years from the balance sheet date

Provisions relating to terminated operations and disposals include amounts that it is probable will be paid in respect of claims arising from

services performed by these businesses and the indemnities described in note 37

On April 2008 Ofwat published its proposals to fine Severn Trent Water 35.8 million for misreporting customer service data and failure

to meet Guaranteed Standards of Service in 2005/06 This amount was paid in the year ended 31 March 2009

Other provisions include provision of 1.8 million 2008 4.5 million relating to third party legal costs incurred in the conclusion of

Severn Trent Services arbitration to settle an interpretation on long term operating service contract

31 Share capital

Total authorised share capital

346783834 ordinary shares of 977/19p 2008 346.783834 339.5 339.5

Total Issued and fully paid share capital

235938946 ordinary shares of 977/p 2008 234600076 231.0 229.7

Changes in share capital were as follows

Number

Ordinary shares of 977/p
At April 2008 234600076 229.7

Shares issued at 473p 536p 548p 568p 592p 759p 823p or 831p

under the groups Employee Sharesave Scheme 1322252 1.3

Shares issued at 68O.5p 688p 72Op 738p 934p or 1005.3p

under the groups Share Option Scheme 16618

At 31 March 2009 235938946 231.0

2009 2008
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32 Share premium

At April 64.3 57.5

Share premium arising on issue of shares for Employee Share Option Scheme 7.6 68

At31 March 71.9 64.3

33 Other reserves

Capital Translation Total

redemption Infrastructure exchange Hedging other

reserve reserve reserve reserves reserves

At April 2007 156.1 314.2 7.7 43.6 419.0

Total recognised income for the period 6.7 1.7 8.4

Transfers 1.5 1.5

At April 2008 156.1 314.2 2.5 40.4 427.4

Total recognised income/expense for the period 43.3 2.0 41.3

At 31 March 2009 156.1 314.2 40.8 42.4 468.7

34 Movement in shareholders equity

Equity

attributable

to the equity

Retained holders of

earnings Severn Tient Plc

2009 2008

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of shares

The infrastructure reserve arose on restating infrastructure assets to fair value as deemed cost on transition to IFRS

The translation reserve arises from exchange differences on translation of the results and financial position of foreign subsidiaries as well

as foreign exchange differences arising from hedges of net investment

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting provisions of

lAS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS

Share Share Other

capital premium reserves

Minority

interests Total

At April 2007 228.3 57.5 419.0 429.4 1134.2 3.1 1137.3

Share options and LTIPs

proceeds from shares issued 1.4 6.8 8.2 8.2

value of employees services 4.0 4.0 4.0

Dividends 147.3 147.3 0.8 148.1
Current tax on share based payments 2.7 2.7 2.7

Deferred tax on share based payments 4.1 4.1 4.1
Total recognised income for the period 8.4 194.9 203.3 1.9 205.2

At April 2008 229.7 64.3 427.4 479.6 1201.0 4.2 1205.2

Share options and LTIPs

proceeds from shares issued 1.3 7.6 8.9 8.9

value of employees services 5.3 5.3 5.3

payroll tax paid on awards vesting 2.5 2.5 2.5

Dividends 158.8 158.8 158.8
Current tax on share based payments 1.3 1.3 1.3

Deferred tax on share based payments 3.3 3.3 3.3
Total recognised income/expense for the period 41.3 147.1 105.8 1.8 104.0

At 31 March 2009 231.0 71.9 468.7 174.5 946.1 6.0 952.1

Retained earnings are stated after deducting 5.8 million 2008 7.3 million which represents own shares purchased by the Severn Trent

Employee Share Ownership Trust for certain senior employees under the Long Term Incentive Plans The main features of the LTIPs are set out

in the Directors remuneration report on page 46 At 31 March 2009 the trust held 613457 ordinary shares of 977/19p 2008 768910

The market value of these shares at 31 March 2009 was 6.1 million 2008 10.9 million
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35 Share based payments

The group operates number of share based remuneration schemes for employees During the period the group recognised total expenses

of 5.3 million 2008 4.0 million related to equity settled share based payment transactions

The weighted average share price during the period was 12.70 2007 14.20

At 31 March 2009 the number of options that were exercisable under each of the share based remuneration schemes was as follows

LTIP Services LTIP

Outstanding at April 2007 1457637
Granted during the year 126189
Cancelled during the year 16635
Lapsed during the year 672662

Outstanding at April 2008 894529
Granted during the year 123743 118489
Vested during the year 227490
Cancelled during the year 4799
Lapsed during the year 203801

Outstanding at 31 March 2009 582182 118489

Details of LTIP awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of shares

Date of
grant Normal date of vesting 2009 2008

July 2005 2008 431291

July 2006 2009 334990 337049

July2007 2010 123449 126189

July 2008 2011 163240

July 2008 2012 39496
July 2008 2013 39496

2009 2008

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

exercisable average exercisable average

optlons/ exercise options/ exercise

awards price awards price

Long Term Incentive Plan

Employee Sharesave Scheme 626053 715p 970995 638p

Approved Share Option Scheme 4759 724p 12012 77Op

Unapproved Share Option Scheme 40763 728p 49304 724p

671575 1032311

Long Term Incentive Plan LTIP
Under the LTIP annual conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and senior staff Awards are subject to

performance conditions and continued employment throughout the vesting period During the year awards were made on different bases

to Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water employees the LTIP and to Severn Trent Services employees the Services LTIP Awards over

123743 shares 2008 126189 shares with fair value each of 7.49 2008 4.77 were made to 23 employees 2008 32 employees

under the LTIP Awards over 118489 shares 2008 nil with fair value of 12.80 were made to 13 employees under the Services LTIR

The LTIP awards are subject to total shareholder return over three years measured relative to the companies ranked 51 150 by market

capitalisation in the FTSE index excluding investment trusts The Services LTIP awards vest in three equal tranches and are subject to

achievement of turnover and profit targets in the years ending 31 March 2011 2012 and 2013

Details of changes in the number of awards outstanding during the year are set out below

Number of awards

100611 894529

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009 97



Group financial statements

35 Share based payments continued

The fair value of the LTIP awards made during the year was calculated using the Monte Carlo method using the principal assumptions set

out below

Assumptions 2008/09 2007/08

Expected volatihty Severn Trent Plc 17% 15%

comparator group
30% 20%

Correlation between Severn Trent Plc and comparator group 30% 30%

Proportion of employees expected to cease employment before vesting 0% 0%

Severn Trent share price volatility
is based on observations of historical weekly volatility over three year period Weekly volatility in the

observed data varied between 10% and 20%

For the 2008/09 LTIP award and the 2007/08 award the comparator group is the companies ranked 51 150 in the FTSE index

Comparator group volatility was therefore based on observed volatility for the FTSE 250 index Correlation between Severn Trent and the

comparator group was based on the average pairwise correlation for companies in the FTSE 250

The share price at the grant date was 12.80 2008 13.70 The vesting period commences before the grant date Performance in the

vesting period prior to the grant date is taken into account in determining the fair value of the award

Dividends paid on shares during the vesting period are accumulated during the vesting period and released subject to achievement of the

performance condition in the same manner as the underlying shares As result dividend yield assumption is not required

The Services LTIP is based entirely on non market based conditions and hence market assumptions are not required to determine the

fair value of the award For 2008/09 it has been assumd that performance against the Services LTIP non market vesting conditions will

be 80%

Details of the basis of the LTIP schemes are set out in the remuneration report on page 46

ii Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme the board may grant the right to purchase ordinary shares in the company to those employees

who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Earn contract for period of three or five years

Details of changes in the number of options outstanding during the year are set out below

Weighted

Number average

of share exercise

options price

Outstanding at April 2007 4885552 717p

Granted during the year 643788 1221p

Forfeited during the year 128895 823p

Cancelled during the year
55175 914p

Exercised during the year 1293356 559p

Expired during the year 18277 712p

Outstanding at April 2008 4033637 843p

Granted during the year 1671207 862p

Forfeited during the year 59628 937p

Cancelled during the year 568290 1093p
Exercised during the year 1321735 660p

Expired during the year 30379 735p

Outstanding at 31 March 2009 3724812 877p

Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of shares

Date of grant
Normal date of exercise Option price 2009 2008

January 2001 2008 568p 79406

January 2002 2009 548p 69236 82807

January 2003 2008 or 2010 536p 77253 560996

January 2004 2009 or 2011 592p 266288 401026

January 2005 2008 2010 or 2012 759p 346747 894078

January 2006 2009 2011 or 2013 823p 597749 860438

January 2007 2010 2012 or 2014 1172p 351518 513194

January 2008 2011 or 2013 1221p 347912 641692

January 2009 2012 or 2014 862p 1668109

3724812 4033637
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35 Share based payments continued

The fair value of the Sharesave options granted during the year was calculated using the Black Scholes model The principal assumptions

were as follows

Scheme year 2008/09 2007/08

Scheme type year year year year

Expected volatility 17% 17% 15% 15%
Risk free rate 2.24% 2.74% 4.24% 4.29%

Expected dividend yield 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

Proportion of employees expected to cease employment before vesting 15.0% 17.0% 15.0% 17.0%

Fair value per share sharesave 272p 268p 307p 312p

Expected volatility is based on observations of historical weekly volatility over three year period Weekly volatility in the observed data was

between 10 20%

The risk free rate is derived from yields at the grant date of guts of similar duration to the Sharesave contracts

The proportion of employees expected to cease employment before vesting is based on historically observed data

The following data was Used in the calculation of the fair value of the sharesave options

Scheme year 2008/09 2007/08

Scheme type year year year ye

Share price at grant date 1080p 1080p 1520p 1520p

Vesting period years

Option life years 3.5 5.5 3.5 5.5

The number of employees entering into sharesave contracts and the number of options granted during the year were as follows

Scheme year 2008/09 2007/08

Scheme type year year year year

Number of employees 2007 869 1638 630

Number of options granted 931272 739935 384033 259755

iii Share Incentive Plan SIP
Under the SIP the board may grant share awards to employees of group companies During the year the board has announced that it will

make awards under the SIP based on performance against Severn Trent Waters targets for its Key Performance Indicators Eligible

employees will be entitled to shares to maximum value of 750 It is expected that these awards will be made in August 2009 SIP

shares vest with the employees on the date of grant

iv Approved Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme formerly Executive Share Option Scheme the board has granted directors and other

executives options to purchase ordinary shares in the company No awards have been made under this scheme since July 2003

Outstanding at April 2007

Exercised during the year

Outstanding at April 2008 12012 770p

Forfeited during the year 3415 638p
Exercised during the year 3838 899p

Outstanding at 31 March 2009 4759 724p

Options outstanding under this scheme at 31 March were as follows

Number of shares

Date of grant Normal date of exercise Option price 2009 2008

June 1999 2002 2009 934p 3211
June 2000 2003 2010 688p 3416

July 2001 2004 2011 738p 1016 1016

June 2002 2005 2012 720p 3743 4369

4759 12012

Weighted

average

exercise

price

816p

830p

Number

of share

options

51382
39370
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35 Share based payments continued

Number

of share

options

Weighted

average

exercise

price

Unapproved Share Option Scheme

The board has granted executives options to purchase ordinary shares in the company under an unapproved share option scheme

No awards have been made under this scheme since July 2003

Details of the movements in the share awards outstanding during the year are as follows

Outstanding at April 2007 151008 728p

Exercised during the year
101704 729p

Outstanding at April 2008 49304 724p

Exercised during the year 8541 670p

Outstanding at 31 March 2009 40763 728p

Options outstanding under this scheme at 31 March were as follows

Number of shares

Date of grant
Normal date of exercise Option price 2009 2008

June 1999 2002 2009 934p 108

June 2000 2003 2010 688p 5449

July 2001 2004 2011 738p 18848 18848

June 2002 2005 2012 720p 21915 24899

40763 49304

36 Cash flow statement

Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2009 2008

Profit before interest and tax from continuing operations 451.0 400.7

Profit before interest and tax from discontinued operations 0.8

451.0 401.5

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 223.7 204.5

Amortisation of intangible assets 24.2 27.3

Pension service cost 23.8 31.5

Pension contributions 42.0 55.6

Share based payments charge 5.3 4.0

Profit on sale of property plant and equipment 4.0 1.7

Deferred income released 5.3 5.2

Provisions charged to income statement 10.8 49.5

Utilisation of provisions for liabilities and charges 48.9 11.4

Increase in stocks 2.7 2.4

Increase in debtors 9.2 44.3

Increase in creditors 16.8 48.2

Cash generated from operations
643.5 645.9

Tax received/paid
1.1 76.2

Net cash inflow from operating activities 644.6 569.7
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36 Casi flow statement continued

Non cash transactions

No additions to property plant and equipment during the year were financed by new finance leases 2008 nil

Exceptional cash flows

The following cash flows arose from items classified as exceptional in the income statement

2008

14.1

13.6

37 Contingent liabilities

Bonds and guarantees

Group undertakings have entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No liability is expected to arise in respect of

either bonds or guarantees

Disposal of subsidiaries

The group has given certain guarantees and indemnities in relation to disposals of businesses

On March 2007 the group received notice of claim for 23.4 million from Veolia Proprete S.A Veolia alleging breach of warranty in

relation to the disposal of Biffa Belgium The group has subsequently received notice from Veolia of further claim for million reIatin to

the same matter The group considers that there is no basis for this claim and hence no provision has been recorded in the financial

statements in relation to this matter The matter has been set down for hearing in the Commercial Court in Belgium on February 2010

The group is not aware of any other liability that is likely to result from these guarantees and indemnities that has not been provided for in

these financial statements

2009

Restructuring costs 16.2
Flood income/costs

Fines and penalties 40.0

Third party legal costs 1.4

57.6 27.7

Reconciliation of movement in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt

As at RPI uplift Other As at

April cash Fair value on index Foreign non cash 31 March

2008 flow adjustments linked debt exchange movements 2009

Cash and cash equivalents 654.4 11.6 5.3 648.1

Bank overdrafts 1.0 1.0

Net cash and cash equivalents 653.4 10.6 5.3 648.1

Bank loans 742.7 2.4 5.9 0.1 38.7 789.8

Other loans 2958.1 176.2 222.7 13.2 0.7 58.6 3310.9
Finance leases 385.4 41.0 344.4

Net debt 3432.8 148.2 222.7 19.1 5.9 19.9 3797.0

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2009 101



Group financial statements

38 Financial and other commitments

Investment expenditure commitments

Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 181.7 261.4

In addition to these contractual commitments Severn Trent Water Limited has longer term expenditure plans which include investments to

achieve improvements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services Ofwat and to provide for growth in demand for

water and sewerage services

Leasing commitments

At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum operating lease payments under non cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows

2009 2008

Within one year 6.8 6.2

In the second to fifth years inclusive 13.4 13.6

After more than five years 8.2 10.3

28.4 30.1

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties plant and equipment

39 Post balance sheet events

Following the year end the board has proposed final dividend of 41.05 pence per share Further details of this are shown in note 15

On 13 May 2009 the group completed the acquisition of PS Apliclor S.A small distribution operation in Spain This business currently has

annual turnover of around 10 million

40 Related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries which are related parties have been eliminated on consolidation and are not

included in this note Transactions between the group and its associates and joint ventures are disclosed below

Trading transactions

Amounts due from Amounts due to

Sale of goods Purchase of goods related parties related parties

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Em Em Em Em

Cognica 0.1 0.1

SlI 9.4 12.4 13.8 13.7

Detroit Water 0.1 0.1

Jackson Water Partnership 1.4 1.7

10.8 12.5 0.1 0.1 15.5 13.8

The related parties are associates and joint ventures in which the group has participating interest

Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel comprise the executive directors and senior management of Severn Trent Plc Severn Trent Water and

Severn Trent Services

The remuneration of the directors is included within the amounts disclosed below Further information about the remuneration of individual

directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors remuneration report on pages 50 to 53

2009 2008

Em

Short term employee benefits 6.2 4.4

Post employment benefits 0.7 0.5

Termination benefits 1.1

Share based payments 0.8 0.8

7.7 6.8

2009

Em
2008
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Ballance

Davey

Lamb

Baroness Noakes

Wray

Severn Trent Metering Services Limited

Smeckley Wood Close

Chesterfield Trading Estate

Chesterfield S41 9DZ

Telephone 01246 456658

McPheely

Senior

C2C Services Limited

80% owned

2308 Coventry Road Birmingham B26 3JZ

Telephone 0121 722 6000

Directors

Earp

Homer

Weatherdon

Graziano Oth Businesses

Derwent Insurance Limited

6A Queensway P0 Box 64 Gibraltar

Telephone 00 350 47529

Insurance company incorporated and operational in Gibraltar

Severn Trent Luxembourg Overseas Holdings SA

1A rue Thomas Edison L-1445 Strassen Luxembourg

Finance company registered and operational in Luxembourg

Directors

Chester

McKeon

Robyns

Graziano
Country of incorporation and main operation is Great Britain and

registration is England and Wales unless otherwise stated All

subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned unless otherwise

indicated All shareholdings are in ordinary shares

All subsidiary undertakings have been included in the consolidation

As at 28 May 2009

Directors

Graziano

Porritt

Severn Trent Services International Limited

2308 Coventry Road Birmingham B26 3JZ

Telephone 0121 722 6000

Directors

Graziano

Porritt

McPheely

Senior

41 Principal subsidiary undertakings and their

directors

Details of the principal operating subsidiaries are given below

complete list of subsidiary undertakings is available on request

to the company and will be filed with the next annual return

Severn Trent Water

Severn Trent Water Limited

2297 Coventry Road Birmingham B26 3PU

Telephone 0121 722 4000

Directors

Sir John Egan

Bulkin

Fryett

JKane

McKeon

Smith

appointed with effect from July 2009

Severn Trent Services

Severn Trent Services Inc

Suite 300 580 Virginia Drive

Ft Washington Pennsylvania 19034 2707 USA

Telephone 001 215 646 9201

Incorporated and operational in the United States of America

Directors

Chester Graziano

Severn Trent Environmental Services Inc

Park 10 16337 Park Row

Houston Texas 77084 USA

Telephone 001 281 578 4200

Incorporated and operational in the United States of America

Directors

Chester

KJKeIIy

Severn Trent Services Limited

Park Lane Minworth Sutton Coldfield West Midlands B76 9BL

Telephone 0121 313 2300

Directors

Graziano McPheely

Porritt Senior

Severn Trent Water Purification Inc

3000 Advance Lane Colmar

Pennsylvania 18915 USA

Telephone 001 215 997 4000

Incorporated and operational in the United States of America

Directors

Chester

KJ Kelly

Handford

Phillips

EAWilson

Severn Trent Laboratories Limited

STL Business Centre Torrington Avenue

Coventry CV4 9GU

Telephone 0247 642 1213

Directors

Graziano

Porritt

McPheely

Senior

Directors

Davies

Smith

Feetham

White

Graziano

Pauwels

Smith
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Independent auditors report to the members of Severn Trent Plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Severn

Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2009 which comprise the

Balance Sheet Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

and the related notes to 19 These parent company financial

statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set

out therein

Wehave reported separately on the group financial statements of

Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2009 and on the

information in the Directors remuneration report that is described

as having been audited

This report is made solely to the companys members as body in

accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our

audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the

companys members those matters we are required to state to them

in an auditors report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent

permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to

anyone other than the company and the companys members as

body for our audit work for this report or for the opinions we have

formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors responsibiHties for preparing the Annual Report and

the parent company financial statements in accordance with

applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards United

Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice are set out in the

Statement of Directors Reponsibilities

Our responsibility is to audit the parent company financial

statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory

requirements and International Standards on Auditing UK and

Ireland

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company

financial statements give true and fair view and whether the

parent company financial statements have been properly prepared

in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you

whether in our opinion the Directors Report is consistent-with the

parent company financial statements The information given in the

Directors Report includes that specific information presented in the

Chairmans Statement the Chief Executives Review and the

Performance Reviews that are cross referred from the Business

Review section of the Directors Report

In addition we report to you if in our opinion the company has not

kept proper accounting records if we have not received all the

information and explanations we require for our audit or if

information specified by law regarding directors remuneration and

other transactions is not disclosed

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as

described in the contents section and consider whether it is

consistent with the audited parent company financial statements

We consider the implications f6r our report if.we become aware of

any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the

parent company financial statements Our responsibilities do not

extend to any further information outside the Annual Report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards

on Auditing UK and Ireland issued by the Auditing Practices

Board An audit includes examination on test basis of evidence

relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company

financial statements It also includes an assessment of the

significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the

preparation of the parent company financial statements and of

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the companys

circumstances consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the

information and explanations which we considered necessary in

order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable

assurance that the parent company financial statements are free

from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or other

irregularity or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the

overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent

company financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion

the parent company financial statements give true and fair view

in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice of the state of the companys affairs as at

31 March 2009
the parent company financial statements have been properly

prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and

the information given in the Directors Report is consistent with

the parent company financial statements

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

London UK
28 May 2009
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Company balance sheet

At 31 March 2009

Current assets

Debtors

Derivative financial instruments

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors amounts falling due within one year

Net current IlabilItles

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year

Net assets

2009 2008

Notes

0.5

3390.7 3387.1

22.4 4.6

3413.6 3391.7

58.8 49.8

17.7 1.0

418.0 190.0

494.5 240.8

1041.3 748.4

546.8 507.6

2866.8 2884.1

143.1 131.2

2723.7 2752.9

229.7

64.3

144.0

2314.9

2752.9

Sir John Egan

Chairman

IL
Michael McKeon

Finance Director

Company statement of total recognised gains and losses

Fc the year ended March 2009

Transfers

Transfers to profit and loss account on cashflow hedges

Deferred tax on transfers to income statement

2009

3.2 3.2

0.9 0.9

2.3 2.3

Loss/profit for the period 113.3 407

Total recognised gains and losses for the period 115.6 38.4

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Derivative financial instruments

Capital and reserves attributable to the companys equity shareholders

Called up share capital 10 231.0

Share premium account 11 71.9

Other reserves 12 146.3

Retained earnings 13 2274.5

Equity attributable to the companys equity shareholders 13 2723.7

Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 28 May 2009

2008
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Notes to the company financial statements

Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and

liabilities including derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting

Standards and comply with the requirements of the United Kingdom Companies Act 1985 the Act

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation Freehold land is not depreciated Other assets are depreciated on

straight line basis over their estimated economic lives which are principally as follows

Years

Buildings 3060
Vehicles computers and software 15

Leased assets

Where assets arefinanced by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the

lessee finance leases the assets are accounted for as if they had been purchased and the fair values of minimum lease payments are

shown as an obligation to the lessor Lease payments are treated as consisting of capital element and finance charge the capital

element reducing the obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being written off to the profit and loss account over the period of the

lease in proportion to the capital amount outstanding Depreciation is charged over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease

period All other leases are accounted for as operating leases Rental costs arising under operating leases are charged to the profit
and loss

account on straight line basis over the life of the lease

Impairment of fixed assets and investments

Impairments of fixed assets and investments are calculated as the difference between the carrying values of net assets of income generating

units including where appropriate investments and goodwill and their recoverable amounts Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of

net realisable value or estimated value in use at the date the impairment review is undertaken Net realisable value represents the net amount

that can be generated through sale of assets Value in use represents the present value of expected future cash flows discounted on pre-tax

basis using the estimated cost of capital of the income generating unit Impairment reviews are carried out if there is some indication that an

impairment may have occurred or where otherwise required to ensure that goodwill and fixed assets are not carried above their estimated

recoverable amounts Impairments are recognised in the
profit

and loss account and where material are disclosed as exceptional

Financial instruments

Debt instruments

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost being the net fair value of the consideration received After initial recognition

interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Where loan

or borrowing is in fair value hedging relationship it is remeasured for changes in fair value of the hedged risk at the balance sheet date

with gains or losses being recognised in the profit and loss account see below

Gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account when the liabilities are derecognised or impaired as well as through the

amortisation process

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The company uses derivative financial instruments such as cross cuFrency swaps forward currency contracts and interpst rate swaps to

hedge its risks associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations Such derivative instruments are initially recorded at cost and

subsequently remeasured at fair value for the reported balance sheet The fair value of cross currency swaps interest rate swaps and

forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to market exchange rates and interest rates at the period end

In relation to fair value hedges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is taken to the

profit and loss account where the effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on the hedged item see above

In relation to cash flow hedges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument

that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly in reserves and the ineffective portioh in the profit and loss account The

gains or losses deferred in reserves in this way are recycled through the profit and loss account in the same period in which the hedged

underlying transaction or firm commitment is recognised in the profit and loss account

For derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting gains or losses are taken directly to the profit and loss account in the period

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires is sold terminated or exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge

accounting At that date any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in reserves is kept in reserves until the forecast

transaction- occurs or transferred to the profit and loss account if the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and

characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract or the host contract is not carried at fair value with gains and losses

reported in the profit and loss account
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Accounting policies continued

Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are held at historical cost

After initial recognition at cost being the fair value of the consideration paid investments which are classified as held for trading or

available for sale are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in income or equity respectively When an available for sale

investment is disposed of or impaired the gain or loss previously recognised in reserves is taken to the profit and loss account

Other investments are classified as held to maturity when the company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity

Investments held for an undefined period are excluded from this classification Such investments and those held to maturity are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method with any gains or losses being recognised in the profit

and loss account

Share based payments

The company operates number of equity settled share based compensation plans for employees The fair value of the employee services

received in exchange for the grant is recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the grant

The fair value of employee services is determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted calculated using pricing model

excluding the impact of any non market conditions The number of awards expected to vest takes into account non market vesting

conditions including where appropriate continuing employment by thegroup The charge is adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as

result of failing to meet non market based condition

Cash flow statement

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under Financial Reporting Statement Cash flow statements and not produced

cash flow statement

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is fully provided for in respect of timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting

purposes only to the extent that the group has an obligation to pay more tax in the future or right to pay less tax in the future Deferred tax

assets are only recognised to the extent that taxable profits are expected to arise in the future Material deferred taxation balances arising

are discounted by applying an appropriate risk free discount rate

Pensions

The company participates in the groups defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes details of which are set out in note 29

to the group financial statements However the company is currently unable to identify its share of assets and liabilities relating to the

defined benefit schemes The pension costs charged against the operating profit are the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of

the accounting period in respect of the defined benefit and defined contribution schemes

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At April 2008

Additions

Assets sold or written off

At 31 March 2009

Depreciation

At April 2008

Charge for year

Assets sold or written off

Net book value

At 31 March 2009

Land and Plant and

buildings equipment Total

0.7 4.2 4.9

0.5 0.5

4.2 4.2

0.7 0.5 1.2

0.7 4.2 4.9

4.2 4.2

At 31 March 2009 0.7 0.7

At 31 March 2008

0.5 0.5
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Investments

Subsidiary undertakings

Shares Loans Total

At April 2008 3105.5

Additions/loans advanced 119.7

Disposals/loans repaid

At 31 March 2009 32252 165.5 3390.7

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the company are given in note 42 of the group financial statements

Debtors

2009 2008

Amounts owed by group undertakings 31.6 4.5

Deferred tax 11.8 59

Corporation tax recoverable 15.4 37.7

Other debtors 0.1

Prepayments and accrued income 1.6

58.8 49.8

Creditors amounts falling due within one year

2009 2008

Bank overdrafts 24.7

Other loans 65.3 142.5

Borrowings note 90.0 142.5

Derivative financial instruments 4.2

Amounts due to group undertakings 936.5 590.6

Other creditors 6.0

Taxation and social security 0.2

Accrued expenses 8.8 10.9

1041.3 748.4

Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year

2009 2008

Borrowings other loans note 86.9 108.1

Amounts due to group undertakings 10.4

Derivative financial instruments 45.8 23.1

143.1 131.2

281.6 3387.1

119.7

116.1 116.1
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Wages and salaries 1.4 1.0

Social security costs 0.1 0.3

Pension costs 2.8 2.5

Total employee costs 4.3 3.8

For details of directors remuneration ee the Directors remuneration report on pages 40 to 53

Auditors fees in respect of the company were 77000 2008 152770 For full details of the fees paid to the auditors by the group

see note of the group financial statements

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their associates for non audit services to the company are not required to be disclosed because the

consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on consolidated basis

Employee numbers

Average number of employees of the company including executive directors during the year was 10 2008 14

All were based in the United Kingdom

Borrowings

2008

142.5
Borrowings due within one year

90.0

Borrowings due after one year

Between one and two years
10.6 46.1

Between two and five years
21.5 23.8

After more than five years
54.8 38.2

Total borrowings due after one year
86.9 108.1

1769 250.6

After taking into account interest and cross currency swaps 100% of the companys borrowings are at fixed interest rates 2008 100%

Fixed rate debt has weighted average interest rate of 6.4% 2008 6.4% for weighted average period of 5.2 years 2008 6.2 years

The companys borrowings are denominated in sterling after taking account of cross currency swaps the company has entered into

The fair values of the companys borrowings were

Bank overdrafts 24.7

Other loans 152.2 240.7

176.9 240.7

Fair values are based on expected future cash flows discounted using LIBOR forward interest rates related to the expected timing of

payments

2008

Employee costs and auditors remuneration

2009 2008

Borrowings analysed by maturity date

2009

Cm

2009

Cm
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Borrowings continued

64.3 57.5

7.6 6.8

71.9 64.3

Hedging Total other

reserve reserves

At April 2007 156.1 15.3 140.8

Cash flow hedges transfer to net profit 3.2 3.2

At April 2008 156.1 12.1 144.0

Cash flow hedges transfer to net profit 2.3 2.3

At 31 March 2009 156.1 9.8 146.3

Borrowing fadlities

The company has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities available at 31 March

2009 2008

Expiring in more than one but not more than two years 41.7

Expiring in between two and five years 500.0 458.3

500.0 500.0

10 Share capital

2009 2008

Total authorised share capital

346783834 ordinary shares of 977/19p 2008 346783834 ordinary shares of 9717/igp 339.5 339.5

Total issued and fully paid share capital

238938946 ordinary shares of 977/19p 2008 234600076 ordinary shares of 977/p 231.0 229.7

Changes in share capital were as follows

Number

Ordinary shares of 977/19p 234600076 229.7

At April 2008

Shares issued at 473p 536p 548p 568p 592p 759p 823p or 831p

under the groups Employee Sharesave Scheme 1322252 1.3

Shares issued at 680.5p 688p 720p 738p 934p or 1005.3p

under the groups Share Option Scheme 16618

At 31 March 2009 235938946 231.0

11 Share premium

2009 2008

At April

Employee Share Option Scheme

At31 March

12 Other reserves

Capital

redemption

reserve

The capital redemption reserve arose on the repurchase of shares This is not distributable
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13 Reconciliation of shareholders equity

Equity

attributable

to the equity

Share Share Other Retained holders of

capital premium reserves earnings Severn Trent Plc

At April 2007 228.3

Cash flow hedges

Transfers to net profit

Share options and LTIPs

proceeds from shares issued 1.4

value of employees services

Net profit
for the year

Dividends

Deferred tax on items posted directly to equity

57.5 140.8 2500.6 2927.2

3.2 3.2

At April 2008 229.7 64.3 144.0 2314.9

Cash flow hedges

Transfers to net profit
2.3 2.3

Share options and LTIPs

proceeds from shares issued 1.3 7.6 8.9

value of employees services 0.1 0.1

awards granted by subsidiaries 5.2 5.2

tax and social security paid on awards vesting 0.2 0.2

Net profit for the year
113.3 113.3

Dividends 158.8 158.8

At 31 March 2009 231.0 71.9 146.3 2274.5 2723.7

In previous years 1221.2 million of the companys retained profit arose as result of group restructuring exercises and is not considered

likely to be distributable As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 no profit or loss account is presented for the company

6.8 8.2

4.0 4.0

40.7 40.7

147.3 147.3

1.7 1.7

2752.9

14 Employee Share Schemes

For details of employee share schemes and options granted over the shares of the company see note 35 of the consolidated financial

statements Details of LTIP conditional awards and share options granted by the company to its employees are set out below

The company has charged 0.1 million 2008 1.4 million to the profit and loss account in respect of share based payments

2009 2008

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

exercisable average exercisable average

optiona/
exercise options/ exercise

awards price awards price

Long Term Incentive Plan

Employee Sharesave Scheme 1237 598.5p 1259 589.7p

1237 1259
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Company financial statements

14 Employee Share Schemes continued

Long Term Incentive Plan LTIP

Changes-in the number of awards outstanding during the year

Awards outstanding at 31 March were

Number of shares

Date of grant Normal date of vesting 2009 2008

July 2005 2008 208922
July 2006 2009 76574 169484
July 2007 2010 45148
July2008 2011 3566

80140 423554

ii Employee Sharesave Scheme

Changes in the number of options outstanding during the year

Weighted

Number average

of share exercise

options price

Outstanding at April 2007 9382 1029p
Cancelled during the year 3007 898p
Exercised during the year 3292 487p

Outstanding at 31 March 2008 3083 780p
Cancelled during the year 461 1172p
Exercised during the year 1146 809p
Forfeited during the period 239 823p

Outstanding at 31 March 2009 1237 599p

Options outstanding at 31 March 2009 were

Number of shares

Date of grant Normal date of vesting Option price 2009 2008

January 2002 2009 548p 1010 1010

January 2005 2008 2010 or 2012 759p 249

January 2006 2009 2011 or 2013 823p 227 1363
January 2007 2010 2012 or 2014 1172p 461

1237 3083

Outstanding at April 2007

Granted during the year

Cancelled during the year

Lapsed during the year

Outstanding at April 2008

Granted during the year

Vested during the year

Lapsedduring the year

Transferred to other group companies

Outstanding at 31 March 2009

Number of

awards

706826
45148

12708
315712

423554

3566

50770
64590

231620

80140
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15 Pensions

The company operates number of defined benefit schemes being the Severn Trent Pension Scheme the Severn Trent Water Mirror Image

Pension Scheme and the Severn Trent Senior Staff Pension Scheme In addition the group operates an unfunded arrangement for certain

employees whose earnings are above the pension cap

Further details regarding the operation of these schemes are given in note 29 of the group financial statements

The company is currently unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities from the groups defined benefit schemes and

hence it continues to account for the cost of contributions as if the scheme was defined contribution scheme

The pension charge for the year was 2.4 million 2008 2.6 million

16 Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS and not disclosed details of transactions with other undertakings within

the Severn Trent group of companies

17 Contingent liabilities

Bonds and guarantees

The company has entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No liabilities are expected to arise in respect of

either the bonds or guarantees

Bank offset arrangements

The banking arrangements of the company operate on pooled basis with certain of its subsidiary undertakings Under these arrangements

participating companies guarantee each others overdrawn balances to the extent of their credit balances which can be offset against

balances of participating companies

18 Post balance sheet events

On 28 May 2009 the board of directors proposed final dividend of 41.05 pence per share

19 Dividends

For details of the dividends paid in 2008/09 and 2007/08 see note 15 in the group financial statements
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Other information

Five year summary

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

restated restated

Continuing operations

Turnover 1642.2 1552.4 1480.2 1455.3 1252.3

Profit before interest tax and exceptional items 469.9 469.5 405.3 393.0 309.5

Net exceptional items 18.9 68.8 24.7 15.7 2.3
Net interest payable before losses/gains on financial instruments 196.4 177.4 153.8 163.9 164.1

Losses/gains on financial instruments 87.0 31.0 48.8 36.7
Results of associates and joint ventures 0.1 0.5 1.1 0.7

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 167.6 192.4 325.5 177.8 143.8

Current taxation on profit on ordinary activities 52.1 56.2 58.5 61.5 19.1
Deferred taxation 171.5 74.4 18.4 7.3 34.3

Loss/profit on ordinary activities after taxation 56.0 210.6 248.6 123.6 90.4

Discontinued 0.8 20.0 99.4 67.7

Loss/profit for the period 56.0 211.4 268.6 223.0 158.1

Net assets employed

Fixed assets 6169.9 5892.9 5675.5 6391.6 6290.8

Other net liabilities excluding net debt retirement benefit

obligation and provisions 287.2 217.3 242.9 212.2 218.3

Derivative financial instruments 83.2 26.1 102.6 130.0
Retirement benefit obligation 233.0 126.0 135.1 221.9 317.5

Provisions for liabilities and charges and deferred tax 988.0 885.5 930.0 980.4 1010.9
Net assets held for sale 4.2 13.0

4749.1 4638.0 4264.9 4860.1 4744.1

Financed by

Called up share capital 231.0 229.7 228.3 227.2 225.8

Reserves 715.1 971.3 905.9 1669.2 1621.8

Total shareholders funds 946.1 1201.0 1134.2 1896.4 1847.6

Minority shareholders interests 6.0 4.2 3.1 2.6 1.9

Net debt 3797.0 3432.8 3127.6 2961.1 2894.6

4749.1 4638.0 4264.9 4860.1 4744.1

Statistics

Earnings per share continuing pence 24.6 89.3 106.1 52.9 39.0

Adjusted earnings per share pence 92.7 97.8 82.4 70.4 52.6

Dividends per sharç excluding special dividend pence 67.34 65.63 61.45 51.13 48.51

Dividend cover betbre exceptional items and deferred tax 1.4 1.5 1.3 1.4 1.1

Gearing 80.0% 74.0% 73.3% 60.9% 61.0%

Ordinary share price at 31 March pence 990 1419 1434 1117 915

Average number of employees

Severn Trent Water 5624 5569 5289 5188 51Q6
other 3144 2814 7172 11124 11268

Gearing has been calculated as net debt divided by the sum of equity and net debt

The amountsfor 2006 and 2005 have been restated to exclude the results of discontinued operations
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Information for shareholders

Electronic communications and the Severn Trent Plc website

At the 2007 Annual General Meeting AGM resolution amending

the Articles of Association was passed allowing the company to

communicate with shareholders eithet via the Severn Trent Plc

website or by post The company wrote to shareholders in

April 2008 asking that they choose to either

provide an email address using the personalised reply card to

receive notifications when shareholder documentation is made

available on the website or

continue to receive shareholder documentation in hardcopy by

returning the personalised reply card

If the completed card was not returned then in accordance with the

Companies Act 2006 shareholders were deemed to have agreed to

receive shareholder documentation via the Severn Trent Plc website

These shareholders and those who have positively elected for

website communication were sent immediately prior to the

publication date written notification that the 2008 shareholder

documents are available to view on the Severn Trent Plc website at

www.severntrent.com

The new electronic arrangements enable shareholders to access

information immediately as it becomes available By using

electronic communications the company is also able to both reduce

its impact on the environment from reducing the use of paper and

the energy required for publication and distribution and benefit

from savings associated with reduced printing and mailing costs

The Severn Trent Plc website also provides company news and

information together with links to the companys operational

businesses websites

The investors section of the website contains up to date information

for shareholders including

comprehensive share price information

financial results

history of dividend payment dates and amounts and

access to current and historical shareholder documents such as

the Annual Report and Accounts

Shareholders who register to receive shareholder documentation

from Severn Trent Plc electronically can

view the Annual Report and Accounts on the day it is published

receive an email alert when shareholder documents are available

cast their AGM vote electronically and

manage their shareholding quickly and securely online through

Sha review

Visit www.shareview.co.uk for more information and to register for

electronic shareholder communications

Dividend payments directly into bank accounts

Dividends can be paid automatically into your bank or building

society account This service has number of benefits

there is no chance of the dividend cheque being lost in the post

the dividend payment is cleared more quickly as the cash is paid

directly into the account on the payment date without the need to

pay in the cheque and wait for it to clear and

beginning with the 2009/10 financial year single consolidated

tax voucher will be issued in February each year in time for your

self assessment tax return

To take advantage of this service or for further details contact

Equiniti or visit www.shareview.co.uk

Severn Trent shareholder helpline

The companys registrar is Equiniti Limited Equinitis main

responsibilities include

maintaining the shareholder register and

making dividend payments

If you have any queries on the following matters you can contact

Equiniti via one of the methods below

transfer of shares

change of name or address

lost share certificate

lost or out of date dividend cheques and other dividend queries

death of the registered holder Of shares or

any other query relating to your Severn Trent shareholding

Telephone 0871 384 2967

Overseas enquiries 44 121 415 7044

Text phone 0871 384 2255

By post Equiniti Aspect House Spencer Road Lancing

West Sussex BN99 6DA

Email severntrent@equiniti.com

Calls to these numbers are charged at pence per minute from

BT landline Other telephony providers costs may vary

range of frequently asked questions is also available at

www.shareview.co.uk

Overseas dividend payments

service has been established to provide shareholders in over

3O.countries with the opportunity to receive Severn Trent dividends

in their local currency For small administration fee shareholders

can have their dividends automatically converted from sterling

and paid into their bank account normally within five working days

of the dividend payment date For further details please contact

44 121 415 7044

Buying and selling shares in the UK

If you wish to buy or sell certificated Severn Trent shares you will

need to use stockbroker or high street bank which trades on the

London Stock Exchange There are also many telephone and online

services available to you If you are selling you will need to present

your share certificate at the time of sale Details of low cost dealing

services may be obtained from www.shareview.co.uk or

0845 603 7037

Shareholder security

Shareholders are advised to be wary of any unsolicited advice

offers to buy shares at discount or offers of free reports about

the company More detailed information can be found at

www.fsa.gov.uk/consumer

Unsolicited mail

The company is legally obliged to make its share register available

to the general public Consequently some shareholders may receive

unsolicited mail If you wish to limit the amount of unsolicited mail

you receive please contact

The Mailing Preference Service MPS DMA House 70 Margaret

Street London W1W 8SS

Alternatively register online at www.mpsonline.org.uk or call the

MPS Registration line on 0845 703 4599
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Other information information for shareholders

Share price information

As well as using the company website to view details of the current

and historical Severn Trent share price shareholders can find share

prices listed in most national newspapers Ceefax and Teletext

pages also display share prices that are updated regularly

throughout the trading day For real time buying or selling price

you should contact stockbroker

Gifting your shares

To transfer your shares to another member of your family as gift

please request gift transfer form from Equiniti The completed

transfer form together with the relevant share certificates should

be returned to Equiniti to record the change in ownership

If you have small number of shares and would like to donate them

to charity please ask Equiniti for ShareGift charity donation

scheme transfer form Information is also available on the ShareGift

website at www.sharegift.org or by telephoning 0207 337 0501

Financial calendar

17 June 2009

19 June 2009

21 July 2009

31 July 2009

24 November 2009

January 2010

Ex-dividend date for 2008/09 final

dividend

Record date for 2008/09 final dividend

AGM International Convention Centre

Birmingham B1 2EA

Payment date for proposed 2008/09 final

dividend

Announcement date for 2009/10 interim

results

Payment date for proposed 2009/10

interim dMdend

Useful historical Information

Share capital reorganisation August1997

On 11 August 1997 the companys share capital was reorganised

and then consolidated whereby for every 20 existing ordinary

shares of 1.00 each shareholders received 19 new ordinary

shares of 65/ pence each and 20 shares of 38 pence each

At the AGM on August 2000 shareholders resolved to cancel the

shares and following an application to the Courts the capital of

the company was reduced and the shares were cancelled with

effect from November 2000

Information on the capital gains treatment of both events is

available from the Investor centre pages at www.severntrent.com

Demerger of Biffa Plc Return of Capital by payment Of Special

Dividend and Consolidation of Severn Trent Plc Shares

On October 2006 the demerger of Biffa Plc was completed and
for each existing Severn Trent Plc share of 65/j9 pence each held

at the Record Time of 6.OOpm on Friday October 2006
shareholders in the company received

one Biffa Plc share of ten pence each and

Special Dividend of 165 pence

At the same time as the demerger every three Severn Trent Plc

shares of 65/j9 pence each were consolidated into two new

Severn Trent Plc shares of 97h7/ pence each

The Special Dividend was paid on 20 October 2006 At the same

time share certificates for the new Severn Trent Plc shares and the

Biffa Plc shares were sent to shareholders

Analysis of shareholdings at 31 March 2009
Numberof %of

Category shareholders shareholders

Number

of shares of shares

Individual and

joint accounts 70296 91.32 26603002 11.28

Other 6684 8.68 209335944 88.72

Total 76980 100.00 235938946 100.00

Numberof %of Number
Size of

holding shareholders shareholders of shares of shares

1-499 57085 74.16 11158497 4.73

500-999 13389 17.39 9403159 3.99

1000-4999 5508 7.16 9308155 3.95

5000-9999 279 0.36 1896300 0.80

10000-49999 318 0.41 7728071 3.28

50000-99999 126 0.16 9008691 3.82

Over 100000 275 0.36 187436073 79.44

Total 76980 100.00 235938946 100.00

Includes insurance companies nominee companies banks pension funds other

corporate bodies limIted and public limited companies
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